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To

All Hon'ble Shareholders

Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms
Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and

Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited

Dear Sir {s)

Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2022

\We are pleased to enclose a copy of the Annual Report together with the Audited Financial

‘Statements includin_:_;_ Statement of Financial Position. Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income, Statemeant of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash flows for the
year ended 30 June 2022 along with notes thereon for your kind information and record.

Yours sincerely

( Nomian Ahmed Taffader)

Company Secretary
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Core Value
Forour Customer

To become most efficient Company by providing the most courteous and efficient

service in every areas of Bangladesh

For our Employees

Promcting well-being of the members of the staff

Forour Shareholders

Ensuring fair return on their investment through generating stable profit.

For our Community
Assuming our role as socially responsible corporate entity in a tangible manner through
close adherence to national policies and objectives.

Our Vision

To ensure energy security in the country by uninterrupted supply of quality
petroleum products at government's fixed price To strengthen the supply of

environmental-friendly and excellence agrochemical products in order to

increase the nation-wide agricultural productions.




= To ensure adequate supply of fuels through the purchase, storage &
distribution of petroleum products throughout the country with
organized management system.

® Development of petroleum related infrastructure.
@ NModernizing the marketing and operational activities of the Company.

@ To make creative business policy and diversification of products
according to market demand.

= Undertaking necessary steps through import. manufacturing. storage,
distribution with organized management system in order to supply
agrachemical products throughout the country

Strategic

Priority

To have sustained growth, broaden and improve range of products and services in all
areas of Bangladesh with the aim to add increased value to shareholders’ investment
‘and offer highest possible benefit to our customers.
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Historical Events of POCL

Padma Oil Company Limited is not only the biggest but alzso the oldest with itz antecedents stretching
well back to the colonial period of Briish-India. Its ancestral enterprize Rangocon Oi Company’
established petroleum business in this part of the world by the middle of nineteenth century. Following
iz a Synopsis of Padma Oil Company Limited's historical background:

A In 1874 Rangoon Qil Company was registered as a Joint stock company in Scotland having its main
business activites in Burma {Enown to the British until the later years of the 19th century as
BURMAH, which was a province of the then British India)

A In 18285 Rangoon Qil Company was reconstituted and reformed as Burmah Oil Company. Business
of this Company was then spread over other provinces of British-India including Assam and Bengal
The Company’s Head office was at 121 West George Street, Glasgow, UE.

A Burmah 01l Company for the first time introduced drilling equipments for exploration of oil in
Burma in the year 18338. Previcusly oil was being collected in Burma by hand dug well.

A Burmah Qil Company established their Mcoheshkhal Oil Installation' at Chattogram in the year 1903.
A In 1908 Burmah Oil Company conducted a geclogical survey in Chattogram.
A In 1914 Burmah Oil Company drilled a well at Sitakunda, Chattogram.

A Inthe year 1920, M/= Bullock Brothers, a major distributor of Burmah Qil Company established their
trading office at Sadarghat, Chattogram.

A In the year 1229, Burmah Oil Company took over the office of Bullock Brothers at Sadarghat,
Chattogram including 4.1 acres of land and sstablished their own office in it.

A Prior to the partition of the sub-continent in 1947, mainly two il marketing companies namely
Burmah Qil Company (BOC) and Burmah Shell Oil Storage and Distribution Company (BSOC) were
operating petroleum business in the area what now comprised of Bangladesh. Burmah Shell
established Aviation Depot at Tejgaon Alrport in the year 1945,

A Considering the Oil Marketing situation in erstwhile East Palastan, Burmah Shell transferred their
share to BOC and in the year 1965 a new company called Burmah Eastern Limited’ was formed with
49%; share of BOC. The rest portion of the share was issued to public & private individuals of
Pakistan.

A In 1977 Burmah Eastern Limited became a subsidiary of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation.

A In the year 1985, BOC transferred its enfire property in Bangldesh (including share of Burmah
Eastern Limited) in favour of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC).

A As per terme of the transfer of BOC's entire share to BPC, Burmah Eastern Limited was required to
change its name and as such subsequently the Company's name was changed as PADMA OIL
COMPENY LIMITED' in the year 1935,
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NOTICE OF THE 53" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice 13 hereby given that the 53 Anmual General Meeting of Padma Oil Company Limited will be held on Sunday, 1%
Janwary 2023 (17 Pansh 14297 at 3.00 PA winpally by ueing Digital Platfrom (Link: htips://padmacil53agm.digitalagmbd.net)
in pursnant to the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s Order No. SEC/SEMIC/94-231/91 dated 31/05/2021) to
tranzact the followine business:

AGENDA:
1. To confirm the minutes of the 528¢ Annual General Meeting held on 26 Febmary 2022;

2. Toreceive and adopt the Directors” Report and Audttors™ Report and the Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2022;

Todeclare dividend for the vear ended 30 June 2022;

To elect're-elect Directors:

To appoint Joint Andritors and fix their remuneration for the year ending 30 June 2023;

A

T appoint practicing Professional Accountant'Secretary for 13zuing certificate regarding
Compliance of Corporate Governance Code and fix their remuneration.

23 Agrahayan 1420 By order of the Board of Directors
08 December 2022

Strand Road, Sadarghat
Chattogram. Noman Ahmed Taffader
Company Secretary

Notes:

01. Record Date:

The Record Date was (5 December 2022. The Shareholders whose names appearing in the CDBL Depository Register and
Share Register of the Company on the Record Date will be eligible to attend the Annual General Meeting and recetve the
dividend.

02. Proxy:

A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may - appoint 2 Proxy to attend and vote on hiz'her
behalf In order to be effective, the Proxy Form duly zigned and stamped nmst be submitted at the Company’s Registered
Office not later than SEVENTY TWO HOURS before the Meeting.

03. The Hon'ble Shareholders will be able to submit their questions/comments and vote 72 hours before commencement of
the AGM and during the AGM. Fer login in to the syztem. the Hon ble shareholders need to put their 16-digit beneficial
cwrer (BO) ID  sumber3-digit Folic 1D aoomber and their zhare number by visiting the lnok
hrtps:/fpadmacilf3agm.digitalagmbd.net

04. The Annual Report 202122 of the Company in soft form will be sent fo the e-mail address of the shareholders as have
been found available in their BO Accouont with the Depository. The zaid Annual Feport iz also available in the website of
the Company (www.pocl.gov.bd). In sddition, the shareholders may collect the Annual Report 2021-22 from Registered
Office of the Company by submitting written request beforehand.




Bashudeb Ganguly
Ratred Addfional Secrelary o Gove, of Bangadesh
Incependent Director, POCL Board

Quazi Md. Anwarul Hakim
Retired Joint Secretary fo Govt, of Bangladesh
Independent Direcior, POCL Board
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Board of Directors

Md. Mahbub Hossain

Semor Secretany

Energy and Mneral Resources Division
Minis¥y of Power, Energy and Minerzl Resources

& Chairman, POCL Board

Kabirul Ezdani Khan
Addfiona: Secretary, Finance Division
Mmnisty of Finance
& Drector, POCL Board

Kazi Mohammad Mozammel Hogue
Direcior (Finance), BPC
Joint Secretary o Govt. of Banpladesh
& Director, POCL Board
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Board of Directors

Md. Zakir Hossain
Joint Secretary
Energy and Mineral Besowces Division
M inistry of Power, Energy and Mineral Resources
& Director, POCL Board

MNasiruddin Akhter Rashid
Sharehotder Director, POCL Board

Suzadur Rahman Md. Abu Saleh Igbal
Managing Directar, POCL
ERECL PRC Boan & Director. POCL Board

MNoman Ahmed Taffader
Com pany Secretary
& GM (Marketing)
Padma il Company Limited
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Brief Resume of Chairman

Md. Mahbub Hossain

Senior Secretary

Energy and Mineral Resoumces Division
Mmisiry of Power, Energy and M ineral Resolrces
& Ghairman, POCL Board

Ar: Md. Mahbub Hossain joined as Sewmior Secretary, Energy and Mireral Resourcez Divisten on 02 January 2022, Before joming
10 this division, he served as Secretary. Secondary and Higher Education Divizion on 31 December 2019 t0 01 Jangary 2022

M. Md. Mahbub Hozsam amember of B.C 8. (Admmistration) of 1986 (Sth) batch, joined n erial service on 20 Diecember 1980,
In hiz long and dlustnous career. be served 1n vanouws Ministries and Divizions such as Mimstoy of Commerce, Mintstry of Science
and Technolooy. Planning Commizsion, Prime Minizter's Office. Ministty of Health and Family Welfare and Locsl Government
Dhvizion as Assiziant Secretary, Sentor Aszsistant Secretary. Deputy Secretary, Joint Szeretary and Additional Secretary. In the
process, he has acguired expenence in planning. implementation and morstoning of poblic policy, stratesy and development
projects. In sddition, he zerved a3 the Private Secretary to Pnme Minister's Secretary and ‘State Mimzter for Planning, Instructor of
National Academy for Planning and Development. Deputy Chief (Gender) of Health Economics Uit Secretary of Dhaks South
City Corporztion and Director (Planming and Development) of Bangladesh Climate Change Trust.

Az a'member of Honorable Prime Minister's delegation. Mr Md. Mahbub Hotsain participated in the Meeting of High-Tavel Panel
on Water held in September 2016 at the United MNations. Water Conference beld 1n Budapest. Hunpary 1n 2016 and One Planet
Summat, 2017 held 10 Panis. In ks career, he was a member of different Banpladesh Dielegations for nepotiating bilateral trade and
cooperation. He alzo fook part in international segotistions related to climate change 'and meeting: of the Conference of Parties
(EOP) held in 2013 {Warshaw, Poland} and in 2014 (Lima Peru). Moreover, 1o the Local Government Division, he led a number
of imter-ministenial commitiees and task forces for improvieg water and sanstation svstem, modermization of wrban waste
management dévelopment of urban primary health care gystem. updating of road cotting policy and improvement of urban

governance.

M. Md. Mabbub Hossain completed hiz 5.5:.C. from Banszhsl Residentiz] Model College (presently Barishal Cadet College) in
1979 HE.C. from Barishal B M College in 1981, BS5 5. (Honours) and M.3 5. in Soclology from the University of Dhalea in 1984
and 1933 respectively. After jomning the civil service, he obtamed MBA from the University of North Londen, Unsted Kingdom in
2001 and MLA - (Gender and Development) from the University of Melbourne, Ausiralia in 2007. Bezides. he completed certificate
conrzes on Health Economics from the University of Dhales and on Climate Change and I eadership from the Graffith Thiversity,
Australia He actrvely participated i various tratming coursesz on Planning, Development Management and Gender at home and
abread.

He trains as a senior trainer and resouree person in varous training instifiutions. He kas keen interest in research and contributed in
conducting and editing several research programmes and reports rezpectively,

M Md Mabbob Hossain 12 currently the Viee Prezident of Dhaka University Soctology Alumm Aszociation. He haz plaved an
unportant role in the establishment of Awstralis Ahsmni Azsociation, Bangladesh as the Member-Secretary of iis first Ad hoc
Committee. Besides, being an active member of vanous alumm and social crganizsstions, he practices literature, especially writtng
short stortes and poems.

M Md Mahbub Hossain has come from an aristocratic family of Villaze-Patarchar of Muladi Upazila in Barisal Hiz father 15 late Md

Abdul Habim Khan and mother 13 Beoum Meberunness In fanuly life, he 12 happaly married to Dina Hagque and bleszed with twor sons.
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Brief Resume of Directors

Bashudeb Ganguly

Retired Addifional Secretary

to Govt. of Bangladesh

& Independent Director, POCL Board

Mr. Bashudeb Ganguly, a retired Additional Secretary to the Govt, jomned in the Padma O1l Company
Limited on 28 December 2021 as an Independent Director. He cbtained hiz Bachelor & Masters degree
m SOIL SCIENCE from the University of Dhaka He also obtained LLB degree from World University
of Bangladesh.

He was a Cadre Service Officer belonged to BCS-Administration Cadre and served the govt for a period of
zbout 30 vears. During his govt. service, he held different positions i the capacity of Magistrate 15t class; Ps to
Commuissioner, RDC, NDC, Upazila Nirbahi Officer (UNO), Additional District Magistrate (ADM), Additional
Deputy Comnssioner (Rev) and Deputy Secretary. The semor appointments from 2009 to 2017 mclude Director
General, Bureau of Non-formal Education (BNFE), Additional Secretary, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare
(MOHFW), Diractor(JS), National Housing Authority, Ministry of Housing & Public Works (MOPW).

During his tenure in the Govt. service, he participated in several tramning programs, attended various
seminars 1n home and abroad and led the team as head of the delegation.

Kabhirul Ezdani Khan

Additional Secretary, Finance Division
Ministry of Finanoce

& Directar, POCGL Board

Mr. Kabirul Ezdani Khan joined the Bangladesh Civil Service in 1991 as Azsistant Commissioner of Taxes Before
joining the Civil Service he worked a5 a Fesearch Associate in the Bangladesh Institute of International and Strategic
Smdies (BIISE) and Assistant Manager (Investment Promotion) in the Bangladesh Export Proceszing Zones Anthority
(BEPZA) under the Prime Mimister’s office - During hiz long career in the civil service, he worked in the National
Board of Revenue as First Secretary and Director 1a the Mindstry of Foreign Affawrs and Counsellor in the Bangladezh
High Commission in Malaysia and Singapore. He joined Padma il Company Limited as a director in October 2021,
Mr. Kabirol Ezadani Khan did hiz Bachelor of Social Science and Masters in Social Science from the Department of
Public Admimstration University of Dkaka He also completed his Masters from the Department of Poblic Finance
from the University of Ulster, United Kingdom in 1999,

Mr. Kabimu! Ezdani Khan iz a Board member of Bangladesh Agriculinre Development Corporation {BADC),
Bangladezh Fizheries Development Corporation (BFDC). Bangladesh Krira Shikkhs Protizhthan (BESP) and
Execotive Chairman of Institute of Public Finanece, Ministry of Finance.
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Brief Resume of Directors

Quazi Md. Anwarul Hakim
Retired Joint Secretary o Govt of Bangladesh
& Ingependent Director, POCL Board

Mr. Quazi Md. Anwarul Hakim, a retired Joint Secretary to the Govt., joined i the Padma Oil Company
Limited on 27 February 2021 as an Independent Director. Beside this position, he heads the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (NEC) & Audit Committee of the company. Having honours degree 1
ECONOMICS, he did his Masters in the same subject from the University of Dhaka

He was a Cadre Service Officer belonged to BCS-Admimstration Cadre and served the govt. for a period
of 32 vr.6 months. Dunng his govt. service, he held different positions i the capacity of Magistrate 1st
class, Special Magmstrate, NDC. Upazila Nirthali Officer (UNQ), Additional District Magistrate (ADM) |
Additional Deputy Commussioner (ADC ). Deputy Commissioner (DC), Deputy Secretary and Joint
Secretary. Prior to join m the Cadre Service, he worked as “Sentor officer” and “Planning Officer” in the
Bangladesh Knishi Bank about 4 yrs.

During his tenure in the Govt service, he participated in several traming programs, attended various
seminars at home and abroad and led the team as head of the delegation. He performed holy Hapy 1 2015,
Apart from this regular duty he has passion in writing novel and short story. He has 2 novels published 1n
the Ekushey Boimela and a compilation of short story and travel note 1s in the process.

Kazi Mohammad Mozammel Hoque
Direcior (Finance), BPG

Joint Secretary to Govt. of Eangladesh

& Director, POGL Board

Mr. Kazi Mohammad Mozammel Hoque joined Padma Oil Company Limited as a Director on 05-07-2021.
He 15 also a member of the Audit Committee as well as Nomination & Remuneration Commuttee (NRC) of
the company. Mr. Hoque 15 2 Joint Secretary to the Bangladesh Government and currently working as
Director (Finance) of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation. He 15 also a Director of LPGL and SAQCL
Board.

Mr. Kazit Mohammad Mozammel Hogque, a member of BCS (Admimstration) 18th batch, joined 1 civil
service as Assistant Commissioner on 235 January 1999 In his long Career, he served in differemt
capacities 1n field level as well as in different mimstries. He obtamned B 5.8 (Honors) and M.SS mn
Economics from Unmiversity of Chittagong. He also obtained MA in International Trade & Economic
Co-operation from Graduate School of Pan Pacific International Studies of Evong Hee University,
South Korea under KOICA Scholarship. Moreover, he attended many workshop, Seminars and traming
courses at home and abroad.
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Brief Resume of Directors

Md. Zakir Hossain

Joint Secretary

Energy and Mineral Resources Division
Mmistry of Power, Energy and Mineral Resources
& Director, POCGL Board

Mr. Md. Zakir Hossain joined as a Director at Padma 01l Company Litd. 1n September 2022 He 15 also a
member of Audit Commuttee and Nomination & Renumeration Commuttee (NRC) of the Company.

Mr. Md. Zakir Hossain 1s a Jomt Secretary of Bangladesh Government and currently working i the Energy
and Mineral Resources. He joined Bangladesh Civil Service (Administration) Cadre as Assistant
Commissioner and Magistrate in 2003 and worked 1n various capacities both mn at field and central level as
well as foreign mission of Bangladesh. He worked 1n different positions including Nezarat Deputy Collector
of Kishoregon). Revenue Deputy Collector and 1st class Magistrate of Chattogram. Special Metropolitan
Magistrate at Chattogram City Corporation. Upazila Nirbahi Officer in Chakana of Cox’s Bazar and
Chandina of Cumilla. Semor Assistant Secretary in the Minstry of Environment, Forest and Climate
Change and Expatriates” Welfare and Overseas Employment and Deputy Secretary in Energy and Mineral
Resources Division. From 2016 to Febmary 2022, he served as Counselor (Labour and Welfare) at the
Embassy of Bangladesh in Tokyo, Japan During serving in the Mission, he was recognized as “Ambassador
for Peace’ by Universal Peace Federation (UPF) m 2019.

He completed S5C and HSC from Banshal Cadet Collegs and obtained B.Sc. (Hons) and M Sc. from the University of Dhaka.
He participated in different tramings, studv tours, conferences, seminars, workshops stc. at home and abroad.

Nasiruddin Akhter Rashid
Shareholder Darector, POCL Board

Mr. Nasiruddin Akhter Rashid began his professional career at Umited Group as an Executive at United
Hospital Ltd. 1n 2006. In 2008, he was appomted as Management Trainee at United Enterprises & Co.
Ltd. following which he was appointed as Associate Director in 2009,

As a yvoung entreprenenr, Mr. Nasiruddin Akhter Rashid's mnvolvement in business was well-imbued
with the core values of the Group. His keen sense of professionalism led to his appomtment as the
Dhrector of United Enterprises & Co. Ltd. 1n 2013 Mr. Nasiruddin Akhter Rashid 1s currently i charge
of the administration unit, land division, overseas trading, port, termunal and logistics operation of the
Group. Additionally, he is the Managing Director of Umited Tank Terminal Lid.. overseeing daily
operations regulatory compliance and terminal construction activities.

Mr. Nasiruddin Akhter Rashid serves as Director on the Board of United Power Generation & Distribution
Companv Ltd., Umted Anwara Power Ltd. . United Shipping & Logistics Services Ltd., United Hospatal
Ltd.. Neptune Land Development Ltd. etc. He 15 avidly involved in soctal welfare activities and as such he
15 2 Member on the Board of Trustees of United International Unrversity and United Trust.
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Brief Resume of Directors

Suzadur Rahman
Director, POCL Board

Mr. Suzadur Rahman is both a renowned business person as well as a reputed political figure
Bangladesh. He 1s currently the member of the Publicityv and Publication sub-committas of
Bangladesh Awami League. Previously he was also a member of the Forest and Environment
sub-committae of Bangladesh Awami League He also holds two Master's Degree in both
Accounting Information System (AIS) and Health Economics from the Universitv of Dhaka He s
the founding chairman of G7 Securitas Ltd. — a leading securtty sarvice provider it Bangladesh
Hea 1z 2 successful entreprensur with proven leadership role in different businesses. He 15 the
chairman of King Consultants Ltd. . proprietor of M/'S 8.5 Enterprise and chairman of Mindlabz Lid.
He 15 a distinguished member of BASIS and Bangladesh Bridge Federation In 2019, he accompaniad
the Honorable Prime Minister of BangladeshSheikh Hasina during her visit to USA for the 74th UN
Assembly: In 2011 he travelled to China to percetve the activities of Chinese Commumnist Party
(CCP) as special envoy of Honorable Prime Minister of Bangladesh —Sheikh Hasina He has also
vistted over 30 countries of the world and enjovs visiting new places and countries.

Md. Abu Saleh Igbal
Managing Director, POCL
& Director, POCL Board

Mr. Md. Abu Saleh Igbal 1z the Managing Director of Padma Oil Company Limited (POCL), a
subsidiary of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC). He joined POCL as Managing Director on
22.05.2022 and was appointed as the Director of POCL Board on 06.06 2022. Prior to his joimng in
POCL. he also served as Managing Director of Meghna Petroleum Limited (MPL) from
24 .01.2022 10 21.05.2022. Mr. Md. Abu Saleh Igbal joined as an Operations Engineer at Padma Ozl
Company Limited on 01.07.1991. He has over 30 years of professional expenience in the country's
downstream petroleum industry.

Mr. Md.: Abu Saleh Igbal completed his B3¢ in Engmneering (Mech.) from Chittagong University of
Engmeenng & Technology (CUET). He attended various seminars and traiming courses at home and
abroad.
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Corporate Management

Md. Abu Saleh Igbal
Managing Director

Noman Anmed Taffader Md. Shahidul Alam Md. Abdus Sobhan
Compgany Secretary & General Manager General Manager
General Manager (M areting) (HR & Admin) ({Operations & Pianning)

C.M Ziaul Hassan Dr. Md. Alamgir Chowdhury
Deputy General Manaper Chief Medical Officer
(Enpo. & Planning)
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Corporate Management

Kanchan Chandra Shom, FCMA
Deputy General Manager
{Accounts) & CFD

Sheikn Al Mamun Mohammad Roman Chﬂ'WﬂhUFy AsSif Malek
Deputy General Manager {Aviafion) D=puty Generzl Manager (Sales) Deputy Gereral Manager (Operations)

AK.M Fazie Elahee Md. Tariqul Islam Anhsan Habhib
Deputy General Manager Deputy General Manager Deputy General Manager
(Audif (Chemicals) iDhaka)
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Company Secretary
Noman Ahmed Taffader

Legal Advisors
H & H Company
Lex Counsel
Tanjib Alam & Associales
Barrister HM Siddigue Shanjid
Advocate Mohsanuddin Chowdhury
Advocate S. C. Lala

Tax Consultant _
Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants
MM Rahman & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Rahman Mostafa Alam & Co.
Chartered Accountanis

Auditors
Khan Wahab Shafique Rahman & Co.

Hussain Farhad & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Insurers
Sadharan Bima Corporation
Delta Life Insurance Co. Ltd.

Bankers

Janata Bank Limited
Agrani Bank Limited
Sonali Bank Limited
Bangladesh Krishi Bank
F'uh;sli Bank Limited

Eastern Bank Limited

Trust Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Ltd.
Citibank N A

One Bank Limited

United Gommercial Bank Limited
Brac Bank Limited

Bank Asia Limited

AB Bank Limited

Marcan_tlla' Bank Limited

Prime Bank Limited

NGGC Bank Limited

NRE Bank Limited

Union Bank Umiﬁﬂ
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| Performance ata Glance for 2021-2022 |

2021-2022 2020-2021

Fuel Oil Sales

Net Earmnings

Met Profit before Tax

Net Profit after Tax

Earnings per Share

NAV per share

NOCF per share
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Chairman's Statement

Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim
Honaorable Shareholders,
Assalamu Alailum,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Padma Oil
Company Limited and on my behalf, | welcome all of you
to 53rd Annual General Meeting. The Company has made
significant profit in the reported year with the sincere
efforts of its manpower at all levels. At the same time, the
Company has been able to provide high standard of
seryices, adhere to business ethics and regulations
compliance, practice to the norm of best practices and
continuously improve the shareholders' value. | extend my
sincera thanks to you all for your continued support and
unwavering confidence on us. Through this program, |
would like to present to you the success and business
results of the Company in the fiscal year 2021-22.

In this auspicious moment, | remember with deep
respect the greatest Bangali of all times and the great
architect of independence and Father of the Nation
Bangabandhu Sheikh Mujibur Rahman and his family
members who were brutally killed on 15 August 1975.
Along with this, | remember with respect four MNational
Leaders, thirty lac martyrs and two lac mothers and
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sisters persecuted who sacrificed their lives 1o achieve
Independence of Bangladesh. Just six days before his
death on 9 August 1975, Father of the Nation
Bangabandhu Sheikh Mujibur Rahman took a
landmark step towards ensuring energy security in
Bangladesh. In the national interest, this day his
government bought the couniry’s five largest gas fields:
Titas, Bakhrabad, Rashidpur, Kailashtila and Habigan;
from the multinational oil company Shell Intemational
for Just Tk, 17.86 crore which current market value is
around Tk. 12.50 lakh crore. This step of the Father of
the Mation was the final Implementation of the
constitutional, legal and policy decision taken by him in
the national interest as part of the libaration struggle of
the Bengali nation. Therefore, every year Sth August is
celebrated as Mational Energy Security Day.

The energy and power sector is one of the driving
torces behind the overall development of a country.
According to the internationally recognized policy, In an
economy like Bangladesh, 1% GDP growth requires
1.8%-2% increase in fuel consumption. Some
landmark steps taken by Father of the WNation
Bangabandhu and some constitutional provisions, law
and policies regarding power and energy enacted by
his government are being considered as the main
foundation of energy security of this country.
Bangabandhu established permanent sovereignty over
natural resources in Article 143 Constitution to ensure
the energy security of the state. Bangabandhu formed
the Bangladesh Minerals, Oil and Gas Corporation
(EMOGC) on 26 march 1872 by Presidential Order No.
27 1o explore and develop the country's Qil, Gas and
Mineral resources. In 1974, it was abbreviated as
‘Petrobangla’. He enacted the Petroleum Act and
Petraleum policy in 1874 to modernize the energy
sector. As a result of wise leadership of Father of the
Mation Sheikh Mujiour Rahman, the Govt. of
Bangladesh took owver (A) Pakistan National Oil
Limited, Dawood Petroleum Limited, Burmah Eastem
Limited and Eastern Lubricants Blenders Limited
through Bangladesh Abandoned Property (Control,
Management and Disposal) order, 1972 (P.O. No. 18
of 1972) (B) Eastern Refinery Limited through
Bangladesh Industrial Enterprise (Nationalization)
order, 1972 (P.O, No. 27 of 1972} and (C) ESS0O
Eastern Inc. of USA through the ESSO Undertaking
Acquisition Ordinance, 1875 for the storage, supply,
distribution and sales of fuel oil under state
supervision. As a result of that landmark decision,
Padma Oil Company Limited, Meghna Petroleum
Limited, Jamuna Qil Company Limited, Eastem

21
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Refinery Limited and Eastemn Lubricants Blenders Limited
including Other companies became state owned
companies by establishing Bangladesh Petrolaum
Corporation (BPC) in 1976. All these companies are
playing major role in stocking, supplying and distributing
fuel in the country today. In & word, Father of the Mation
Bangabandhu provided the necessary energy security for
the economic development and prosperity of Bangladesh.

Padma Oil Company Limited is an ancient oil
marketing company. Its ancestral enterprise "Rangoon
Ol Company" began Petroleum business in the
Mineteenth century and was registered as a Joint Stock
Company in Scotland in 1871. This Company was
reformed as Burmah Qll Company in 1885. Burmah Qll
Company established their ‘Moheslkhal Oil Installation’
at Goshaildanga, Chattogram in the year 1903 and the
large scale Ol Instaliation at Guptakhal in Patenga in
1856. In the year 1965, Burmah Eastern Limited was
registered as a Public Limited Company under
Companies Act, 1913 and became a subsidiary
company of Bangladesh Fetroleum Corporation in
1877. In the year 1985, Burmah Eastern Limited
fransferred s entire share in favour of Bangladesh
Petroleum Corporation (BPC) and on 3 September
1888, Burmah Eastern Limited renamed as Padma Qil
Company Limited. Under the dynamic leadership of
Honorable Prime Minister Sheikh Hasina and her
instructions, Companies of BPC have ensured supply
of safe fuel in this country. The Company has come a
long way today due to the tireless efforts of the
esteemed shareholders and the workers and
employees of the Company since its iIncaption. So that,
| am grateful to all of them.

Business Environment in FY 2021-22:

The global economy was recovering strongly from the
COVID-19 pandemic in the reporting year. But the
ongoing world economic crisis is posing adverse impacts
on the recovery, As a result, some of the economic
segmenis of the country faced trouble in the year.
Bangladesh economy has achieved unprecedented
success over a long decade. After the GOP growth rate
of 7.00% above for three consecutive years from FY
2015-16, it reached at 8.15% in FY 2018-19 which is
appreciated all over the world. According to the final
gstimation of Bangladesh Bureau of Statistics (BEBS), the
growth rate of Gross Demestic Product (GDP) of the
country was 6.94% in FY 2020-21. According to the
provisional estimation of Bangladesh Bureau of Statistics
(BES), the country’s GDP growth rate is 7.25% in FY
2021-22. In the beginning of 2021-22 fiscal year, the
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decline in the COVID-19 outbreak led to an increage in
global economic activity. As a result, fuel prices in the
global market increased. Refined fusl prices rose
lurther in late February due to ongoing world ecanomic
crisis. In the reporied year, the total sales of petroleum
products In the country through the subsidiary
companles of Bangladesh Petroleum Corparation
amounted to 69.15 lakh metric tons, which was 83.00
fakh metric tons in the last fiscal year.

Business Performance in FY 2021-22:

The review shows that the volume of the Company’s
petroleum products sales increased by 4,04,727 metric
tons or 18.91% in FY 2021-22 as compared to the
previous fiscal year. The Company's sales volume of
petroleum products amounted to 2544 780 metric
tons, which was 21,40,053 metric tons in FY 2020-21.
In the reported fiscal year, the Company had a market
share of 36.80% in the country’s fuel oil marketing and
was ranked 1st among the oll marketing companles.
On the other hand, sales of agrochemicals products of
the company were 2,144 metric tons in the reported
year which was 1,875 mefric tons in the last year. As a
result, the profit before tax of the Company in this year
increased by 2.02% to Taka 298.53 crore from Taka
208263 crore of the previous year. Eamings per Share
(EPS) stood at Taka 24.47 in the reported year, as
against Taka 23.27 of the last year.

Progress of development works in FY 2021-22:

For expansion of business various projects are need
serving implemented undertaken by the company. A 23
storied head office building with two basements and
one semi-basement is under construction on Its own
0.42 acres of land in Agrabad commercial area of
Chattogram. Already two basements and semi-
basement work has already been completed. The work
of design modification has already been finalized.
Re-contracting with the contractor for execution of work
as per design modification is under process. An
agreement has been signed between the Company
and the selected contractor for the construction of a
12-storied modern residential cum commerecial building
with two additional basements on the Company's
1.B8-acre owned land at Paribag in Dhaka and the
construction of the bullding Is on going. Besides, the
Company has taken owver the ownership and
management of Cox's Bazar airport aviation depot
from Standard Asiatic Oil Company Limited In the
national interest. The government has planned to turn
Cox's Bazar airport into the fourth international airport
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after Dhaka, Chaltogram and Sylhet. It Is expected that
sales of the company's aviation fuel Jet A-1 will be
increased when Gox's Bazar airport will become an
international airport. In addition, automation activities
have been undertaken to modemize the operations of
three oil marketing companies’ main installation in
Chattogram including Padma Oil Company Limited. For
this purpose, an intemational consultant has already
been appointed. The feasibility study of the project is
underway by the consulting firm. Feed has already
been submitted by the consultant and is under review.
International EOls have been offered for appointment
of consullant for the purpose of automation of
operational activities in various depots established in
different places of the country in phases.

Besides, development projects like expansion of depot,
increase the capacity of fuel oll and physical
infrastructural expansion program have been
undertaken in order to ensure uninterrupted supply of
petroleum products throughout the country and
providing maore services to the consumer level.

Dividend:

We are working hard to increase the long-term
shareholders' value by our diligence and continuous
efforts due to our commitment to shareholders. This
year, the Board of Directors has recommended to pay
eash dividend to the honorable sharehaolders al the rate
of 125 % per share.

Our WMotto:

You know that fuel sector is the most important sector
of the economy. Microeconomic indicators are being
greatly influenced by the supply and change of price of
the petroleum products. Oil-marketing companies give
more priority towards the services of the people of
the country. Padma Oil Company Limited is a
marketing company of fuel oil and agrochemical
products. The Company is playing important role in the
overall economy of the country through the
uninterrupted supply of petroleum products all over the
country. Moreover, the Company has been contributing
to the agro based economy through the production and
marketing of agrochemicals products. The agricultural
sector is the most important sector in Bangladesh
economy. It employed a large portion of Bangladesh's
total labor force and according to the provisional
estimate of Bangladesh Bureau of Statistics (BBS), It
accounted for about 11.50 percent of GDP In FY 2021-22.

The main goal of the Company Is to ensure supply of
fuel oil to the doorsteps of the people on time at
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The main goal of the Company Is to ensure supply of
fuel oil to the doorsteps of the people on time at
government's fixed price through proper management
of the Company and 1o operate marketing activities in
organized way. Besides, the Company is also trying to
strengthen the supply of environmental-friendly and
guality agrochemicals products to increase the
production of agricultural products and providing
services to the consumers through organized
marketling activities.

Targets of the Company for the FY 2022-23;

The aim of the company for the FY 2022-23 will be to
ensure energy security of the country through
uninterrupted supply of quality petroleum products at
government regulated price. In addition, the
Company's aim Is 1o strengthen the supply of
environmental-friendly and quality agrochemical
products across the country to increase the country's
agricultural production. We want to lake forward the
projecis adopted by the Company to expand the
business. Above all, our goal for the next year is to
maximize the sharsholders’ value by eaming significant
groawth on profitability of the Company.

Thanks & Gratitude:

Finally, | would like to convey my sincere thanks and
profound gratitude to Energy & Mineral Resources
Division and Bangladesh Petroleum Caorporalion for
their cordial cooperation and proper directions. | would
also like to thank each member of the Board of
Directors for their collective efforls and the
management team, all the officials and staff of the
Company for their sincere efforts and supports. Without
their co-operations it was not possible for the Company
to achieve its desired goal. | express my gratitude to
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms,
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission,
Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd., Chittagong Stock
Exchange Ltd., Central Depository Bangladesh Lid.,
our auditors, customers and all well-wishers of the
Company for their continuous support and directions.

Khuda Hafez
Joy Bangla

(Md. Mahbub Hossain)
Chairman
POCL Board of Directars
&
Senior Secretary
Mineral and Resources Division
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Board of Directors' Report

Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim,
Dear Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum,

The Board of Directors of the Padma Qil Company
Limited takes immense pleasure to present the 53rd
Annual Report of the Company to our valued
shareholders. It is an honor for the Board of Directors
to present the Directors’ Report together with the
audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
year ended 30 June 2022 and the Auditors' Report
thereon to our valued shareholders for consideration
and approval. The Directors' Report contains an
overnview of the Bangladesh economy, Petroleum and
Agrochemicals Industries, the financial, operating and
corporate responsibility, performances of the Gompany
in FY 2021-22 and highlights the total position and
opportunity of the Company.

Preparation of Financial Statements:

The Financial Statements of POCL give a comect and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the
results of itz operation, cash flow and changes in
equity. The presented financial slatements have been
prepared in compliance with International Accounting
Standards (IASs) and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and in accordance with the relevant
requirements of the schedule to the Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, in conformity
with the Companies Act, 1994 and other applicable
laws and regulation in Bangladesh as per requirements
under the Financial Reporting Act 2015. It gives a
correct and fair view of the tolal business activilies of
the Company to our shareholders. The financial
statements are prepared by the management, audited
by external auditors appointed in the Annual Genaral
Meeting and approved by the Beard of Directors.

Economic Situation:

The glebal sconomy was recovering strongly from the
COVID-12 pandemic in the reported year. The
changed world economic scenaric has hampered
some financial sectors of our country. Due to the
increase in global commadity prices and slowdown in
economic activity, adverse effects are being observed
in the word economy. The increase in the price of fuel
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in the international market has created Infiationary pressure,
which has an impact on the economy of Bangladesh.

Befora the COVID-19 pandemic, Bangladesh exhibited
a steady and high GDP Growth, averaging 7.4 percent
per year during FY 2015-16 to FY 2018-19, and
reached a record 8.15 percent growth rate in FY
2018-19. However, the high growth rate was
hampered by the COVID-19 epidemic. Az a result, the
GDF growth In FY 2019-20 has slowed 1o 3.45
percent. According to the final estimates of BBS, the
GDP growth in FY 2020-21 was at 6.94 percent,
According to the provisional estimates of BBS, the
GDP growth in FY 2021-22 stood at 7.25 percent.
Remittance inflows decreased by 15.13% to USS
21.03 billion in the reported year from USS 24.78
billion of the previous year. The country's foreign
exchange reserve stood at US$ 41.83 billion as on
30.06.2022. The per capita national income rose by
USE 233 to USS 2,824 in the reported year from USS
2,591 in FY 2020-21. Average inflation rate in FY
2021-22 slood al 6.15 percent as against the targst of
5.8 percent. The average inflation rate in FY 2020-21
was 5.56 percent,

Industry Reviewr:
(a) Fuel Sector:

The organized management and uninterrupted supply
of fuel oil play a major role in the economic
development of the country. Fuel oil is the most driving
force of the economy which is regarding as the most
prioritized seclor. It has a greal influence directly or
indirectly in all economic sectors.

Increasing of fuel oil demand is the one of the main
indexes of the development. In 1972, the overall
demand of fuel oll in the country was 8.48 lakh metric
tons, which increased to 63.15 lakh metric tons in FY
2021-22. In the reported year, tolal sales of fuel ol of
the country increased by 9.77% to 69.15 lakh metric
tons from B83.00 lakh metric tons of the last year. In
order ta meeting the demand of fuel oil in the country
51.42 lakh metric tons of refined fus! oil and 14.66 lakh
metric tons of crude oil were imported from abroad in
FY 2021-22. 1t is to be noled here that crude ol is
being refined at Eastern Refinery Limited, the only one
in the country. Besides, 4.12 lakh metric tons of fuel oil
was produced by various local gas fields under public

i .-E-H_-;
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sector and different fractionation planis under private
sector. Of that, it was 1.25 lakh metric tons from
government gas fields and 2.87 lakh metric tons from
private fractionation plants.

Product wise sale of petroleum products in the country;

In the fiscal year 2021-22, the sales of different grades
of petroleum product in the country are as follows:

i e Quantity Percentage of
*iTelT T s (9.5) S (%) Product (in MT) Total Sagles
(G -y B3 ,048 .55 Jet A-1 4.28.024 6.19
o] o e, bod LT Octane 3,905,602 572
CTETET 8 A2k uaq LT Petinl 4.46.647 6.46
EasHE L] bels, 354 3o kerosene 86,117 1.25
e 8t 2o, 00 9o, 3¢ Diiesel 48,50.700 T0.15
AN SCET &,95,8b8 .29 Furnace il 5,.71.586 227
wFEE e a.od LD T3 0.01
efee Yo, o8 o, 5 JBO 10.394 0.15
e 5 B30 0.3k Lube Oil 19.911 0.29
WA 488 o.95 SBPS T4 0.01
o onn o.on MTT 6.399 0.09
wqereiteEr S ol 5,5 LPG 10,806 016
s ¢, 5n o,y Bitumen 55,092 0.81
e ET) 5,00 (irease 73 .00
catfee e ©3,3%3 0,88 Marine Oil 31,292 044
[ Bk, 8 F 030 Soo.oo Total 69,15,010 100100
AT G (ST ATeewer g Sector wise fuel consumption in the country:

AT T (O WEFIE 8 (5T 4y oA
T “Afaen, g, Mg e o e TeEe =

AR 20%0-3) € Yo3d-2y HNEER F[AYE GEARE
CETAT ATOETar [ M

N 0WWREF) () w-V@EF (%)

Eiil 5,d0k9q LU 5,9¢,508  JE8d
o o abuke  6.8p 0 800803 95
L bhe, 2y 33,499 u,E3,06L  So.ue
i B2.e5.09%  LLEY  oBLS,ANE  bABR
TR TN 2,80,3% 98»  edbRr  8.0b
oo bB,ME0d0 doo,0c  bBB,A%0 300,00

Most of the petroleum products in Bangladesh are
used in four major sectors namely {transport,
agriculture, industry and power. The detalls of the
petroleum products used in FY 2020-21 and 2021-22
are as follows:

{ Oty in MT)
Sector 2021-22 (%) 202021 (%)
Agriculture 11,50,877 16.64 975604 15.49
Industry 3,793,655 5.43 4 50,437 715
FPower 283,231 1277 652066 10.35
Transport 4259976 6161 3963725 G292
Domestic & Others 2,41 261 343 257898 408
Total 69.15,010 100.00 ©2,99,730 100.00
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Sector wise Petroleum Oil Sale - 2021-2022 (%)
61.61
16.64
Ag'iu.afture Indusiry Power Transport  Others
mﬁmﬁmﬁm e Division wise fuel consumption in the country:
3030-3) ¥ J03d-33 ﬂm iR W CHAE In the FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-22, division wise sales
Srerrai Ry fET: of petraleumn products in the country are as follows:
{ Qty in MT)

e wuR@® (%) we-B @ (%) pision 202122 (%) 202021 (%)
BEEM 38,3069 0.4 38.8bob3 o0 Chattogram 1425578 2062 1449097  23.00
e 328 580  wae 200,635 Sk Sylhet 224992 325 2,05,521 326
9k b sl S k8 0ok WEWE Dhaka 96,02066  38.94 22.58,369 4585
WEAPKE  b,%0,€%0 8% DUy 3 gmensingh 170570 247 166819 265
aﬂ.ﬁ B.BB g2 L.88 B Bhoeg 9.5 Rangpur 4,44,328 643 449,337 7.13
& il 0,08 .k bobHR ok ., 798045 1156  T.60882  12.08
afirtre RAREEE  0BE WG BV paigy 072545 393 282129 418
i Up,5¢,050 300,00 355,99 500,00 Total 69,15010 100.00  62,99,730  100.00
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Division wise Petroleum Oil Sale - 2021-2022 (%)
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Sale and Market Share of Fuel Oil Marketing Companies:

The details of the sale and market share of three major
marketing companies under Bangladesh Petroleum
Corporation are as follows in the fiscal year 2021-22:

Company's Total sale Market
MName {MT in lakh) Share (%) Pasition
Fanma il Compary Lid. 25,45 36.80 1st
Mlzghna Petroleurn Lid. 2448 35.40 2nd
damuna Ol Corgany Lid. 18.65 26.97 ard

Market Share (%) 2021-2022

Transport pool of fuel oil marketing companies:

At present, there are 89 costal tankers, 03 shallow draft
tankers and 72 bay crossing shallow draft tankers and
14 mini oll tankers in three fuel oil marketing companies'
transport pool of petroleum products. Of them, POCL
has 35 cosial tankers, 26 bay crossing shallow draft
tankers and 04 mini oll tankers in the POCL's transport
pool of petroleum products. It Is mentionable here that
about 90% of the fuel oil is transported through the
river, 8% fuel oil is transported by railway and rest of
2% fuel oil is transported on the road.

Marketing network of fuel oil marketing companies:

At present, there are 2,288 filling stalions, 2,710
agents/distributors, 669 packed point dealers, 2,752
LPG dealers and 113 marine dealers in the marketing
network of 3 (Three) fuel oil marketing companies in the
country. Besides, Standard Asiatic Oil Company Limited
has 371 LPG dealers. POCL has 710 filling stations, B54
agents/distributors, 215 packed point dealers, 731 LPG
dealers and 46 marine dealers in its marketing network.
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Particular Total  Padma Oll Co.Ltd.  Propetionse Rale %)
Number of Filling Siation 2288 710 31.03
[umber of AgertDsbputr -~ 2710 854 .51
Humber ¢l Pagked Pori Demer BED 215 32.14
Mumber of LP Gash Dealer 3123 7 23.41
Mumber of Marne Dealar 113 48 40,71
Total 8903 2556 28.71

(b) Agrochemicals Sector of the Country:

There is no alternative but to increasing the agricultural
production in this country of agro based economy. It is
essential to use modern agricultural inputs such as
high breed seeds and fertilizer as well as pesticides to
increase production. In order to meet the focd demand
of the country's growing population, there has been
created a market of pesticides along with
modernization of agriculture. More than 450 domestic
and multi-national companies including Padma Qil
Company Limited have been marketing various types
of pesticide products In this country which are
contributing significantly to the production and
preservation of agricultural crops. In FY 2020-21, the
sales wvolume of agrochemicals products in
agrochemicals industry was about 35,000 melric tons
which stood at 37,000 metric tons in FY 2021-22.

At present, the Company has marketed 43
agrochemicals products. Of these, 18 products are
registered in the name of the Company and the
remaining products are from various multinational
companies such as BASF Bangladesh Limited,
Haychem Bangladesh Limiled and Riceco Bangladesh
Limited. Agrochemicals pesticides are playing a vital
role in Bangladesh agriculture. Several research
studies have shown thal use of pesticide products
contributes significantly to increase the productivity
and production of agricultural producis.

POCL Activities:

The principal activities of the Company are
procurement, storage and marketing of petroleum
products, lubricating & greases, biltumen and LPG. In
addition, the Company has been engaged with
marketing of agrochemicals products. Thus, the
Company’s business has two reportable segments (a)
Fetroleum and (b) Agrochemicals.
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Company’s Business performance (2021-22):

(a) Petroleum Products:

The Company's total sales volume of petroleum
products was 2544 780 metric tons as against
21,40,053 metric tons in the last year. The Company's
fuel oil sales increased by 18.91% in FY 2021-22 over
the laslt year. In the corresponding year, among the
petroleum products, sales of Octane increased by
33.51%, Aviation fuel 82.15%, MS 13.65%, Diesel
9.04%, LDO 40.47%, Furnace oil 16.24%, SBPF
25.88%, Marine oil 165.02% and MTT B8.13%. On the
other hand, in the reporfing year Kerosene decreased
by 14.72%, Jute batching oil 7.59%, Bitumen 28.90%
and LPG 5.54%.

(b) Agrochemicals Products:

During the vyear under review, the Company's
agrochemicals sales stood at 2,144 metric tons as
against 1,875 metric tons in the last yvear. The sales of
lhe Company's agrochemicals producls decreased by
269 metric tons or 14.35% In the year under raview
compared to the previous fiscal year,

Company's Distribution Network:

Padma Oil Company Limited has a strong marketing
network across the country. There are 2,556
distributors in the Company at different levels in the
country’s important place in the marketing network of
petralaum products as on 30.06.2022 as follows:
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On the other hand, the Company empleys 373
licensed agrochemicals distributors across the country
and supplies products lo farmers through about 10,000
licensed vendors.
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Company’s Depot Network:

Currently there are 21 depots of the Company across
the country including Main Installation to operate the
Company's operational activities. Of these, there are a
Main Installation, 9(nine) Riverine depots, 6(six)
Rall-head depots, 4(four) Aviation depots and another
one depot for receiving fuel oil directly through pipeline
from Brahmanbaria Gas Field. The Company is solely
supplying aviation fuel Jet-A-1 to the domeslic and
overseas aircrafts at three international airports (Hazrat
Shahjalal International Airport, Dhaka, Hazrat Shah
Amanat International Airport, Chattogram and Osmani
International Alrport, Sylhet). More over, the Company
has taken over the ownership and management of
Cox's Bazar airport. Besides, the Company operates its
marketing activities of agrochemicals products through
13 depots across the country.

Company'’s Storage Capacity:

According to the National Energy Policy-2004, the
strategic reserves of fuel oil of the country should be
maintained for 80 days. To this end, BPC and iis
subsidiary companies have bundled up various
reserve growth activities. It may be mentioned that the
countny’s fuel oll storage capacity was about 9.00 lakh
metric tons in the fiscal year 2009-10 which has beaen
gradually increased. In the last one decade, this
capacity has been increased by about 4.10 lakh metric
tons and It stood 13.10 lakh metric tons In FY 2021-22,

The storage capacities of Diesel, Octane, Petrol, Jet
A-1 and Furnace oil across the country are  6,05,180
metric tons, 47,875 metric tons, 34,727 metric tons,
62,675 metric tons and 1,42,134 metric tons
respectively. Considering the average sales volume, [t
ic possible to keep stock of products ie. Diesel,
Octane, Petrol, Jet A-1 and Fumace oil for 43 days, 35
days, 22 days, 62 days and 59 days respectively.

The projects of (1) ‘Installation of Single Point Mooring
(SPM) with double pipeline' (2) 'India-Bangladesh
Friendship Pipeline {((IBFPL)' (3) Jet A-1 pipeline from
Pitolganj (near Kanchan Bridge) to Kumitola Aviation
Depot {(KAD) including pumping facilities', and (4) 'Fuel
oil transport in pipeline from Chattograin to Dhaka' are
under implementation. After implementation of these
project, the total siorage capacity of fuel oil will be
increased about 2.98 lakh metric tons.
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Of the total storage capacity of petroleum products of the
subsidiary companies under Bangladesh Pelroleum
Corparation in the country, there are 5.00 lakh metric tons
storage capacity of Eastern Refinery Limited, 2.89 |akh
metric tons storage capacily of Padma Oil Company
Limited, 2.33 lakh metric tons storage capacity of Meghna
Patroleum Limited and 2.22 lakh metric tons storage
capacity of Jamuna Oil Company Limited. The storage
capacity of fuel oil at Main Installatien and various depots
of the Company as on 30 June 2022 js as follows:
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Depot Name Storage Capacity ( Gty In MT)
Main Inatallation, Ghattegram 144,002
Godenall Depot, Marayangon| 30,771
Draulatpur Depot, Khulna 24831
Mongla Qil Installation, Mongla 31.601
Baghabari Depot, Sirajgon) 22,114
Chandpur Depot, Chandpur 4,312
Ashugan] Depot, Brahmanbaria 2 741
Brahmanbaria Deapot 2,817
Bhairab Barar Depot B4
Sylhet Depot 2048
Srimangal Dopaot 1.104
Farbatipur Depot 5421
Rangpur Depot f=Ta i
Matore Depot Baa
FRajshahl Depot Supply directly trom Ralhway Wagon
Barishal Barge Depol, Barishal GTe
Jhalakati Depoat 2,901
Kurmitola Aviation Depat B,4759
Osmaeani Intemational Airpoer Depot 1,026
Shah Amanat Intzrnational Alrport Depot fal=ld
Total 2,89, 368

Financial Result: 2021-22;

The Directors take immense pleasure in repering the
following financial results of the Company for the yvear
ended 30 June 2022;

(T Brr) Taka in crore
Rt 0333 203038 (FA)AR () particutars 20212022 202021 (fecmsafinresss
LTS <77 (A = JoR.oh BDUNY b B Gross prafit on petreieum products 234,39 21619 B.45
conlirierary ety B WA aye.Ar 4.0t Mt prafit an petroleum procts 21819 21375 z.08
eifrETeT oy {28509) (2i8.hy) w8 Operating expenses (24167 (21496 12.43
R AT SREEE TR (39.8b)  (3.33)  dogo Operating Proft on petroleum (23.48) (1.21) 184050
T AR S Yepf  BE.AE BE.¢Y COithir coerating Ireame 7B.95 4524 7451
AT TR R (ar8) (w.88) (9.80) Oparating loss o Agrchemica’s trading (2.84) (294 (3,40
e ’ﬁ'ﬂ”ﬁrw =Bl B3k 2, b Tatal operating profit 52.64 41,10 28,08
weEEET W asdld Ablno (5.58) Men-cperating Income 26161 28693 (1.99)
BT o g edB.3E  Ook,o0 4.0% Proft betore WPPF 31424 308.03 2.02
BlgEiHer.a om ey (3e.8o) sab Conrbution to WEPF METH (15.40) 2.0
T A Ahbree awabe R Profit betare Income tax 20A53 23253 202
HEEE T (36} (3.00) (=30} Provisicn for Income Tax 15815 (6408 (%18}
FATE T oo Ao E.5¢ Net profit after Tax 24048 228,60 5.15
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Financial Review:

A financial review on the Company's financial results in
FY 2021-22 has described balow:

Gross Earnings on Petroleum Products:

In financial year 2021-22, Gross Earnings on
petroleurn products stood at taka 234.39 crore with an
increment of 8.45% compared with taka 216.12 crore
of the previous year.

Net Earnings on Petroleum Products:

The Company's Net Earnings on petroleum products is
Taka 218.19 crore in FY 2021-22 that was Taka
213.75 crore in the previous fiscal year, registering an
increase rate of 2.08%.

Operating loss on Agrochemicals Trading:

During the year under review, the operating loss in the
agrochemicals business was Taka 2.B4 crore as
against Taka 2.94 crore in the last year. During the
year under review, operating loss in this business
decreased by 3.40% comparing with the last vear. All
activities are confinuing to make the agrochemicals
business profitable.

Total Operating Expenses:

Total operating expenses were Taka 241.67 crore in
the reported year as against Taka 214.98 crore in the
last vear.

Total Operating Profit:

Ouring the year under review, total operating profit was
Taka 52.64 crore as against Taka 41.10 crore of the
last year, showing an increase of 28.08%.

Mon-operating Income:

Mon-operating income was Taka 261.61 crore In FY
2021-22 which is 1.99% lower than Taka 266.93 crore
of the last year.

Met Profit before Income Tax:
Met Profit before Income Tax increased by 2.02% to

Taka 298.53 crore in FY 2021-22 from Taka 292.63
crore in the previous fiscal year.

i
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20 Met Profit after Tax:

2083-33 WEIRT TG T T AW v Net Profit after tax increased to SOk ERIN0A Roen in
; o : _ . FY 2021-22 fromn Taka 228.60 crore of the preceding

s BT e ¢3¢ % % oo AT 280,90 A BRTI year registering an increase of 5,15 percent,

ot Returns:

() FEwRT = wrete: (I) Returns On Assets:

wyees] wefemty @O o wieis S 2.38%, F te Retum on Assets stood at 2.14% in FY 2021-22 which
wdfaerg fem 9. 890% | was 2.43% in the last year.

Return on Assets (%)

C2018-2019
20192020
2020-2021
2021-2022
(3) B = Tfif: (if) Returns On Equity:

o wfeary RO w TRl fow ve.eq%, W e wdagw  Return on Equity was 13.57% during the year that was
27 so.va% | 13.82% in the last year.
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ot & Earnings per Share (EPS):

w0l T, Y032 HMEMH @yt (e ofe Sy @wwe EPS stood at Taka 24.47 as on 30 June 2022, which
32.89 BIG, 47 T8 wo T & 303 R B so.na By WAs Taka 23.27 in the |ast year.

-

Earning Per Share (Amount in Taka)

2327

24.47

2021-22 'EEI‘E E'-Ei} EEH 8-19 20171 B

-

ot 2ffs i weifE e Met Assets value per share:
@ BIE ANE SR A
q‘?% ‘B%Q:;g T A Svo.o TR TS T Net Assels value per share recorded at Taka 180.38

. ¢ as on 30 June 2022 compared to Taka 168.41 of the
e i kel cHE afe 56 previous year, showing an increase of 7.11 percent.

Foe{fER Y 9,55 M1 I (ETE |
Net Asselts Value Per Share (Amount in Taka)
L i 168.41
157.64
142.85
126.78
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Dividend:

Shareholders’ return is always key priority to the Board
of Directors of the Company. The Board is pleased fo
recommend to pay 125% percent cash dividend l.e.
per share Taka 12.50 to the shareholders for the year
2021-22. The recommended dividend if approved by
the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting Taka
122.79 crore will be distributed among the

shareholders.

Particulars Amount in Crore Taka
Met Profit available for appropriation 23218

Board's recomimendation for appropriation;

125% Cash Dividend 12279
Transfer to Retained Earnings 109.37

~

Shareholding Position (%)

[n35
B

=

16.04 13.91
8.57 l 5T g5

PC Public Private ) Foreign  Individuals
Investors
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Shareholders' Equity:

The Company’s Board of Directors s constantly trying
to raise the Company's growth and promote the
interests of Shareholders. But due to reguireament of
huge money for Company's future planning, a major
portion of the Company's net profit is being transferred
to the Retained eamings. Shareholders’ Fund
increased by Taka 117.59 crore or 7.11% to Taka
1,771.24 crore from Taka 1,654.35 crore as per
financial staternents for the year ended 30 June 2022.
Paid up capital of Padma Qil Company Limited was
Taka 98.23 crore in the reperting year. The strong
positien in Shareholders’ fund will enable the Company
to expand its business in future,

Significant variance in the quarterly and audited
annual Financial Statements:

There was no significant variance between guarterly
performance and overall annual performance.

Related Party Transactions:

During the year, the Company carried out a number of
transactions with related parties in the normal course
of business in accordance with the provisions of
[AS-24, Details of related pariies transactions as on
30.06.2022 have been disclosed under Note No.-37.00
of the Financial Statements.

Protection of Shareholders:

The minorty shareholders’ interest of the Company
have always been protected through the efficient
handing of management. The Gompany is fully
committed to the fair and equal treatment to all kKind of
shareholders. We are always active to create a culture
=o that the minority shareholders shall have the rights
to propose items in the agenda of the general meeting.
The minority shareholders have access to any and all
information relating to matters for which the
management is accountable for and should disclose to
the sharsholders. All these activilies are taken for
insuring the lawful interest of minority shareholders.

Shareholders' Value and Market Price Information:
The Padma OIl Company Lid. remains fully committed
to delivery of higher shareholders’ wvalue. The

Company encourages to invest in the share of the
Company by offering profits at reasonable rates to

------
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shareholders. The Board of Directors has recommendad
to pay cash dividend to the honorable shareholders at
the rate of 125 % in this year. Reported Markel price of
share of POCL in Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited was
Taka 214.10 on close of the last trading day on
30.06.2022 which was Taka 203.80 on close of the [ast
trading day of the last fiscal year. Market capitalization
stood at Taka 210316 crore as on 30 June 2022
which was Taka 2,001.98 crore on 30 June 2021,

Board leeting & Remuneration of the Directors:

The Board meets regular basis lo discharge Hs
responsibilities. Mumber of Board Meeting held in FY
2021-22 and the attendance & remuneration of each
director shown in Annexure-1.

Shareholding Pattern:
The shareholding pattem is annexed at Annexure-2,
Key Operating & Financial Data of preceding 5 years:

Key operating & financial data of preceding 5 years is
attached in Annexure-3.

Declaration by the CEO & the CFO:

Declaration by the CEO and the CFO to the Board as
required under caondition MNo.2 (3) of Corporate
Governance Code issued by BSEC has been attached
in Annexure- A,

Corporate Governance:

The core principles of corporate governance are
lransparency, accountability and responsibililies with
fair principles. To Padma Oil Company Limited,
corporate  governance means increasing the
shareholders' value by being efficient, transparent and
professional; accountable to the government and the
society, and responsive to the environmental issues.
Maximizing wvalue for shareholders through
performance with best practices is the responsibility of
corporate management. Bangladesh Securities &
Exchange Commission has issued the conditions
regarding Corporate Governance (MNotification Mo.
BSEC/CMRRCD /2008-158 /207/ admin/80 dated
03-06-2018) for the companies listed with Stock
Exchanges. The Company has adequately complied
with all the conditions of Corporate Governance Code
of BSEC, listing regulations of DSE and CSE and rules
& regulations of other regulatory bodies. The cerlificate
provided by the professional accountant and status of
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compliance with the conditions of the Corporate
Governance Code-2018 issued by the Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission are aftached in

Annexure ‘B’ and ‘C’ of this Direclors' Report.
Management Discussion & Analysis:

A Management discusslon and analysls signed by
Marnaging Director regarding the Company's operation
and overall marketing and financial position of the
Company has been attached in Annexure- ‘T

Board of Directors:

At present, the Board consists of nine directors. Out of
nine directors, two directors are Independent directors,
ancther one director is Shareholder director elected
from the remaining shareholders except BPC and rest
of six directors are nominated by BPC/Ministry. It is
mentionable here that of the Company's paid-up
capital, b0.35 percent belongs to BPGC and the
remaining 49.65 percent to institutional and general
investors. Board of Directors comprised of the
members of highly educated and professional
qualification in the field of business and administrative.
This has given strength for effective discharge of
duties and responsibility by the Board. The Company’s
Management operates the Company's activities within
the policies, manual and limitz approved by the Board,
Board Meeting is being held regularly. As per direction
of Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission,
Board has one Audit Committee and one Nomination &
Hemuneration Committee.

Audit Committee:

Audit Committee of Padma Oil Company Limited
comprises of three members of the Board nominated
by the Board of Directors and operates according to
the charter of the committee approved by the Board
bazed on Bangladesh Securitiee & Exchange
Commission’s Corporate Governance Code. The
objective of the committee is to ensure the Company’s
operation through proper and adequate internal
contrel. The Committee reviews the financial
statements of the Company and makes
recommendations.

Momination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):

Az per Bangladesh Securities & Exchange's Comporate
Governance Code-2018 the Board has formed the NRC.
The MRC of Padma Oil Company Limited comprises of
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three members of the Board nominated by the Board of
Directors. NRC operates according to the charter of the
Commitiee approved by the Board on the basiz of
Bangladesh Securities & Exchange commission’s
Corporate Gavernance Code.

Chairman of the Board, CEQ, CS & HIAC:

The Chairman of the Board, Managing Director cum
CEOQ, Chief Financial Officer (CFQ), Company Secretary
(CS) and Head of Intemal Audit & Compliance (HIAC) of
the Company are the different personalities.

Contribution to National Exchequer:

Padma Oil Company Limited has contributed
significantly to the National Exchequer. As per law, the
Company deducts taxes and VAT at sources and other
levies from the various payments and services and
deposits the same to government exchequer, Besides,
the Company also pays tax on its eamings. Total
payment to gavernment excheguer during FY 2021-22
is as follows:
Taka In Crore

Particulars POCL Onbehaltof BFC  Total

Income Tax 63.31 103.37 166.68
VAT 116.05 2,201.68 2.317.74
Custorms Duty 0.72 516,868 517.58
DsC 0.0046 0.0024  0.0070
Fort dues 1122 oo 11.22
Total 191.31 2,821.92 3,013.23

Retirement & Re-nomination of Directors:

As per Companies Act, 1994 and Adicles of Association
of the Company, one-third of the direclors relire by
rotation from the office of directors and retiring directors
are eligible for re-appointment. Mr. Md. Mahbub Hoseain,
Chainnan and Mr. Suzadur Rahman, Director will be
retired from the Board in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. Both of them are eligible for re-appointment
and have already been re-nominated by BPC subject to
the approval of the shareholders at AGM.

Independent Director:

There are two Independent Directors on the Board of
Directors of the company as per guidelines of BSEC's
corporate governance code. Al present, Mr. Bashudeb
Ganguly and Quazi Md. Anwarul Hakim are two
Independent Directors of the company.
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Appointment of Auditors:

At the 52nd Annual General Meeling M/s. Khan
Wahab Shafigue Rahman & Co., Charered
Accountants and M/s. Hussain Farhad & Cao.,
Chartered Accountants were appointed as external
joint auditors of the company for the FY 2021-22.
According to the Companies Act, 1994, both the firms
will retire at this Annual General Meeling.

REPORT 2021-2022

Among them, M/s. Hussain Farhad & Co., Chartered
Accountants are eligible for re-appointment for auditing
in FY 2022-23 according to the Companies Act, 1994,
The firm has already expressed its willingness for
reappeintment of company’s audit in FY 2022-23. On
the other hand, M/s. Khan Wahab Shafigue Rahman &
Co., Chartered Accountants are not eligible for
re-appointment in FY 2022-23 as per BSEC's
notification MNo. SEC/CFD-71/ 2001/ Admin/02/05
dated 03/01/2002 as the above firm has been
completed 3 years of auditing consecutively. Under the
above circumstances, as a major shareholder of the
company Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BFC)
has nominated M/s. M. M Rahman & Co., Charterad
Accountants in place of M/s. Khan Wahab Shafique
Hahman & Co., Chartered Accountants along with M/s.
Hussain Farhad & Co., Chartered Accountants as
external joint auditors of the company for the FY
2022-23 for the approval of Hon'ble Shareholders in
the ensuing AGM.

Professional Accountant for Compliance of Corporate Governance:

Pursuant to the BSEC’s direclive, a proposal for
appointment of a professional Accountant, to issue
cerificate on compliance of Corporate Governance
Code for the year ending on 30 June 2023, will be
placed for the approval of honorable shareholders in
the ensuing AGM.

Publication and Communication with the Shareholders:

The Company gives high priority on timely publication
and submission of the statutory reports i.e. Quarterly,
Half-yearty and Annual Financial Statements in details
enabling the regulatory bodies and existing & potential
shareholders to make a fair assessment on Company’s
overall performance. The Board discusses and gives
directives to the management to ensure the compliance
of Bangladesh Security & Exchange Commission's
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rules & regulations regularly. All the price sensitive
information having any possible iinpact on share prices
of the Company and all financial statements are
communicated to the shareholders by publications in
the national dailies, online news portal and Company's
website. The Annual General Meeting also creates on
oppoertunity for communication with shareholders.

Human Resources Management:

FOCL is fully aware of the fact that its significant
growth and success is an outcome of the contribufions
and commitment of the Company's experienced and
skilled human resources. The high caliber, dedicated
and efficient people are a source of competitive
advantage for the business and the Company is fully
focused on the important aspect.

In order to increase the personal skills of the
Company’s officers and employees and meet the
professional needs, the Company organizes training
for them to develop skilled manpower. POCL is
providing its officers and employees opportunities for
continuous development and leamning through various
in-house and external courses. At present, 229 officers
and 701 employees of the Company are working
across the country. The Company has institutionalized
a program of recruitment process under Recruitment
Policy approved by BPC, through competitive
examination. The objective |s to aftract the best talent
for the Company's future leadership.

Health, Safety & Environment:

The Company always considers safety as investment.
At POCL safely is considered as a prime concern and
given due importance regarding operating of sensitive
fuel cil. We believe that all accidentsfincidents are
preventable and our first aim Is excellence In Health
and Safety standards In all POCL businesses.
Reportable injuries and incidents analysis reflect the
performance of an organization with respect to work
place safety. During the FY 2021-22, there Is no
reported injury incident in POCL.

Corporate Soclal Responsibility:

Corporate Soclal Responsibllity (CSR) differs from
place to place and industry to industry. Padma Oil
Company Limited is one of the largest petroleum
marketing companies as weill as one of the
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agrochemicals marketing cnmpamas in the muntn.r As
a public limited company, its main goal is to serve the
people. Therefore, the Company iz serving to the
people by carrying out uninterrupted supply of
petroleum products at government regulated price
round the clock in all areas of the country.
Mevertheless, POCL is also playing an important role
towards the agro-based economy of the country through
its production and marketing of agrochemicals products.

In addition to providing professional services, POCL is
committed to the society for the socio-economic
development of the country. The Gompany established
a school at main installation, Guptakhal in Patenga
area named, 'Padma Oil Child Couching School' in the
year 1992, As such, the boys and giris of that area are
getting an opportunity to study in the school at a low
cost, The school was up to the class V. In order to
improve the quality education and upgradation, the
school was renamed as '‘Padma oil Model School' on
01 Movember 2014 and the school was upgraded to
Class VIl on 01 January 2015. At present, the number
of student of the school is 300 plus. Besides,
accarding to the policy of the Corporate Social
Hesponsibility (CSR), the Company donated total Taka
10.65 lakh to various schools, religious institutions and
welfare organizations/foundations during FY 2021-22,

On Going Program:

The Board of Directors takes it a pleasure to inform
valued shareholders thal warious development
programs have been undertaken for business
gxpansion and smooth supply of fuel to the public by
eslablishing new depots, slorage lanks and other
physical infrastructures.

These are namely;

1) A 23 storied head office building with two
basements and one semi-basement s under
canstruction on its own 0.42 acres of land in Agrabad
commercial area of Chattogram. Basement and
sami-basement work has already been completed. The
work of design modification has already been finalized.
Re-contracting with the contractor for execution of
wark as per design modification Is under process.

2) Tha work for construction of a 12-storied modern
residential cum commercial building with two additional
basements on the Company’s 1.88-acre owned land at
Paripag in Dhaka is going on,

A
%rr
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3) An intemational tender was floated earlier for the
appointment of a contractar for the work of the project
for installation of Jet A-1 underground pipeling through
Jahurul Hague Base, Bangladesh Alr force, Chattogram
and Shah Amanat Airport, Chattogram fo supply Jet A-1
fuel to the Company's Jet A-1 depot adjoining Shah
Amanat Airport through pipaline from the Company's
Main Insiallation in Patenga. The re-tendering including
re-evaluation of the project is under process as the bids
received are much higher than the estimation bids.

4) A project fitled “Jet A-1 Pipeline from Pitolgan| (near
Kanchan Bridge) to Kurmitola Awviation Depot (KAD)
including Pumping Facilities" for easy, safe and
environmentally friendly oil transportation from
Pitolganj, Narayanganj to Kurmitola Aviation depot with
BPG funding and management of Padma Qil Company
Limited has been adopted. The instaliation work of 15
km pipeline has already been completed and the
construction of Jet A-1 depot at Pitolgan] is in
progress. If the project is implemented, the supply of
Jet A-1 at Hazrat Shahjalal International Alrport will be
ensured as per the increased demand and the
Company will benefit financially.

5) Automation activities have been undertaken to
modernize the operations of three oil marketing
companies’ main installation in Chattogram including
Padma Oil Company Limited. For this purpose, an
international consultant has already been appointed.
The feasibility study of the project is underway by the
cansulting firm. Feed has already been submitted by
the consulting firm and is under review.

B8) International EQls have been offered for
appointment of consultant for the purpose of
autoination of operational activities in various depots
established in different places of the country in phases.

7) In order to expand the business of the Company,
construction work of permanent riverine depot in place of
barge depot at Bhairab Bazar has been started and
construction work of foundation of & tanks has already
been completed. Construction of the tanks will begin soon.

Future action plans to increase the Company's Operating Capability:

1) To construct a permanent riverine depot in place of
barge depot at Barisal;
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2) To consiruct two storage tanks of fuel oil 10,000
metric tons' storage capacity each at the Company’s
Main Installation, Guptakhal;

3) Construction of full phases aviation depol including
land arrangement as well as infrastructure with
international standard facilites at Sayedpur, Jashore
and Cox's Bazar airports after feasibility study for
supplying of aviation Jet A-1 fuel;

4) To increase storage capacity of fuel oll according to
the demand;

5) To bring sales and accounts related activities of the
Company's all offices/installation/depots under automation;

6) To modernize fire fighting facilities In the Company’s
Main Installation and depots; and

71 Acguisition and implementation of financing
profitable projects in the Company's owned unused
land at different places in the country.

Industrial Relation:

The industrial relation of the Company was remained
harmonious and peaceful during the year. The
Company has been taking initialives for exploiting the
inherent strengths of its people and improving the work
culture and operating & maintenance practices.

Acknowledgements:

Finally, we would like to thank to our honorable
shareholders for having confidence upon us. Your
support is the driving force behind the growth and
development of our business. On behalf of the Board
of Directors, | would also like to take this opporiunity o
recall with appreciations for the support and
cooperation we have received from Energy and
Mineral Resources Division, Ministry of Power, Energy
and Mineral Resources of the Government of the
Feople’s Republic of Bangladesh; Bangladesh
Petroleum Corporation; Registrar of Joint Stock &
Companies and Firms; Bangladesh Securities &
Exchange Commission;, Dhaka Stock Exchange
Limited; Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited; Central
Depository Bd. Limited; our valued Customers and
everyone, the Company is connected to In conducting
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its business. | thank for the commitment, dedication
and hard work of the Company's employees and
officers who are core to our success. | hope that our
Company will go ahead towards the success in future
also with all your commitment and cordial cooperation.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors-

(Wd. Mahbub Hossain)
Chairman
POCL Board of Directors
) &
Senior Secretary
Energy and Mineral Resources Division
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ANNEXURE-1

Padma Oil Company Limited

i. Directors' Declaration

The Directors also report that:

a} The financial slatements of the Company present a true and fair view of the Company's slate of
affairs, result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

b} Proper books of accounts as reguired by law have been maintained.

c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial
statements and that the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgement.

d)} The financial statements were prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards
(IAS) as applicable in Bangladesh.

e} The Internal Control System is sound in design and effectively implemented and monitored.

fi  There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concemn.

ii.  The number of Board Meeting and the Attendance & Remuneration of Directors during the year 2021-2022

Name of Directors Designation %T;“:hh;lgﬂ Nﬂ"""&' 'dm"““ “";::’1'_:&"“"

Mr. Md Mahbub Hossain Chairman 06 06 48,000
Mr. Md Anisur Rahman Ex-Chairman 08 08 64,000
Mr Bashudeb Ganguly Ingependent Divector 06 06 48,000
Mr. Md. Ekhlasur Rahman Ex-Director 05 05 40,000
IMr Kabirul ezdani Khan Director 09 09 72,000
Dr. Mohd. Sher Ali Director 14 13 104,000
Mr. Quazi Md, Anwarul Hakim Independent Director 14 14 112,000
Mr. Kazi Mohammad mozammel Hogue | Director 14 14 112,000
Mr. K.M. Eneyetul Karim Exindeperdent Direchor 08 o7 56,000
Mr. Nasiruddin Akhter Rashid Shareholder Dirschor 14 14 112,000
Mr. Suzadur Rahman Director 14 14 112,000
Mr. Md. Masudur Rahman Ex-Managing Dracloe 14 14 112,000

Total | 992,000
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ANNEXURE-2

Pattern of Shareholding as on 30 June 2022

1 | NAME OF THE SHAREHOLDERS Nos. of Share| P
A | BANGLADESH PETROLEUM CORPORATION 49455666

UNITED ENTERPRISES & CO LTD 2023617
B | PUBLIC INSTITUTIONS:

AGRANI BANK LTD 560173

JANATA BANK LIMITED 1789556

SONALI BANK LIMITED 921000

BASIC BANK LTD 192180

BANGLADESH SHILPA BANK 346414

BDBL 208486

BANGLADESH SHILPA RIN SANGSTHA 2299780

BANGLADESH COMMERCE BANK 30000

BANGLADESH SAMABAYA BANK LTD. 196465

BANGLADESH FUND 1675625 B219679 8.37
c |IcCB:

ICB 7726218

ICB UNIT FUND 460285

ICE BOND 269644

ICB PORTFOLIO- RAJSHAHI 123140

OTHERS 823870 9403157 9.57
D | PRIVATE INSTITUTIONS: 14620358 14.88
E. | FOREIGN INVESTORS 843067 0.86
F. | INDIVIDUALS (BANGLADESHI) 13667206 13.91

98232750 100
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Particular Nos. of Share| "Sf°Gh=E® |  Remarks
(ii) | Chairman, Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company
Secretary, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Head of
Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children :
Chairman ;
Ir. Md. Mahbub [ossain - - Nominated
by BPC
Directors:
Mr. Bashudeb Ganguly - - Independent
Director
Mr. Kabirul Ezdani Khan - - Nominated by
BPC
Mr. Qruazi Md. Anwaral Haldm - - Independent
Director
Mr. Kazi Mohammad Mozammel Hoque Nomimated by
BPC
Md. Zakar Hossain - - Do
Mr. Nasiruddin Akhter Rashid 2023617 2.06 Shareholder
Director
blr. Suzadur Fahman - - Nominated by
BFC
Mr. Md. Abu Saleh Igbal - - Do
Chief Executive Officer and his spouses & minor
children:
Mr. Md. Abu Saleh 1gbal - -
Company Secretary and his sponse & minor children;
Mr, Noman Abmed Taffader - -
CFO and his spouse & minor children:
b, Kanchan Chandra Shom, FCMA - -
Hend of Internal Audit and his Spouse & minor children:
Mi. A K.M Fazle Elahee 110 -
(i) Executives (Top fve salaried persons other than
CLO, CFO, C8, HIA).
1. Mr. Md. Shahidul Alam GM (HE & Admin) 1.000
2, Mr, Md. Abdus Sobhan GM (Ops & Planning) - -
3. Mz C.M Ziaul Hassan DGM (Engg. & Plannmg) - -
4. Dr. Md. Alamgir Chowdhury Chief Medical Officer - -
5. Mr. Ehejkh Al-MMamun DGM (Avn.) 1,200 -
(iv) | Shareholding ten percent (10%) or more voting
interest in the company,
1. Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation 40455666 5035




bl
—
ANNURL REPORT 2021-2022
ANNEXURE-3
Five years Performance at a glance
Taka in Lac
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 201920 2018-19 201718
a Tangible fizcd asscts 27,400,589 2390380 23,205.76 2377707 2247317
.8 |Iovestment - Lone Temm 59.822.01 16,013.30 - . 5
'E Ipvestment - Depreciation Fund 17, 752,21 16,143.04 13798 85
£ Oithers currents assets 62627803 404 146,16 A98.471.90 | 1,324 92721 | 1,304.166.14
= |Cash at bank balances 389,675.15 |  390,651.00 | 39409162| 31337390 | 311,662.98
S |Tomlassets 112092828 | 94094730 | 92977213 | 166207878 | 1698.302.29
E lighilities & provisions 043 734,54 TT5. 512 44 T4 91843 | 1 521,750,539 | 1,573, 750.63
B [Equry 177,193.74 | 16543436 | 154.853.70 | 140327.59 | 124,542.66
a Tom! fabilities LI20 92828 | 94094730 929772 13 | 166207808 | L698.302.28
Met agsets per ghars [Taka) | 20.38 [58.41 | 57 64 142 85 124.78
Operadng earnings
on petroleum products 2181892 21 37481 2184645 28 857.11 30,131 .55
on apro-chemicals (283.98) (293.88) (287.61) (423.82) (218.78)
Orther income 34,056.00 31,217.80 39,7778 35,194.67 39.889.14
Total eatnings 5550094 5220873 6433070 8362705 6080084
E" Ovwerheads 21.669.68 19,039.46 20.830.39 20,215.20 20.438.35
‘E Financial expenses 249685 2,456.05 2.210.40 2,604.31 2,204.70
E  |Contdbution to WPPWTF 1,5¥1.22 1,540.16 1,914.80) 200542 245799
B |Towl expenses 25,737.75 23,035.67 24,953 59 25,524.93 25,000.04
ﬂ Profit before income tax 2985319 29,263,006 36,381.11 38,103.03 44.801.87
Provision for incumme tax 581521 6,402.81 205474 054784 11,221.75
Proofic after income (2% 24.037.97 22 860.25 27 29637 28,555,158 33,580.12
Return on sharebolders funds (%) 1357 13,82 17.63 20.35 26.96
Beturn on Assets (34} 2.14 243 2.94 1.72 1.8
Earming per shase {Taka) 2447 23.27 2179 23.07 i4.18
Human mesources [ Nosg ) 930 059 1009 1025 1065
s Executives 229 228 242 253 273
g %' Staff 701 731 767 772 792
8 3 |Total eamings per employee 59,78 54.53 60.79 62.08 65.54
g E Operaang cost per emnployes 24,99 2146 22.54 22.36 21.41
= et peofit per employes 3210 30.51 3606 3717 42.07
Cost To income ratio 43,47 41.10 37.56 316,96 3244
v |Authonzed capital 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
‘3 a Paid-up capitzel 9 823,27 982327 9.823.27 9,823.27 082327
m'-T' 3 [Retained camings 16737047 | 155,611.50 |  145030.43 130,504.32 |  114,719.39
B [Adequacy current rtio 119 1.2] 1.20 1.09 .08
. .§ Market Price per share { DSE ) 214.10 203.80 166.20 230.60 229.60
é ; Dividend - Cash | Per share ) 1258, L2505 125%; 1530% 130%
& |Dividend - Stack . . :
-5 |Capital caming matio 2.45 2.5% 2.78 291 3.42
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Annexure-A
[As per condition No. 1{8){(xxvi})]

PADMA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

Declaration by CEO and CFO
08 Movember 2022

To
The Board of Directors
FPadma Oll Company Limited

Subject: Declaration on Financlal Statements for the year ended on 30.06.2022

Dear Sir,

Pursuant to the condition Mo, 1{5){xxvi} imposed vide the Commission's Notification No. BSEC/ CMRRCD/
2006-158/ 207/Admin/80 dated 03 June 2018 under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange
Crdinance, 1968, we do hereby declare that :

1) The Financial Statements of Padma Oll Company Limited for the year ended on 30.06.2022 have been
prepared in compliance with Internatienal Accounting Standards (1ASs) or International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs), as applicable in the Bangladesh and any departure there from has besn
adequately disclosed,;

2) The estimale and judgments reiated to the financial statements were made on a prudent and reasonable
basis, in order for the financial statements lo reveal a true and fair view;

3) The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of alfairs have been reasonably and
[airly prezented in ils financial statements;

4) To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal
contral and maintenance of accounting records;

5) Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the established
policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

6) The management's use of the going cencern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements
is appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

In this regard, we alzo certify that:-

i} We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 30.06.2022 and that to the best of our
knowledge and belief:

a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading,;

b) these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance
with existing accounting standands and applicable laws.

i} There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no fransactions entered into by the Company during the
year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the company's Board of
Directors or its members.

Sincerely yours,

(Md. Abu Saleh Iqgbal) (Kanchan Chandra Shom, FCMA)
CEQ & Managing Direcior Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
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Annexure -B

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Certificate as per condition No. 1(5) (xxvii}
Report to the Shareholders of Padma Oil Company Limited
On compliance on the Corporate Governance Code

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by Padma Ol Company Limited for
the year ended on 30 June 2022. This Code relates to the Notification Mo. BSEC/CMBRCD /2006-158/ 207/
Admin/80 dated 03 June 2018 of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission,

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company. Our examination
was limited lo the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the Management in ensuring compliance
to the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code.

This is a scruting and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions of the Comporate
Govemance Code as well as the provision of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted
by Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as thase standards are not inconsistent
with any Condition of this Corporate Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have required, and after
due scrutiny and verification thereof, we report that, in our opinion:

@) The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Govermnance Code as stipulated
in the above mentioned Corporate Govemance Code Issued by the Commission, subject to the
remarks and observation as reported in the attached compliance status.

b)  The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards
(B53) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (IGSE) as required by this code.

¢) Proper hooks and records have been kepl by the company as required under the Companies Acl,
19484, the securities laws and other relevant laws; and

d)  The Governance of the company is safisfactory.

Place : Chaftogram

2 '
Dated : 12 December 2022 For Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co

Chartered Accountants

Showlkat Hossain, FCA
Senior Partner
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Annexure- C
[As per condition Mo. 1(5)(xowvii)]

PADMA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Commission's MNotification No.
BSEC/ICMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated 03 June 20128 issued under section 2CC of the
Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969 { Report Under Condition No. 9):

Canrpliane mtﬂl
| - o] B =

K r E | 3 | 4« | s ]
I 1 [ Board of Directors ] 1 | [
1.1 Size of the Board of Directors: The total number of members of a | DRy ik

company’s Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as "Board”) shall not [Nine) members
be lass than 5 (five) and more than 20 (twenby).
1.2 Independant Directors: All companies shall have effective representation
of independent directors on their Boards, so that the Board, as a group,
includes core competencies considersd relevant In the context of sach
company, for this purpose, the companies shall comply with the following:
1.2(a) At lsast one-fifth (1/5) of the total number of directars In the company’s Board 7 There are 2 (Twa)
shall be independent direciors; any fraction shall be considered to the next F‘dmﬂ‘?m
integer or whole number for calculating number of independent director{s); Board n"',:.':,m
I 1.2(b) [ For the purpose of this clause “independent director™ means a director - ] ] |
1.2{b}} | who either does not hold any share in the company or holds less than ane i
percent {1%} shares of the total paid-up shares of the company;
1.2{b)ly | who is not a sponsor of the company or is not connected with the company's
any sponsor or director or nominated director or shareholder of the company
or any of its essociates, sister concerns, subsidizries and parsnts or holding T Indepandent
entities who holds one percent (1%) or more shares of the total paid-up Directors
sharas of the company on the basis of family relationship and his or her dmm:‘ tt:r
family members alzo shall not hold above mentioned shares in the company; ¢ ’
Provided that spouse, son, daughter, father, mother, brother, slster,
son-in-law and daughter-in-law shall be considered as family members,
1:2(bJl} | who has not been an executive of the company in  immediately preceding 2 o
itwo) financial years; i
1.2{b)v} | who does nal have any other relationship, whether pecuniary or othentise, o
with the company or its subsidiary or associated companies; o
1.2{bjw} | wha Is nat a member ar TREC (Trading Right Entitlement Certificate) halder, <
director or officer of any stock-exchange; L
1.2{bpwit | wha iz nol a shareholder, diractor excepting Independant director or officer of any o
member or TREC holder of stock exchange or an intermediany of the capitsl market; B
1.2{bwii}| who ls not = partner or an executive ar was not a partner or an axecutive
during the preceding 3 (three) years of the concerned company's statutory v Do
audit firm or audit firm engaged i intemal audit services or audit finm
conducting special audit or professional certifying compllance of this Code,
| 1g{hma}[ who is not independent director in more than 5 (five! listed companies ] v ] | =
1.2{bjix) | who has not been convicted by a court of competent jurisdiction as a
defaulter In payment of any loan or any advance to a bank or a Non-Bank ¢ Do
Financial Institution (MEF1)
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| 1.2(bx) |

who has not been convicted for a criminal offence Involving moral turpitude

Ed

Tre nagpengoet
| Lipecira decarsa ther
s

12{e)

The independent director(s} shall be appointed by the Board and aporoved by
the shareholders in the Annual General Mesting {AGM)

¥

1.2 (d)

Tha post of Independent director(s) cannot remain vacant for mors than &0
(ninety) days

1.2 (®)

The tenure of office of an independent directar shall be for a period of 3 (three)
years, which may be extended for 1 (one) lenure only

12 |

Qualification of Independent Directar (ID)

I

1.3(a)

Indenandent directar shall be a knowledgeable individual with Integrity whe Is able
to ensune complisnce with fingncial laws, regulatory requiraments and corporate
lzws and can maks meaningful conribution to the business

ﬁ;&mﬂllﬂeﬂlﬂ&;
ant batkagrou

o 1D justity thel
abllities as such,

EEDI|

Independent directar shall have following quakifications:

1.3{0)i)

Business Leader who is or was & promoter or director of an unlisted company having
minkmum pald-up capltal of Tk, 100.00 milllon or any llsted company or a member of
any rational or internalional chamber of commaree or business assaciation: or

Nt Appicatia

1 3(B)1)

Corporate Leadsr who is or was a top level executive not lower than Chisf
Executive Officer or Managing Director or Deputy Managing Director or Chief
Financial Officer or Head of Finance or Accounts or Company Sscretary or Head
of Intemal Audit and Compliance or Head of Legal Service or a candidate with
equivalant position of an unlisted company having minimum paid-up capital of T,
100.00 milllon or of & listed company; o

Mok Appiciie

130y

Former official of govermment or statutory or autonomous or regulatory body in the
position not below 5th Grade of the national pay scale, who has at Ieasi
educational background of bachelor degree in economice or commerce or
business or Law; or

1.3{bjiv)

University Teacher who has educational background In Economics or Commerce
or Buslness Studies or Law; or

Mot Appicable

130k}

Professional who is or was an advocate praclicing at least In the High Courl
Division of Bangiadash Supreme Court or @ Chartered Sccountant or Cost and
Management Accountant or Chartered Financial Anatyst or Chartered Cerdified
Accountant or Certifled Public Accountant or Chartered Management Accountant
or Chartered Secretary or equivalent gualification

Mak Appicals

13(¢)

The independent director ghall have at least 10 (tzn) years of experiences in any
field mentioned in clause {b)

1.3(d)

In special cases, the above qualifications or exparences may be relaxed subject
to prior approval of the Commission,

Ml Appicalie

i4

Duality of Chairperson of the Board of Directors and Managing Director
or Chief Executive Officer.-

1.4z}

The pogitions of the Chairperson of the Boare and the Managing Director (MD) and/or
Chief Executive Officer (CED) of the company shall be filled by different individuals;

14(b)

The Mamaging Director (MDY andlor Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) of a listed
company shall not hold the same position in ancther isted company;

1.4(E)

The Chairperson of the Board =shall be elected from among the non-executive
directors of the company;

1.4(d)

The Board shall cleardy define respective roles and responsibiliies of the
Chairperson and the Managing Director andior Chief Executive Officer;
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1.4{=)

In e absence of the Chairperson of lhe Board, the remalning members may
alect one of themselves from nen execulive directors as Chalrperson for that
particular Board's mesting, the reason of absence of the regular Chalrperson shall
be duly recarded in the minutes.

During the year 14

15

Tha Directors’ Report to Sharsholders:

The Board of the company shall include the following additionsl statements or
disclosures in the Directors” Report prepared under section 184 of the Companies
Act, 1894 (Act Mo, XVl of 1984)--

1.5(0)

An industry oullook and possible future developments in the industry;

|15 |

The segment-wise or product-wise perfarmance

1.5}

Risks and concerns including internal and estarnal rdsk facters, threat ta
sustainability and nagative impact on environment, if any:

1.5(v)

A discuzsion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit Margin and Net Profit Margin,
where applicable

1.50v]

A discussion on continuity of any extraordinary aciivities and their implications
{gain or loss);

i such msttsr
arigen during the
year

1.50v)

A detailed discussion on related party transactions along with a stalement
showing ameunt, nature of related parly, nature of transactions and basis of
transactions of all related party transactions;

150w

A statement of utiization of proceeds raised through public =sues, rights issues
andfor any other Instruments

Mo such matter
Brizen during the
year,

1.50v1ii)

An explanation if the financial resulls deteriorate after the company goes for Initial
Pubfic Offering (IPD), Repeat Public Offering (RPO), Rights Share Offer, Direct
Listing, ete.;

Hat Appiicatie

1501

An explanation on any significant variance thal occurs between CQuarierdy
Financial performances and Annual Financial Statements;

1.5(x)

& statement of remuneration paid to the directors including Indepandent directors;

1.5(x1)

A statement that the financial statements prepared by the management of the
issuer company prasent fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash
fiowws and chandes In aguity;

1.5{xi}

A statemenl thal propst books of account of the lssuer company have been
maintained;

1.5

A statement that appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied
in preparation of the financial statements and that the accounting estimates are
basad on reasonable and prudent judgment

1.5(xdv)

A statemeant that Intemational Accounting Standards (IAS) or Intermational
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh, have
been followed in preparation of the financial statements and any
depariure there from has been adequately disclosed;

1.5(xv)

A statement that the system of Intermal confrol = sound In deslan and has been
effectively implemented and monitored

1.5(xvi)

A statement that minority shareholders have been protected from abusive actions
by, or in the interest of, controiling shareholders acting either direcily or indirectly
and have effective means of redress;
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1.500vll) | A statement that there is no significant doubt upen the issuer company’s ability to o TS o
cantinue as & going concern, I the [ssuer company fs not considered o be a fect
geing concern, the fact alono with reasons ihere of shall be disclosed;
1.500vlll) | An explanation that significant deviations from the last year's operating results of o
the lssuer company shall be highlighted and the reasons thereof shall be
gxplained.
1.50¢kx) | A stetement where key operating snd financial data of at least preceding 5 (five) Cd
years shall be summarlzed;
1.8(xx) | An explanation on the reasons if the issuer company has not deciared dividend s i _m
{eash or stack) for the year: |
1800} | Board's staiement to the effect that no bonus share or stock dividend has been or MR, Mo Iinkedim dividend
shall be declared as Intarlm dividend;
1850y | The totsl number of Board meetings held during the ysar and attendance by each *
direclor;
1.5{xxill} | A report an the pattern of shareholding disclesing the aggregate number
of shares (along with name-wise details where stated below) held by:-
1.65{xxiliy | Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies and other related parties v
al (name-wize detalls),
1.5{xxil} | Directors, Chief Exscutive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financlal Officer, s
b Head of Intemal Audit and Compliance and thelr spouses and minor chibdren
(name-wise details);
1.50cxiii) | Executives; and .f
o
1.5(xxilly | Sharehclders helding fen percant (10%) of mere voting inferest in the company v
) (name-wise details}, )
Explanation: For the purpase of this clause, the expression “sxecutive” means
top & {five) saladed employees of the company. othier than the Directors, Chief
Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer and Head of
Internal Audit and Compliance.
1.5(xxiv) | In casa of the appointment or reappointment of a director, a disclosure
on the following information to the shareholders:
1.5(xiv) | & brief resume of the director; o
(a}
1.5(xxiv) | nature of his or her expertise in specific funciional areas; and <
(B}
1.5(xv) | mamaes of companies In which the person atso holds the directorship and the «
ic} membership of committees of the Board;
1500w} | A Management's Discussion and Anzlysis signed by CEQ or MD presenting e
detalled analysis of the company's posiion and operations along with a brief
discussion of changes In e financial statemants, among othars, focusing on!
| 1.5{;3;1;}3}' accounting policles and estimation for preparation of financial statements; o |
1.50vib) changes n accounting policles and estimation, I any, cearly describing the effect o
on financial performance or resulls and financial position as well as cash flows in
absolute figure for such changes,
1.5000c) comparative analysls (including effects of Inflation) of financial parformance or 4
results and financial position as well as cash flows for current financial year with
irmediate precading five years expiaining reasens thareof,
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16000 d) compare such financlal peformance or results and financlal position as wall as 4
cash flows with the peer industry scenaria;
| 1.5povie] briefly explain the finandial and economic scenaria of the country and the globe, | v | |
1.5000v)f) | risks and concemns |ssues related o the financial statements, explaining such rizk 4
arid concems mitigetion plan of the company; and
1.800a0gy future plan or projection or forecast for company’s operation, performance and o
financial position, with Justification theracf, l.e.. actual pogition shall e expiained
to the sharebolders in the next AGM,
1.58{xxvi} | Doeclaration or cortification by the CEOQ and the CFO to the Board as required o
under condition Mo, 3(3) shall be disciosed as per Annexure-A; and
1.8} | The report &s well 85 cerfificate regarding complisnce of conditions of this Code o4
as reguired under condition Mo, 9 shall be disclosed as per Annexure-B and
Annexura-C.
f 1.6 [ Mestings of the Board of Directors | I
The company shall conduct ts Board mestings and record the minutes of the <
meetings as well 8s keep required books and records in line with the provisions of
the relevant Bangladesh Secretzrial Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Instifute
of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh {ICSE) in so far as those standerds are
not Inconsistent with any condition of this Coda.
[ 1.7 [ Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer ! ] |
1.7(a} The Board shall lay down 2 code of conduct, bassd on the recommendation of the
Momination and Remuneration Committas [NRC) at condition Na. B, for the Chalmparson L4
of the Board, ather board members and Chisl Executive Officer of the company;
1.7{b) The code of conduct as dedermined by the NRC shall be posted on the websiie of the
company including, among others, prudent cenduct and behavior; confidentiafity; conflict F
of inlerest; comaliance with laws, rukes and regulations; profiibition of insider trading;
relationship with anvironment, employess, customers and suppliers; and Indessndency.
l 2 l Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company.- l l
2(a) Provisions relafing fo the composiion of the Board of the holding company shall be (Y POCL doss
made appiicable to the composition of the Board of the subsidiary company; nq;}hmm
2(k) At least 1 (one) independent director on the Board of the holding company shall be a M Do
director on the Board of the subsidiary compary;
2{c) The minutes of the Board meefing of the subsidiary company shall be placed for review MiA Do
at the following Board meetng of the holding company;
2{d) The minutes of the resoective Board meeting of the holding company shall state that A D=
they have reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary company also;
2(e) The Audit Commities of the holding company shall also review the financlal statements, MiA B
in paricular the invesiments made by the subsidiary company.
3 ifanaging Directer (MO} or Chisf Exscutive Officer (CEQ), Chisf Financial Officer
(CFO), Head of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) and Gompany Secretary (CS).-
I 31 I Appaintment ! ! |
31(a) The Board shall appoint 2 Mansging Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer {CED), & -
Company Sscretary (CS), a Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and a Head of Inlemal Audit
and Compliancs (HIAC);
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3.1(b)

The positions of the Maraging Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEQ), Company
Secretary (CS), Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Head of Intemal Audit and
Compliance (HIAC] shall be filled by different individuals,

3(c)

The MD or CEQ, C5, CFC and HIAC of a sted company shall not hold any executive
pasiion In any other company al the same fime;

3.1(d)

The Board shail clearly define respactive rodes, responsibliittes and duties of the CFO,
the HIAC and the C5;

3.1(e)

The MD or CEQ, €8, CFO and HIAC shall not be removed from thelr position without
approvai of the Board as wel as immediate dissemination to the Commission and stock
EXChangss).

Requirement te attend Board of Directors' Meetings

The MD or CED, C8, CFO and HIAC of the company shall atiznd the meetings of
the Boand:

Provided that the C5, CFO andfor the HIAC shall nol attend such part of &
mesting of tha Board which involves consideration of an agenda item relating o
their personal matters,

33

Duties of Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEOQ) and
Chief Financlal Officer (CFO)

3.3(a)

The MD or CEC and CFO shall cerdify to the Board that they have reviewsd
financizl statements for the year and that to the best of their knowledge and belief;

3.3(a)i)

thesa statements do not contain any materially unirue statement or omit any
materal fact or contain statements that might be misleading; and

3.3

ihese statements together piesent & true and fair view of the company's affairs
and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws;

3.3(b)

The MD or CEOQ and CFOQ shall also cerify that there are. o the best of
knowledge and belisl, no transactions entered Into by the company during the
year which are fraudulent, ilfegal or in violstion of the code of conduct for the
company's Board or s members;

3.3(c)

The cestification of the MD or CEC and GFO shall be disclosed In the Annual Report.

Board of Directors' Committes.-
Far ensuring good governance In the company, the Board shall have at least
following sub-committees:

| 40

| Audit Committee: and

4(i)

Momination and Remuneration Committee.

E

| AUDIT COMMITTEE:

| 5.1

f Responsibility to the Board of Directors:

5.1(a)

The company =shall have an Audit Committes a subcommittes of the
Board;

5.1(b)

The Audit Committee shall assist the Board in ensuring that the financial
statermnents reflect true and falr view of the state of affairs of the company and
In ensuring & good monitoring system within the business;
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5.1{c} The Audit Committes shall be responsible to the Board; the duties of tha v
Audit Committee shall be clearly sat forth in writing.

aeh b

of the Audit
Committes

5.2 Constitution of the Audit Committee:
5.2(a) The Audit Commitiee shall be composed of at least 3 (three) members; v Committes has

8.2(h) The Board shall appoint members of the Audit Committee who shall be v
non-executive directors of the company excepting Chairperson of the Board
and shall include at least 1 (one) independent director;

5.2(c) All members of the audit committes should be *financially liferate” and at lsast ¢
1 {one! membar shall have accounting or related financial management
background and 10 (ten) years of such expernience;

Explanation; The term “financially literate” means the ability %o read and
understand the financial statements like statement of financlal position,
staterment of comprehansive Income, statement of changes In equity and
cash fiows statement and a person will ba considered (o have accouniing or
ralated financlal management expartize if he or she possesses professional
qualification or Accounting or Finance gradusate with at least 10 {ten) years of
corparate management or prafessional experiences.

5.2(d) Wwhen the term of service of any Commitlee member expires or there is any W
circumstanoe causing any Committes member to be unabie to hold office befors
expiration of the term of service, thus making the number of the Committes
membars to be lower than the prescribad number of 3 (three) persons, the Boand
shall appoint the new Committes member to fill up the vacancy immediately or not
later than 1 (one) month from the date of vacancoy in the Commiites to ensure
continuity of the performance of work of the Audit Committes;

| 5.2(&) | The company secratary shall act as the secretany of the Commities; | v |

= e

5.2 The querum of the Audit Commities meating shall not constliute without at least 1 W
(one) Independent diractor.

| 53 Chairman of the Audit Committee: | | ' |

5.2(a) The Board shall select 1 {one} mamber of the Audit Committea to be Chairpersan "
of the Audit Committes, who shall be an indepandent director;

5.3(h) In the absence of the Chalrpersan of the Audit Committes, the remaining g
members may slect ane of themselves as Chalrpersan for that patilcular meeting,
In that case thera shall ba no problem of consftuting a guerum as required under
condifion Mo. 5(4)b) and the reason of absence of the reguiar Chalmerson shail
be duly recorded in the minutes. 1

5.3c) Chalrpersan of the Audit Committee shall remaln presert In the Annual General L
Meeting (AGM]:

Provided that In absence of Chairperson of the Audit Committee, any othar
member from the Audit Commities shall be selected to be present in the annual
general meeting (AGM) and reason for absence of the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee shall be recorded in the minutes of the AGM

| 5.4 | Moeting of the Audit Committee | | |
5.4{a) The Audit Committes shall conduct &t least its four meetings In & financial

year Pravided that any amargancy meeting In addifion to reguiar mecting may ¥
bz convened at the request of any one of the members of the Committes;
5.4({b) The guarum of the meeting of the Audit Committes shall be constitufed in presence "

of either two members of two-lhird of the members af the Audit Commities,
wilchewer ks higher, whare presence of an independent director s a must,
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5.5 Role of Audit Committee: I
The Audit Committes shall: |
5.5(a) Cwversee the financial reporting process; ] &
F 5.5{b} | manlor choice of accounting policles and principles: | 7 l | |
5.5{c) manitar Intemal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it is adequately v
resourced, including approval of the Internal Audit and Compliance Plan and review
of the Internal Audit and Complisnce Report;
|55(d) | cverses hiring and performance of external audfiors; | o« ]
5.5(g} hold meeting with the extemnal or statutory auditors for review of the annual firancial o
siatements before submission o the Board for approval or adoplion;
5.5(f) review along with the managemenl, the annual finencial statements before s
submission (o the Bogrd for aporgval,
5.5(g} review along with the management, the quarterdy and half yeardy financlal o
statenents before submission to the Board for approval;
[55() | review the adequacy of Internal audt function: [ v | |
5.5(1) review the Management’s Discussion and Analysis before distlosing In the Annual i
Repor
[ 5.5() 1 review statement of all related parly fransactions submitted by the management; l o’ ] ] |
5.5(k) review Management Lefters or Letter of Intemal Conirol weakness issued by o
slatutory auditors;
§.5(1) oversee the determinafion of audit fees based on scope and magnitude, level of
expertise depioyed and time required for effective audit and evaluate the v
performance of external auditors; and
5.5(m) | overses whether the proceeds ralsed through Initial Public Offering (IPO) or Repeat
Public Offering (RPQ) or Rights Share Offer have been ulllized as per the putposss
stated in relevant offer document or prospectus approved by the Commission:
Provided that the mansgement shall disclose to the Audit Committee about the )
uses of applications of the proceeds by major category {capital expenditure, sales : = KL ppll it
and markating expenses, working capital, ate.), on a quarterly basis, as a part of
their quarterly declaration of financial results: Provided further that on an annual
basis, the company shall prepare a statement of the procseds uliized for the
purposes ather than those stated [n the offer document or prospectus for publication
Ir the Annual Repart along with the comments of the Audil Committes.
|56 | Reporting of the Audit Committes: | | [ |
[5.6(a) | Reporting to the Board of Directors: l | | |
| 5.6(a}l) | The Audit Committee shall report on its activities to the Board. |« | | |
5.6(alki} | The Audit Committee shall immediztely report to the Board of Directors on the
following findings, if any:-
5.6{a}ll) | report on conflicts of Inferests, v m’m’”‘ il
a} F;unﬁl'E:tnﬁm’rau
30k June 2022
5.6(a)(if) | suspected or presumed fraud or iregularity or malerial defect [dentified In the | St
b} internal audit and compllance piocess or In the financial staternents, YE&T.
S.6(a)iy suspected infringement of laws, reguéatory compliances including securities relaied laws, o oo
(=] rules and regulations; and
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S5.6(a)i}| any other matter which the Audit Commities desms necessary shall be disclosed to the v m??mﬂ
d) Board Immediztaly; x'e";r.ng
5.6(b) Reporting to the Authorities:

If the Audit Committee has reporfed to the Board abaul anything which has material

irmgact on the financial condition and results of operation and has discussed with the

Board and the manatement that any rectificaion s necessary and if the Audit - it Appricabie

Committes finds that such reclification has been unreasonably ignored, the Audit

Commiites shall veport such finding to the Commission, upon reperting of such matiers

to the Board for thees times or completion of a period of 6 {six) months from the cate of

first reporiing to the Board, whichever is earlier.

57 Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors: L. Mﬂ&ﬂ]
Report on activities carried out by the Audit Committee, including any report made . Freport iz discioeed
to the Board under condition MNo. 5(6)(a)(il) above during the year, shall be signed o m::ﬂ;ﬂed
by the Chairperson of the Audit Committee and disclosed in the annual report of iy the Chalrman af
the issuer campany. b pt

| 6 Momination and Remuneration Committee (NRC).-
| 6.1 Responsibility to the Board of Directors ]

6.1{a) The company shall have a Nomination and Remuneration Committes (NRC) as a o
sub-commiftea of the Board

8.1(0) | The NRC shall assist the Board In formulation of the nomination criteria or policy
for determining qualifications, positive atiribules, experiences and independence d
of directors and fop levsl executive as well a5 a palicy for formal process of
considering remuneration of directors, top level exacuthve;

8.c) | The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the NRC shall be dlearly set forth in writing v
sovering the areas stated &t the condition Na. G(5)(E),

| 8.2 Constitution of the NRC

6.2(a) The Commiltee shall comprise of al least three members including an

independent director; v
| 6.2(b) All members of the Commities shall be non-executive directors; o
| 6.2(c) Members of the Committes shall be nominated and appointed by the Board; "

6.2(d) The Board shall have authority to remove snd appoint any member of the s
Comimittes:

8.2(2) | In case of death, resignation, disqualification, or removal of any member of the
Committea or in any other cases of vacancias, the board shall fill the vacancy & Not Apglicable
within 180 (one hundred eighty) days of occurring such vacancy in the
Committee;

6.2{f} The Chairperson of the Committes may appoint or co-opl any extemal expert
and'er member(s) of staff to the Commitze a5 advisar who shall be non-vating - ot Apalicable
member, if the Chalrperson feels that advice or suggestion from such externat
enpert andlor member{s) of staff shall be required or valuable for the Commities;

| €.2(g) The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committes; v

6.2(h) The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute without attendance of at least 7

an independeant director;
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remuneration for any advisory or consullancy role or otherwlse, other than v
Director's fees or honararium from the company.

8.2(1) Mo member of the NRC shall receive, either directly or indirectly, any |
|

| 63 | Chalrperson of the NRC | |

6.3(=) The Board shall select 1 {one) member of the NRC o be Chaimperson of the Commitize, 7
wh shall be an Indepandent director,

6.3(b) In the absence of the Chairpersan of the NRC, the remaining members may elact one of ¥
themsefres as Chalperson for thal particular mesting, the resson of absence of the
regular Chairperson shal be duly recorded in the minutes;

6.3(c) The Chairpersan of the NRC shall atiend the annual general mesting (AGM) o answer
the quenes of the shareholders: Provided that in absence of Chairperson of the NRC, 7
any other membssr from the NRC shall be selected o be presant in the annual general
meating [&GM) for answerng e shareholder's guediss and reason for absence of the
Chalrpergon of the NRE shall be recorded In the minutes of the AGM.

| 6.4 | Meeting of the NRC | | |

| 8.4() | The NRC siall conduct at least ane meeting in @ financial year [ v ]

&, 4(b) The Chairperson of the NRE may convene any emengency meeting upon reguest by any -
memiber of tha NRC

B.4ia) The guorum of the mesting of the NRC shall be constituted in presence of efther o
fermbers of tea fhird of the members of the Commmiltles, whichever s higher, where
pressnce of an independent director is must as required under condition Mo G(2)(h)

6.4(d) The proceedings of each mesiing of the MRC shall duly be recorded in the minutes and
such minutes shall be confirmied in the. newt meeting of the NRC.

| 65 | Role of the NRC | |

6.5(m) MRS shall be ndependant and responsivle or accountable to the Board and to the
sharshokdess,

6.5(b) MRC shall oversee, among cothers, the following matiers and make report with 7
recommendaticn 1o the Board:

6.5(b)i) | formulsting the criteria for determining gqualifications, positive attributes and

imdependence of a director and recommend & policy to the Board, ralating (o the v
remureration of the directars, op level executive, considenng the following:
G6.5(b)1) | the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficiant ta attract, retain v
(] and motivate suilable direciors to run the company successfully;
6.5(0)iy | the refationshin of remuneration o parformance i clear and meets approprate >
{b} performance benchmarks, and
B.5(bM1y | remunecalion lo direclors, top level execufive invalves a balancs betwesn fixed and -

{c) incentive: pay reflecting shor and leng-term performance oblectives appropriate o the
working af the company and its goals;

G50 uavlslng a pﬂlll:a' an and'i df'ml‘sll‘r taklng In‘t-u consideration age, gender, experience, s

G.6(0)iY identilying persans who are gualified to become directors and who may be appointed in
top level executive position in sccordance with the criteria faid down, and recommend o
their appointment snd removal to the Board,

6.5{hi{hY formulating the critera for evaluation of performance of indepsndent direciors and the -
Board,

6.5(b)v}| Identifying the company's nesds for smployess at different levels and determine thelr o
selection, transfer or replacement and promotion criferia; and
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Condition Tifle = Rissvarkes (i any)
’“"_l comptied | ustifiea | 2
G.5{b}vi] developing, recommending and reviewing annually the company’s human resourdes and o
tralning policies:
B8.5(ch The company shall disclose the nomination and remuneration policy and the evaluation o
criteria and aclivities of NRC during the year at 8 glance in its annual report,
7 EXTERNALISTATUTORY AUDITORS:
The Issuer company shall not engags ils extemal or statutory auditors to-perform the
following services of the company, namely:-
T appraisal or valuation services or faimess opinicns 7
7A4i) financlal Information systems daslgn and Implamentation; L
7.4l book-keaping or other services related o the accounting recards or finandial statemenis; i
T 4{) brokar-dealer services; o
7.4(v) | acluaral services; <
Ty imternal audit services or special audit services; o The Statiory
. : Audiors Hissal
7.4(vil) | any service that the Audit Commiites determines; o s
Khan Wahab
T A{vili} awdit or cardificalion services on compllance of corparate governance as requlred under ¢ Shafiue Rshman &
cardition Ma. 9(1), and Co. have declared
thair iIndependanca
7. 1) any ather service that creates confiict of interest. “
72 Mo parner or employess of the axtemal audit firms shall possess any share of the o
company they audit at least during the tenure of their audit assignment of thal company,
his or her family members also shall not hold any shares in the sald company:
Provided that spouse, son, daughier, father, mother, brother, sister, son-in-law and
daughter-in-aw shall be considersd as family members.
7.3 Reprezenialive of extemal or sfatutory audliors shall remalin peesent in the Shareholders’ S
Meeting (Annual General Meeling or Extracrdinary General Meeting) to answer the
quaras of the sharsholdars,
| & | Maintaining a wehbsile by the Company | |
81 The company shall have an official website linked with the website of the stock v W, B i 15 48
exchange. the company's
official website
8.2 The company shall keep the website functional from the date of Gsting finked -:rr:-. e
; webisite of stock
8.3 The company shall make available the detailed disciosures on its website as reguired Exchange,
umder the listing regulations of the concerned siock exchange(s).
9 Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Govemainca.,
9.1 The company shall obfaln a cedificate from a practicing Professional Accountant or
Secratary (Chartered Accountant or Cost and Management Accountant or Chartared
Secretary] oftier than fts stalutory audilors or audil fim on yearly basis fegarding
compliance of condiffons of Corporale Governance Code of the Commibssion and shall s
such cerfificats shall be disclosed in the Annual Report Explanation: “Charered
Accountant” means Chartered Accountant 25 defined in the Bangladesh Chartered
Accountants Order, 1973 (President's Ordsr Mo. 2 of 1973), "Cosl and Management
Accountant” means Cost and -Managemeri Accountant as defined in the Cost and
Management Accountants Crdinance, 1877 {Ordinance No, LI of 1977); "Chartersd
Secretany” means Chartered Secretary s defined in the Chartered Sacretaries Act, 2010,
L B Tha professional who will provide the cerfificate on compliance of this Corposate _,
Governande Code shall be apooimed by the shareholders n the annual genaral meating.
9.3 The directors of the company shall siate, In accordance with the Annexure-C atfached, In s
the diractors’ report whedhar the company has complied with theses condifiens or nod
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o Annexure- D
Management Discussion And Analysis “

On Company’s Position And Operation

The financial and operating performances of Padma Oil Company Limited during the fiscal year 2021-22 have
been satisfactory. We made every efforl to accomplizh our job effectively and efficiently in FY 2021-22. We are
focusing on the sustainability and efficiency.

It appears from the business cutcome that the sales volume of the Company's petroleum products stood at
25,45 lakh metric tons In FY 2021-22 as compared to 21.40 lakh metric tons in FY 2020-21. As a result of
declining COVID-19 outbreak, the overall econormic activities of the country became normal during the year and
the total sales of petroleum products of the company increased by 18.81% in the reported year as compared to
the last year. On the other hand, sales of agrochemicals products of the company increased by 14.35% to
2,144 metric tons in the reported year which was 1,875 metric tons in the last year. As a result, the Company
was able to make a net profit before tax of Taka 298.53 crore in the reported year which was taka 232.63 crore
in the last year.

The overaill Company's position has been reflected in the financial statements which have been prepared and
presented in accordance with all generally accepted accounting principles. The overall Company's position and
future planning, methods of preparation of financial statements have been summarized below:

Preparation of Financial Statements:

These financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis following accrual basis of accounting
except for Cash Flow Statement in accordance with the Infernational Accounting Standards (1A3s) and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987,

Accounting Policies and Estimates:

The details of accounting policies and estimates applied for the preparation of financial statements are
described in note no. 2.00 of audited financial statements. There are no changes in accounting policies and
estimates for the fiscal year 2021-2022.

Comparative analysis of financial performance:

Key financial data of immediate preceding five years is shown detailed in Annexure-3 of the Directors’ Report.
For comparison, financial results and financial position of the Company for the financial year 2021-2022 with

immediate preceding five years are given below: At T e ke

Financial & Operational results 2021-2022 | 2020-2021 | 2019-2020 | 2018-2018 | 2017-2018 | 2016-2017
Sales (MT in Lakh) 25.45 21.40 18.63 22.61 23.66 20.08
Mat Earmings on petroleum products 21818 21375 218.46 288.57 301.32 244 58
Cperaling expensas 241867 214.85 23040 235.19 226.42 197.08
Dther Operating Income 76.12 42.30 8453 B0.66 74.07 59.18
Tetal operating profit 52 6d 41.10 72.59 134.04 148 57 106.71
Profit after tax 240,38 228.60 272.96 285,55 335.80 20313
EPS (Taka) 24.47 23.27 27.79 29,07 3418 20.68
Met Asset Value per share (Taka) 130.38 168.41 157.64 142,85 126.78 103,60
Met operating cash flow per share (Taka) 98.15 2.73 BO0.91 (62.29) (36.37) 11642
Mumber of employess 830 859 1009 1025 1065 1110




Financial Performance of Peer Industry:

n KIEANLE B --.Il|.:-.-'|'|'l'_' AR T
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There are three major oil marketing companies In the petroleum Industry namely Padma Oil Company Limited
(POCL), Meghna Petroleum Limited (MPL) and Jamuna Oil Gompany Limited (JOCL) under Bangladesh Petraleum
Corporation. A comparison of three marketing companies' financial and operational data during 2021-22 are

summarized balow:

Amount in Crore Taka

Particulars POCL MPL JOCL
Sales (MT in Lakh) 25.45 24.49 18.68
Met earnings on petroleum products 218.19 23313 129.15
Operating expenses (including financial expenses) 24167 14:3.55 123.64
Other operating income 76.12 24.53 14.83
Total operating profit 52.64 113.91 20.34
Profit after tax 240.38 316.54 186.34
EPS (Taka) 24.47 29.25 16.87
Net Asset Value per share (Taka) 180.38 17415 189.00
Met operating cash flow per share (Taka) 98.15 155.11 101.43
Mumber of einployeas 930 378 482

Gilobal and Local Economic Scenario:

While global economy was recavering strongly from the COVID-19 pandemic, the changed world economic scenario
posed a setback to the ongoing recovery. A rise in the global commodity prices and sluggish economic activities
induced supply chain disruption is being obsessed. Internaticnal organization revised their forecasts for economic
growth progpects and inflations. As per world Bank publighed report litled 'Global Economic prospect June 2022, the
global economic growth is expected to slow sharply from 5.7 percent in 2021 1o 2.8 percent in 2022, According to the
final estimation of Bangladesh Bureau of Statistics (BBS), the growth rate of Gross Domestic Product (GDP) of the
country vwas 6.94% In FY 2020-21. According to the provisional eslimation of Bangladesh Bureau of Statistics (BBS),
the country's GDP growth rate Is 7.25% in FY 2021-22 which is poesitive considering the overall situation. Government
of Bangladesh has visionary target to build a durable and sustainable energy, power and transportaticn infrastructure
in order to become a prosperous nation,

Risk and Mitigation:

Risk factors of petroleum Sector :

The economy of Bangladesh is growing faster and it creates an opportunity for the entire oil industry and power
sector, There are some challenges In business of petroleum products such as market competition with private sectar,
open market economy, fluctuations of price of imported patroleum products ete.

Risk Factors of Agrochemical Sector:

Mare than 450 companies including some giant multinationals are heading o grab the market of agrochemicals.
There Is a stiff competition in the agrochemicals market. Besides, Bangladesh is ameng the most vulnerable
countries to climate change, which poses a long-term threat to the countny’s agricultural sector, particularly in
areas affected by flooding, saline Intrusion and drought. Price faclors of our quality products are very much
concern for us.

E’?‘fi
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Mitigation policy:

The Govt. of Bangladesh is emphasizing of enacting favorable rules and policy to attract the investors. We are
monitoring to identify and assess the potential challenges and to find the way out 1o mitigate those challenges.
Various steps have been taken by the Company to increase the sales volume of petroleum products and to
mitigate operating loss of agrochemicals business. Auto gas (LNG) marketing activities are being undertaken
al the filling stations under the Company’s marketing network along with petroleun products nationwide. The
Company has already signed agreements with 9 autogas operators in this regard.

In order to mitigate the operating expenses of the agrochemicals business, the current market segment is
reviewed and the offices in the lesser selling areas are closed and integrated with the nearby offices. In addition,
appropriate steps have been taken to reduce overall operating costs in the sector by controlling expenditure
through reorganizing the manpower. A committee constituted by the Company is regularly reviewing the selling
price of homogeneous products of the competing companies and re-determining the price of the products from
time to time accordingly. The management of the Company is regularly monitoring the inherent business risk

and taking corrective measures,

The Company is regularly reviewing the selling price of homogeneous products of the competing companies
and re-determining the price of the products from time to time accordingly. As a result, the Company was
able to reduce a 3.40% operating loss in the agrochemicals business in the reported year compared to the
previous fiscal year. The management of the Company is regularly monitoring the inherent business risk
and taking corrective measures.

Future Planning:

A development program has been undertaken for business expansion and smoath supply of fuel to the public by
establishing new depots, storage tanks and other physical infrastructures, The future plans have been taken by
the Company are narrated in detall under the head of "Future action plans to increase the Company's Operating
Capability' in the Directors' Report.

The Company Is also adhering to imprave its performance through speclalization, differentiation, segmentation
and overall diversification.

We are hopeful that we shall achieve our projected target and march forward in the years to come.

(Mid. Abu Saleh Igbal)
Managing Director
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52" Annual General Meeting

The 52" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Padma Ol Company Limited was hald virtually through
Digital Platform on 26 February 2022 at 03-00 pm. Board Chalrman hr. Md. Mahbub Hossain presided
over the meeting. Directors of the Board Mr. Bashudeb Ganguly, Mr. Kabirul Ezdani Khan, Mr. Quazi Md.
Arwarul Hakim, Dr. Mohd, Sher Ali, Mr. Kazi Mohammad Mozammel Hogue, Mr. MNasiruddin Akhter
Rashid, Mr. Suzadur Rahman, Managing Director Mr. Md. Masudur Rahman, Company Secretary Mr.
MNoman Ahmed Taffader as well as BPC and Company's senior officials attended at the Meeting.

After recftation of verse from the Holy Quran, the Chairman welcomed the shareholders In the Annual
General Meeting. The meeting started with the Chairman's inviting comments on proceedings of the last
Annual General Meeting. The shareholders unanimously approved the audited financial statements and
proposed 125% cash dividends for the year ended 30 June 2021. Proposal for appointment of external
auditors M/s. Khan Wahab Shafigue Rahman & Co. and M/s. Hussain Farhad & Co. Chartered
Accountants for the year 2021-2022 was approved by the shareholders. Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co.
Charlered Accountant was appointed by the shareholders for issuing certificate regarding compliance of
Corporate Governance Code, Director Mr. Dr. Mohd. Sher Ali and Mr, Kazi Mohammad Mozammel
Hoque were elected by the shareholders. The shareholders also approved the appointment of
Independent Director Mr. Bashudeb Ganguly.

A huge number of honourable shareholders participated in the AGM through digital platform and they
made comments about the overall performance of the Company. The Company Secretary Mr. Noman
Ahmed Taffader read out the various comments made by the shareholders. The Chaimman of the Board
Mr. Md. Mahbub Hossain and Managing Director Mr. Md. Masudur Rahman replied to the gueries and
explained on various comments made by distinguished sharehoiders.

The Shareholders appreciated the Company's over all performance In their comments. The meeting
ended with a vote of thanks to the chair,
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Contribution & Value Additions
For the year ended 30 June 2022
[Particulars Taka In "000 [
30-Jun-22 %o 30-Jun-21 %
Earnings on
Petroleum Products 2,181,893 2,137,481
Agro-chemicals trading (28,398) (29,388)
2,153,495 2,108,093
Other Income 3,405,601 3,121,780
Total value added 5,559,096 5,229,873
Distribution of added value
To Government as revenue & taxes 763,837 13.74 633,656 12.11
To Employees & others cost 913.868 16.44 836,678 16.00
To Financial expenses 249,685 4.49 245,605 4.70
To shareholders 1,227,909 22.09 1,227,909 23.48
To depreciation & retained eamings 2,403,796 43.24 2,286,024 43.71
5,559,096 100.00 5,229,873 100.00
W2022 2021
56
49
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Dividend Distribution Policy

1. Introduction

Padma Oil Company Limited is one of the leading fuel oil as well as agrochemicals marketing company in the country
under Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC), Burmah Eastern Limited became a subsidiary of Bangladesh Petroleum
Corporation in 1977, In the year 1985, BOC transferred its entire propery in Bangladesh including share of Burmah
Eastemn Limited in favour of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC) which was earlier listed with Dhaka Stock
Exchange Limited in 1976 and subsequently it was listed with the Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited in 1995, As per
terms of the transfer of BOC's entire share to BPC, Burmah Eastern Limited was required to change its name and as such
subsequently the Company's name was changed as "PADMA OIL COMPANY LIMITED" in the year 1988.

In compliance with the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission's Directive No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2021-386/03
dated 14 January 2021, the issuers of listed securities are required to formulate and disclose its Dividend Distribution
policy. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of Padma Oil Company Limited (herein after referred to as “the Company”)
has formulated and approved this Dividend Distribution Policy (herein afier referred to as "the Policy™).

2. Definitions

"the Act” means the Companies Act 1994 as amended from time to time.

“Policy” means Dividend Distribution Policy.

"Applicable Laws" means the Companies Act, 1894 & BSEC Rules, Regulations & Directives issued from time to time,
"the Company" means Padma Cil Company Ltd.

“AGM" means Annual General Meeting

"Beard” means Board of Directors of Padma Cil Company Ltd.

"Shareholders" means Members whose name is registered In the Member Register of the Company.
"Shares" means Ordinary Equity Shares,

"“Chairman” means the Head of the Board of Directors.

"MD & CEO" means the Managing Diractor & the Chief Executive officar.

"“Dividend” as defined under the Companies Act, 1994,

*FRC" means the Financial Reporting Council as per the Financial Reporting Act,2015.

3. Objective of the Policy

The objective of this Policy is to provide clarity to stakeholders on the dividend distribution framework to be adopted
by the company for ensuring the right balance between the guantum of dividend paid and the amount of profits
retained in the business for various purposes. The Board of Directors (Member of the Board) shall recommend
dividend in compliance with this Policy, the Articles of Association of the Company, the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1994, relevant Directives/Orders published by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, and other
applicable legal provisions.

4, Dividend Legal Framework

a. Provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company in reference to the Companies Acl, 1994,

b. Tocomply with-all the directives, orders etc. of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) and
tha Listing Rules of the Stock Exchanges as regards determinalion and declaration of dividends.

.

80
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¢. To comply with the applicable tax laws in framing the dividend policy.

d. Preparation of financial statements with complete adherence to the applicable accounting and reperting standards
under International Accounting Standards (IASs), International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) etc be
amended/modified from time to fime.

e. Circulars, Instructions, Directives izsued time to time by the Financial Reporting Council (FRC).

f. Special Order/Directives issued by the government at any time.

5. Declaration of Dividend

Subject to the provisions of the Act, dividend shall be declared and paid out of the current year's profit after tax of the
company or any other undistributed profit.

Before declaration of dividend, the Company may transfer a portion of its profits to reserves of the Company as may
be considered appropriate by the Board at its discretion.

The actual guantum of dividend pay-out on a yearly basis will be depended on the following factors:
5.1 Internal Factors: The Board shall consider the following internal factors:

a) Company’s Liquidity position including its present and expected obligations.

b) Profits earned & available for distribution during the financial year of the company.

c) Accumulated Reserve including the retained eamings.

d) Present and Future Capiial expenditure plans of the Company including organic/inorganic growth opportunities.
g) Future requiremenls of funds.

f) Earning stability.

g} Capital Restructuring Plan.

h) Past dividend trend of the Company and the industry.

I} Any other relevant or material factor as may be deemed fit by the Board.

5.2 External Factors: The Board shall consider the following extemal factors:

a) State of economy and capital markets.

b} Applicable taxes including dividend distribution tax.

¢) Shareholders Expectation.

d) Regulatory Changes: Introduction of new or changes in existing tax or regulatory requirements (including dividend
distributicn tax) having significant impact on the Company’s operations or finances.

8) Technological changes which necessitate significant investment in the business of the Company.

f) Toretain a larger portion of profit to build up reserves, in case of adverse economic scenaric,

g} Inflation Rate & other economic factors.

h} Considering the restrictions, if any, imposed by the act and other applicable laws with regard to declaration of
dividend in order to ensure compliance with the applicable laws,

i) Force Majeure events include natural causes (fire, storms, floods, earthquake etc), governmental or societal
actions, infrastructure failures (transportation, energy) etc.

i) Anyother relevant or material factors as may be deemed fit by the Board.

[ The Board may also not recommend a Dividend considering the various factors prevailing in the local & international
market and or economic uncertainty beside the issued mentioned in above 5.1 & 5.2]
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6. Scope of the Policy

The Policy covers the following:
6.1 Dividend to Equity Shareholders of the Company:

At present the Company has only one class of equity shares. As and when the Company proposes to issue any other
class of equity shares, the Policy shall be modified accordingly.

6.2 Interim Dividend
a) Interim Dividend(s), if any, shall be declared by the Board.

b In case no final dividend iz declared for any particular financial year, interim dividend paid during that year, if any
shall be regarded as final dividend for the year in the Annual General Meeting (AGM).

6.3 Final dividend

a} Aecommendation, if any, shall be made by the Board, usually in the Board meeting that considers and approves
the annual financlal statements, subject to approval of the shareholders of the Company.

b) The dividend as recommended by the Board shall be approved/declared in the AGM of the Company.

7. Dividend Pay Out NMethod and Timing

The Company shall distribute declared and duly approved dividend to all shareholders in a timely manner and in line
with Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission directions (as issued time to time) and any applicable local
laws, rules and regulations.

8. Unclaimed Dividend

Any unclaimed or unsettled dividend shall be managed in line with Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission's
directions {as issued time to time) and any other applicable local laws, rules, and regulations.

9. Manner of Utilization of Retained Earnings

The retained earnings zhall be deployed in line with the objects of the Company as detailed in Memorandum of Associafion
of the Company. The Company shall endeavor to utilize its retained eamings in a manner which shall be beneficial to the
interest of the Company and alse its shareholders. The decision of utilization of the retained eamings shall be based on the
factors like strategic and long term plans of the Company, diversification oppertunities, or any other criteria that may be
congsidered relevant by the Board in this regard.

10. Review

This Policy is issued with the consent of the Board of Directors of the Company and can be amended only with the
authority of the Board of Directors as may be deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors of the Company. Any
content of this policy or any future change/amendment to thereof shall not contradict or be in conflict with any of the
provisions of the BSEC Directives issued from time to time. In such a situation, provisions of the BSEC directives shall
prevail.
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11. Conflict of Policy

In the event of the Policy being inconsistent with any regulatory provision, such regulatory provision shall prevail upon
the corresponding provision of this policy.

12. Amendment or Modification

The Board may, from time to time, make amendment(s)/ modify to this Policy to the extent required due to change In
applicable laws and/or regulations or as deemed fit on a review.

13. Disciaimer

The abeove Policy Statement dees not Induce investment in the Company or represent a commitment on the future
dividends of the Company but represents a general guidance on the Dividend Policy of the Company.

14. Disclosure

This Dividend Distribution Policy (as amended from time to time) will be uploaded on the Company's website and in
the annual report and any other form as guided! instructed from time fo time by BSEC,

~ Chairman
Board of Directors
Padma Oll Company Limited




ANNUAL REPORT 2021-2022

Report of the Audit Committee

Audit Commitiee of Padma OQil Company Limited was formed by the Board of Directors of the Company in
accordance with the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission's Motification No-SEC/CMRRCD/
2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 June 2018.

The composition of present Audit Committee is as under :

Mr. Quazi Md. Anwarul Hakim : Chairman
Mr. Kazi Mohammad Mozammel Hoque : Member
Mr. Md, Zakir Hossain, Director : Member
Wr. Moman Ahmed Taffader : Secretary

Terms of Reference

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to ensure and to improve the adequacy of internal control system and
provides the update information lo the Board of Direclors. The Committee is empowered lo examine the maller
relating to the financial and other affairs of the Company. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee cover
all matters specified under Clause-5(5) of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission®s Motification
date 3 June 2018.

Role of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee shall ;-

0 oversee the financial reporting process;
O monitor choice of accounting policies and principles;

@ manitor Intemal Audit and Compliance process to ensure thal it is adequately resourced, including approval

of the Internal Audit and Compliance Plan and review of the Internal Audit and Compliance Report;

o

oversee hiring and performance of external auditors;

3 hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for review of the annual financial statements before
submission to the Board for approval or adoption;

3 review along with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the Board for
approval;

O review along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial statements before submission to
the Board for approval;

O review the adequacy of internal audit function;

E review the Management's Discussion and Analysis before disclosing in the Annual Report; the adequacy of

internal audit function;

3 review statement of all related party transactions submitted by the management;
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O review Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control weakness issued by the statutory auditors;
O oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude, level of expertise deployed and time
reguired for effective audit and evaluate the performance of external auditors; and
0 oversee whether the proceeds raised through Initial Public Offering (IPQ) or Repeat Public Offering (RPO) or
Rights Share Offer have been utilized as per the purposes slated in relevant offer document or prospectus
approved by the Commission:

Provided that the management shall disclose to the Audit Commitiee about the uses or applications of the
proceeds by major category (capital expenditure, sales and marketing expenses, working capital, etc.), on a
quarterly basis, as a part of their quarterly declaration of financial results:

Provided further that on an annual basis, the Company shall prepare a statement of the proceeds ufilized for
the purposes other than those stated in the offer document or prospectus for publication in the Annual Report
along with the comments of the Audit Committee.

Number of Meeting
The Committee formally met five times during the peried form July 2021 to June 2022,

Activities carried out by the Audit Committee :
During 2021-2022 the Audit committee carried oul the following tasks:

O Reviewed the financial statements of FY 2021-22 submitled by the external auditors and put Commitiee’s
recommendations to the board,

[ Reviewed the quarterly and half-yearly financial statements of 2021-22 and put Commitiee’s recommendations
to the board;

O Reviewed revized budget of the Company during 2021-22 including budget of 2022-23 and put Committee’s
recommendations to the board;

O Reviewed Management Letter issued by the Statutory auditors and put Committee's recommendations
to the board.

The committee reviewed and discussed the financial reports preparation and the external audit report during FY
2021-22. The committee found adequate arrangeiment to present a free and fair view of the activities and the financial
status of the Company, and did not find any material deviation, discrepancies or any adverse finding/observation in
the areas of reporting.

(Quazi Md. Anwarul Hakim)
Chalrman
Audit Committee, FOCL
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Report of The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (NRC)

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of Padma Qil Company Limited was formed on 10 Novemnber
2018 by the Board of Directors of the Company in accordance with the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission's MNotification No-BSEC/CMARCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 June 2018. The policy on nomination
and remuneration of Directors and top level executives of the Company has been formulated by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (NRC) in compliance with the BSEC's above notification on Corporate Governance
under directives of Energy and Mineral Hesources Division under Ministry of Power, Energy and Mineral Resources
and Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation,

1. Composition:

1.1 The Momination and Remuneration Committee ("NRC") shall be appointed by the Board of Directors ("Board")
from among their members and shall consist not less than 3(Three) members,

1.2 In the event of any vacancy in the NRC, the Board shall within 3 (three) months appoint such number of new
members.

1.3 The appointment of a NRC member shall automatically be terminated if the member ceases to be a Director, or
as detarmined by the Board.

The composition of present Nominalion and Remuneration (NRC) Cemmitlee is as under:

Mr. Quazi Md. Anwarul Hakim, Independent Director : Chairman
Mr. Kazi Mohammad Mezammel Hogque, Director : Member
Mr. Md. Zakir Hoszaln, Director : Member
lr. Moman Ahimed Taffader, Company Secretary : Sacretary

2. Duration of appointments

Unless otherwise determined by the Board, the duration of appointments of the Committee shall commensurate with
the term and condition of appointment of the respective member to the Board of directors of the Company.

3. Chairman

3.1 The Chairman of the NRC shall be appointed by the board from among the members who is an Independent
Director.

3.2 Inthe absence of the Chairman of the NRC, the remaining members present shall elect one of their members as
chairman of the meeting.

3.3 The Chairman of the NRC shall report fo the Board on any matier that should be brought to the Board's attention
and provide recoinmendations of the NRC thal require the Board's approval at the Board Meeting.

4, Secretary of the NRC
4.1 The Board Secretary shall act as Secretary to the Committee and attend all meetings.

4.2 The Secretary shall draw up an agenda for each meeting, in consultation with the Chairman of the NRC. The
agenda shall be sent to all members of the NRC.

4.3 The Secretary shall prepare the Minutes of the NRC meeting and distribute it to each member. The Minutes of
the NRC shall be signed by the Chairman of the meeting.
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4.4 The Minutes of the NRC meeting shall be maintained by the Secretary and be presenled far approval of the
Board.

5. Terms of Reference

The Terms of Reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NAC) have been detarmined by the
Board as per BSEC's notification. The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria ar policy
for determining qualifications, positive attributes, experiences and independence of directors and top level executive as
well as fonnal process of considering remuneration of directors and top level executives under directives of Bangladesh
petroleum Corporation,

6. Responsibilities
To oversee, among others, the following matters and make report with recommendation to the Board:

(i} Formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive atfributes and independence of a director
under directives of concemed Ministry and Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (EPC) and recommend a
policy to the Board, relating to the remuneration of the directors, top level executive, considering the following:

{a) The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
suitable directors to run the company successfully under directives of concerned Ministry and Bangladesh
Petroleum Corporation (BFC).

(b} The relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks;
and

{c) Remuneration to directors, top level executive involves as balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short and leng-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and iis
goals.

(i) Devising a policy on Board's diversity taking into consideration age, gender, experience, ethnicity, educational
background and nationality:

(iii) Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in top leval executive
position in accordance with the criteria laid down by the concamed Ministry and Bangladesh Petraleum Corporation
(BPC} and recommend their appointment and removal to the Board;

(iv) Formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board,

(v) Identifying the company's needs for employees at different levels and determine their selection, transfer
or replacement and promotion criteria;

(vi) Developing, recommending and reviewing annually the Company’s human resources and training
policies.

{vil} To review and recommend the outcome of the evaluations and assessments o the Board conceming
the areas of continuous improvemnent.

(vil) To review and recommend the outcome of the evaluations and assessments to the Beoard conceming
the areas for continuous improvement.

(viil) To earry out such other duties or functions as may be delegated by the Board from time to time or
required by the regulatory authority.

7. Reporting

7.1 Minute of each Committee meeting will be disclosed at the next meeting of the Board, Periodically the Chair
of the Commitiee shall report to the Board on matters within its duties and responsibilities.
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7.2 The Committee shall compile a report of the work of the Committee in discharging its responsibilities for inclusion
in the Annual Report, including a description of significant issues dealt with by the Committee.

7.3 The Committee ghall in its decision making, give due regard to any relevant legal or regulatory requirements,
and associated best practice guldance, as well as to the risk and reputation implications of its decisions (liaising
where relevant with other committees).

7.4 The Committes shall have access to sufficient resources in order to carry out its duties and have the power
to engage independent counsel and other professional advisers and to Invite them to attend meetings.
8. 2021-2022 Meeting of NRC

During 2021-22, three of MRC meetings were held. The Committee made recommendations on the fallowing
activities:

8.1 To formulate the Service Rules of the Company;

8.2 Toformulate Car Loan Scheme Policy for the Officer of the Company;

8.3 To determine the Extra Work Allowance for the refueling Officer of the Company; and

8.4 To appoint the Independent Director,

9. Appeintment of Director and top level executive :
The committee shall identify and ascerain the integrity, qualification and experience of the person for appointment
as Director and top level executive and recommend histher appoinment as per company's policy.

10. Evaluation
The Committee shall carry oul evaluations of performance of Director and top level executives yearly or at
such interval,

11. Retirement :
The Director and top level executives shall retire as per policy of the Company.
12. Policy for Remuneration to Directors/ Top level Executives:
a) The Remuneration |s to be paid to top level executives as per Company's policy.
b} The Directors may receive meeting fees and such other remuneration as recommended by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors.

13. Self-Assessment :
The Committee shall conduct an annual self-assessment of its activities under the Terms of Heference and
report any conclusions and recommendations to the Board and, as part of this assessment, shall consider

whether or not it receives adequate and appropriate support in fulfilment of its role and whether or not its
annual plan of work is manageable.

14. Acknowledgement :

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee expresses its sincere thanks 1o the Members of the Board
and the Management of the Company for their excellent support in carrying out the duties and responsibilities
of the committee during the period under review

(e

(Quazi Nd. Anwarul Hakim)
Chairman MRC
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Khan Wahab Shafique Rahman & Co. Hussain Farhad & Co.
Charterad Accountants Charterad Accountants
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the shareholders of
PADMA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Padma Oil Company Limited ("the Company®) which comprise
the slatement of financial position as at 30 June 2022, statement of profit or los2 and other comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the period from 1 July 2021 fo 30

June 2022, and notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory infonmation.

In our opinion and to the best of cur information and according to explanations given to us, the accompanying
financial stateiments, prepared in accordance with International Financial Heporting Standards (IFRSs), give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the company as at 30 June 2022 and of its financial performance
and cash flows for the period from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2022 and comply with the Companies Act, 1994, the
Securities and Exchange Rules, 2020 and other applicable laws and regulations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standard on Auditing (ISAs) as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB). Qur responsibilities under those standards are
further described In "Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements” section of our report.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Frofessional Accountants (IESBA Code) that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in Bangladesh and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the [ESBA Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention following matters of the financial statements;

(i) We draw attention to Mote: 22 "Unclaimed Dividend" of the financial statements, which describes that the
Company has fransferred an amount of Tk. 124,956,044.90 on 27 Seplember 2021 fo Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission (Capital Market Stabilization Fund) as per notification no-
BSEC/CMRBRCD/2021-391/20/Admin/121 dated 14 January 2021 Lo fulfil itz requirement 1o transfer the
unclaimed dividend remained unpaid for three (3) years or more. The company has not yet transferred
unclaimed dividend Tk 16,071,179 for the year ended 30 June 2018 which has remained unpaid more than
three (3) years to comply aforesaid BSEC notification. The Company yet to formulate dividend distribution
policy which is required to be disclosed in fts annual report and officlal website. The Company formed a
committee on 02 October 2022 to finalize the dividend distribution policy.

{li} We further draw attenlion to Neole; 19 "Supplies and expenses payable” to the financial statements relaling
to duty, rate and taxes which includes Tk. 350,695.56 as lease rent for the year from 1981 to 1891 against
1.19 acres of land with Military Estate Officer (MOE). Lease agreement with MOE had already been expired
in the year 2010 and yet to be renewed. Moreover, no pravision regarding lease rent for the year 2011 to
2022 was recognized in the FSs under the report.

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgment, were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022. These matters, and any comments we make
an the results of our procedures thereon, wera addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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Khan Wahab Shafique Rahman & Co,
Chariered Accountants

Hussain Farhad & Co.
Chartered Accauntantls

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements. The results of our awdit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

[Revenue recag_nitinn - gale of gmda

[Refer lo note 25 and 3.09

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in aur audit

Hewvenue recognition has significant and
wide influence on financial statements.

Our audit procedures in this area included, among others:

Revenue is recognised when the amounts
and the related costs are reliably measured,
and the performance obligation is completed
through passing of control to the customers.
Revenue from the sale of goeds is recognized
when the company has delivered products to
the customers at the shipping point and
control has passed. The sales of the Company
are derived from factories and wvarious
depots located across the country with
relatively transactions of small amounts. As
a result, to obtain sufficient audit evidence,
magnitude of audit work and resource are
required.

- We understood, evaluated and validated the Key controls
related to the Gompany's sales process from end to end,
from contracts approval and sign-off, recording of sales, all
the way through cash receipts and customers’ outstanding
balances.

- We tesied the completeness of journal entries compared
to financial statements and whether if there is any
exception existed thal the debil accounts of sales
recognition were not related to cash and bank, trade
receivable or advances from customars.

We identified revenue recognition as a key
audit matter because revenue is one of the
key performance indicators of the Company
and therefore there is an inherent risk of
manipulation of the timing of recognition of
revenue by management to meet specific
targets or expectations.

We focused on the proper cut-off of sales to
the Company's customers due to the fact that
the documents of confirming the acceptance
of the products were provided by numerous
customers based in different locations.
There is a risk of differences between the
timing of acceptance of the products by the
Company's customers and when revenue
was recorded. Accordingly, there could be
potential misstatements that these revenue
transactions are not recognised in the proper
reporting periods.

- We conducted substantive testing of revenue recorded
over the year using sampling techniques, by examining the
relevant supporting documents including sales invoices
and challans. In addition, we confirmed certain customers’
receivable balances al the reporting dale, selected on a
sample basis by considering the amounts outstanding with
those customers.

- Furthermore, we lested the sales transactions recognized
shorlly before and after the reporting date, including the
sales returns (it any) recorded after that date, to examine
whether sales transactions were recorded in the correct
reporting periods.
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Valuation of Property, plant and equipment

Refer to note 4 and 3.01

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The company has large amount and numbers | Our audit procedures in this area included, among others:
of property, plant and equipment items. Due to | - Assessing the consistency of methodologies used for
technological and fime obsolescence the | depreciating the assets;

Impairment may exists. - Checking, on a sample basis , the accuracy and
relevance of the accounting of PPE by management; and
- For selected samples, performing physical verification of
assets to confinn existence;

- Checked disposal of assets whether those assets have
been deleted from asset register,

Management has concluded that there is no
impairment in respect all assets, This conclusion
required significant management judgment.
Hence we considered this to be a key audit
matter.

Recognition and measurement of deferred taxes
Refer to note 16.00 and 3.08

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company recognizes deterred taxes relating to property, | Our audit procedures in this area included, among others:
plant and equipment, provision for bad debis which are very
complex in nature,

-Assessed the design, implementation and operating
: , effectiveness of key contrals in respect of the Company's

Az such accounting for defemed faxes involves managemant i ;

judgement In developing esfimates of tax axposures and procass of racognition of defepred taxes;

contingencles in order to assess the adequacy of tax | - Using our own tax specialists o evaluate the tax bases and
provision. Hence, we considered this to be a key audit mafter. | Company's tax strateay.

As such accounting for deferred faxes invalves managemant | - Assessed the accuracy and completeness of deferred tax; and

judgment in developing estimates of tax exposures and | " i
contingancies In order to assase the adequacy of tax Evaluating the adequacy of the financlal statements

provision. Herce, we considered this to be a key audit mattor, disclosures, including disclosures of assumptions, judgements
and sensitivities.

Reporting on other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other Information comprises the information included in
the annual report, but does notl inelude the financial statements and our auditor's report therson. The draft annual
report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report but before  finalization of the
annual reparl.

Dur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion theraon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above when it becomes avallable and, In doing so, conslder whether the other Infermation Is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowladge obtained in the audit or ctheryise appears to ba matarially misstated.

When we read the annual report before finalization, if we conclude that there Is a material misstatement thorein, we will
communicate the matter to thosa charged with govemance of the Company so that the matter is duly addressed in tha

annual report.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements of the Company in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act, 1994, the Securifies and Exchange Rules, 2020
and ather applicable laws and regulations and for such Intemal control as managemeant determings s necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statemants that are free fram material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar.

In preparing the financial statements, managemeant |5 responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters raiated to going concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Thaose charged with governance are respansible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

i
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Auditors' Responsibilities far the Audit of the Financial Statementa

Cur objectives are to obiain reasonable éssurance abaut whether the financial statements as a whola are fres from material misstatement,
whether due ta fraud or error, and te lssua an auditers’ repor that Includes our opinlon. Reasonable assurance IS a high level of assurance,
but iz not a guarantsa that an audit conducted in accordance with 15As will always detect a material missiatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or amor and are considerad matardal if, individually or in the agoregetes, they could reasonsbly be
expactod to influence the scanomic decisions of users taken on the basls of the financial statements.

Az part of an audit in accordance with 154z, we axarcize professional judament and maintain profesesional scepticism throughout
the audit. \We also:

- ldentify and assess the rdsks of matetlal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perfomm audit procedures responsive o those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting & material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
errar, as fraud may Invelve collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overrdde of Internal central,

- Optain an undarstanding of intemnal control relevant 1o the audit in order to design audit procedures thal are appropriate in the
circumstances, bul nof for the purposs of expressing an opinien on the affsctivensss of the Company's Internal contral,

- Evaluate lhe appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimales and related
dizclosures made by management.

- Coneclude on the appropriatensss of management's use of the golng concem basis of sccounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists ralated to events or condifions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ghility to continue as a going concemn. If wa concluda that & material uncerainty exists, we ars required o draw
attention in our auditors’ report o the related disclosures In the financial statemsnts or, If such disclosures are inadequate, o
modify aur apinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence cbtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. Howevear,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as & going concer.

= Evaluate the ovarall presentation, structure and content of the financial statemants, including the disclosures, and whether tha
financial statements represent the undarlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves falr presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business achivities within the
Company to express an opinion on the linancial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the audit. We ramalin solely responsible for our audit opinion,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amang other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencias in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Wea alzo provide thosa charged with governance with & statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding indepandence, and to communicate with tham all relationships and othar matters that may reasonably be thought fo
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we detarmine those malters that were of mast
gignificanoa in the audit of the financial statements of the current pariod and are therefore the Key audit matters. Wea dascribe
these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstancas, we determing thal a matier should not be communicated in our report because the adverse conssquencas
of doing so0 would reasonably be expacted to outweigh the public inferest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Companies Act 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules 2020, we also report the following:

a) we have obtainad all the information and explanations which to the bast of our knowledge and beliel were necessary for the
purposes of our audit and made dus veriflication thereaf;

b3} in our opinion, proper books of account as raquirad by l[aw have been kept by the Company so far as it appearad from our
examination of those books;

) the statement of financial position and statement of prefit or lose and other comprehensive Income dealt with by the report are
in agreement with the books of account and returns; and

d} the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Company's business.
p
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Chartered Accountants Charterad Accountants
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Padma Oil Company Limited
Statement of Financial Position
As at 20 June 2022
Taka in "000

ASSETS MNote(s) 20 june 2022 20 June 2021
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 1,617,244 1,739,546
Capital work-in-progress 5 1,122,845 659,834
Investment - Depreciation Fund (FIDR) & 1,775,221 1,614,304
Investment - Long Term (FIDR] 7 5,982,201 1,601,330
10,497,511 5,615,014
Current assets
Investment - Short Term (FDR) B 5,667,946 -
Inventories 9 14,734,203 15,794,618
Accounts receivable 10 18,732,114 16,982 883
Due from affiliated companies i1 20,988,149 16,423 864
Advances, depnsits and pre-payvments 12 2,505,390 209,251
Cash and cash equivalents 13 38,967,515 39.065.100
101,595,317 88,479,716
TOTAL ASSETS 112,092,828 94,094,730
Shareholders® equity
Share capital 14 982,327 Q82,327
Depreciation Fund Reserve (Accumulated Surplus) 15 269,896 187.669
Retained earnings 16,467,151 15,273,490
Total equity 17,719,374 16,543,486
LIAEILITIES
Non-currentliabilitdes:
Deferred tax liabilities 16 128,729 187.245
Long T'erm Loan 17 183,463 183,463
312,192 370,708
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 18 11,017,956 15,079,389
Supplies and expenses payvable 19 3377934 3,761,525
Due to affiliated companies 20 75115370 53,609,075
Other llabilitles 21 4,284,863 4,225,918
Inclaimed dividend 22 63,014 178,708
Income tax payable 23 202,122 325,921
94,061,261 77,180,536
Total Liabilities 94,373,453 77,551,244
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 112,092 828 94,094,730
Net Asset Value [ NAV ) per share 41 Tk.180.38 Tk. 16841

The annexed notes from 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.

ARoofd

ma.nmqhal Quazid. Anwarul Hakim

CEQ & Managing Director independeant Director

As per our annexed report of same date. -

Chartered Accountants
Chattogram, 02 November, 2022
DVC @ 2211080779A5347749

Bashudeb Ganguly
Independant Director

Mohammad §§ahid ul Alam
Company Secretary

Khan Wahab Shafique Rahman & Co.
Charterad Accountants

Chattogram, 02 Movember, 2022

DWVC : 22711081018AST48426
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Padma Oil Company Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2022 Taka In '000
01 July 2021 to 01 July 2020 to
Notels) 30 June zoz2 30 June 2021
Gross earnings on Petroleum Products 25 2,343,909 2,161,231
Direct cost on Petroleum Products:
Packing Charges 25.01 (21,819} (23,329)
Handling Charges 25.01 (7,623) (4,398)
2,314.467 2,133,504
Met Operational (Loss}/Gain 31.01 (132,574} 3,977
Net earnings on petroleum products 2,181,892 2,137481
Operatng expenses:
Administrative, selling and distribution expenses 26 (2,166,968) {1,903,946)
Financial exponses 27 [249,685) [245,605)
Operating Profit on Petroleum (234,760) (12,070)
Other Operating Income 28 789,530 152,433
Operating (loss) /profit on Agro-chemical trading 29 (28.398) (29,388)
Total Operating Profit 526,372 410,975
Non-operating [ncome 30 2,616,070 2,669,347
Profit before WPPF and income tax 3,142 441 3,080,322
Contribution to Warkers' Profits Participation and Welfare Fund [157,122] (154,016)
Net Profit before income tax 2,985,319 2,926,306
Provision for Income tax:
Current tax 23 [640,038) [665,5964)
Deferred tax 16 58,516 25,683
(581,522) (640,281)
Net Profit after tax 2,403,797 2,286,025
Surplus from Investment transfer to . ;
D:'Pp;&ciaﬁun Fund Reserve 15.00 (82:237) (86.069)
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the vear 2,321,570 2,199,956
Earnings per share (EPS - basic) 3z Tk. 24.47 Tk.23.27

The annexed notes from 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.

)

Mohammad Shahidul Alam  Md. Abu Salel’igbal Qua:Fﬁﬁl.'Anwarul Hakim Bashudeb Ganguly
Company Secretary CEQ & Managing Director Independent Director Independent Director

As per our annexed report of same date.
Spvpe VS
Hussain Farhad & Co. {
Jiwﬁl

Chartered Accountants

Khan Wahab Shafigue Rahman & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Chattogram, 09 Navember, 2022
DVC : 2211091016A5T48426
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Padma 0Oil Company Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2022
Taka '000
Capitl_ Barmings _ Fund Reserve 10 €0y

Balance as on 01 July 2020 982,327 14,401,443 101,600 15,485,370
Cash dividend declared for the year 2019-2020 - (1,227,909) - (1,227,909)
Transferred from Depreciation Fund - 86,069 86,069
Total comprehensive income for the year - 2,199,956 - 2,199,955
Balance as at 30 June 2021 982,327 15,373,490 187,669 16,543,486
Balance as on 01 July 2021 982,327 15373490 187,669 16,543,486
Cash dividend declared for the year 2020-2021 - (1,227,909) - (1,227,909)
Transferred from Depreciation Fund - H2,227 82,227
Tokal comprehensive income for the year - 2,321,570 - 2,321,570
Balance as at 30 june 2022 982,327 16467,151 269,896 17,719,374

The annexed notes from 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.

o]

|" (!
Mohammad Shahidul Alam  Md. Abu Salebigbal  Quaziid. Anwarul Hakim  Bashudeb Ganguly

Company Secratary CEC & Managing Director

Indepandeant Director

Independent Director
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Padma Oil Company Limited
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 June 2022

f——)
L]
=

Huszgain Farhad & Co.
Charterad Accountants

Taka in '000
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
A. Cash Flows from Operaling Activities:
Receipts from customers and others 221,671 475 157,087,232
Paid to suppliers against petroleum and agro products and others (211,8B52,052) (156,444,002)
Receipts against other income 835,769 494 289
Interest and bank charges paid (249,685) (245,605)
Income tax paid {763,837 {633,656)
Net cash (used from)/generated by Operating Activities 9,641,670 268,258
. Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital Expenditures (561,913) (292,783)
Investment -FDRs (10,209,734) (1,835,749)
Interest received from FDR/SND 2,373,995 2,710,588
Proceeds [rom dispesal of property, plant and equipment 2,000 2,662
Net cash (used from)/generated by Investing Activities (8,395,652) 584,717
. Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Dividend paid (1,343,603) (1,217,037)
Netcash (used from)/generated by Financing Activities (1,343,603 (1,217,037)
Total (A+B+C) (97,585) (364,062)
Opening cash and cash equivalents 39,065,100 39429162
Closing cash and cash equivalents 38,967,515 39,065,100
Operating Cash (Outflow)/Inflow per share (note - 41) Tk.98.15 Tk.2.73

The annexed notes from 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.

T
M;] (ol
Mohammad Shahidul Alam  Md. Abu Salelvigbal Quaziﬂ'ﬁﬂﬁwarul Hakim

Company Secretary CED & Managing Directar Independent Director

Red]

Bashudeb Ganguly

Independant Director
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1.00
1.01

1.02

2.00
2.01

2.02

2.03

2.04

Padma Oil Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 30 June 2022

REPORTING ENTITY

Legal Form of the entity

FPadma Oil Company Limited (The 'company’) was incorporated as a Public Limited Company on 27 April
1865 under the name and style of Burmah Eastern Limited having its registered office at Chattogram. In
1977, Burmah Eastern Limited became a subsidiary of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BFC). The
name of the company was changed to Padma Oll Company Limited (POCL) with effect from 3rd September
1988 and its shares are listed with both the Chittagong Stock Exchange (CSE) Limited and Dhaka Stock
Exchange (DSE) Limited.

The company has set up its factory at Guptakhal, Chattogram and commenced commercial production from
1 April 2008, The registered office of the company Is situaled at Padma Bhaban, Strand Road, Sadarghal,
Chattogram, Bangladesh.

Mature of the business

The principal activities of the Company are procurement, storage and marketing of Petroleum products,
Lubricanis, Greases, Bitumen and LPG,

In addition, the Company manufactures Agro Chemicals products (Furadan} in its Granular Pesticides
Formulation plant and markets Furadan together with certain other imported Agro-Chemicals products.

BASIS OF PREPARATION, PRESENTATION & DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Aceounting Standards
{1ASs), International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the Companies Act 1894, the Securities and
Exchange Rules 2020 and other applicable laws and regulations in Bangladesh as per requirements
under the Financial Reporting Act 2015, Cash flows from operaling activities are prepared under direct
method as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Rules 2020.

Basis of reporting

The financial statements are prepared and presented for extermnal users by the company in accordance
with identified financial reporting framework. Presentation has been made in compliance with the require-
ments of |AS 1 - "Prasentation of Financial Statements". The financial statements comprise of:

a) A statermnent of financial position as at 30 June 2022

b} A statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for tha year ended 30 June 2022
c) A statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2022

d} A stalement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2022

e) Notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and explanatory information.

Other regulatory compliances

The Company is also required to comply with the following major laws and regulations along with the
Companies Act 1994

i) The Income Tax Ordinance, 1284

ii) The Income Tax Rules, 1984

i) The Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Act, 2012

iv) The Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Rules, 2016
v) The Custarms Act 1969

vi) Bangladesh Labour Law 2006

vii) The Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969

viil) The Securities and Exchange Rules, 2020

ix) Securities and Exchange Commission Act, 1953, efc.

Basis of measurement
The elements of Financial Statements have been measured on "Historical Cost ® convention in a going
concem concepl and on accrual basis.

%;i
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2.05 Going concern

2.06

2.07

2.08

2.09

2.10

The company has adeqguate resources and intention to continue its operation as going concem lor the
foreseeable future. For this reason the directors continue to adopt geing concern basis in preparing the
Financial Staterments.

The current revenug generations and resources of the company provide sufficient fund to meet the
present requirements of its existing business and operation.

Comparative Information

Comparative information has been disclosed In respect of the preceding year in accordance with 1AS-1!
Frazentation of Financial Statoments, for all numeric information in tha financial statements and also the
narrative and scriptive information where it Is relevant for understanding of the current year's Financial
Statements. Prior year's figures are rearranged whearevar considerad necessary to ensure comparability
with the current year.

Functional and presentation currency

The linancial statements are presented in Bangladeshi Taka (BDT/Tk) which is the Company's functional
currency. All financlal information presented in EDT has been rounded off to the nearest thousand Taka.

Consistency

Unless otherwise stated, the accounting policies and methods of computation used in preparation of the
financial statements as at and for the year ended 30 June 2022 are consistent with those policies and
methods adopted In preparing the financial statements for the yvear ended 30 June 2021.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position basad on
current/non-current classification.

An asset Is current when it is:

a. Expeacted to be realized or intended te sold or consumed in the nermal operating cycle

b. Held primarily for the purpose of trading

c. Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period and

d. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at |east
twelve months after the reporting period

The company classifies all other assets as non-current.

A liability is current when:

a, It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle

b. It iz held primarily for the purpose of trading

c. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period and

d. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve manths after the
reporting period.

The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified
as nencurrent assets and liabilities.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with 1AS and IFRS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumplions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reporiad
amounts of assets, llabiifles, iIncome and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the pericd in which the estimates are revized and in any future periods affected.

Judgements, Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about judgements made In applying accounting policies and assumptions and estimation
uncertainties that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized In the financial statements
Iz included In the following notes:

Mote 4: Property, plant and equipment
Mote B; Inventories

Mote 10: Accounts receivable

Mote 21: Other liabilities

Mote 23: Income tax payable/(receivable)
Mate 16: Deferred tax liabilities

Mote 39: Contingent liabilities
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Measurement of fair values
When measuring the Tair value of an assel or liability, the entity uzes market observable dala as far as
possible. Fair values are categorized Into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based an the inputs
usad in the valuation technigues as follows.
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets and liabllities.
Level 2: Inpuis other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are cbservable for the asset or liahility,
aither direclly (l.e. as prices) or Indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3: Inputs for the assets or llabilitles that are not based on observable market data.
If the inputs used te measure the fair value of an asset or liability might be categorized in different levels
of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.
21 Reporting period
These financial statements of the company cover one year from 01 July to 30 June and is followed
consistently.
212  Authorization for issue
These financial staternents for the yvear ended 30 June 2022 have been authorized for issue by the Board
of Directors on 08 November 2022,
3.00 Significant accounting policies
The specific accounting policies selected and applied by the company's management for significant
transactions and events that have malerial effect within the framework of [AS-1 "Prezentation of Financial
Statements", in preparation and presentation of financial statements have been consistently applied
throughout the year and weare also consistant with those used in earlier years, except otherwise stated.
For a proper understanding of the financial statements, these accounting policies are set out below in ona
place as prescribed by the |IAS-1 "Presentation of Financial Statements”™. The recommendations of IAS-1
relating to the format of linancial statements were also taken into full consideration for fair presentation.
For a proper undarstanding of tha financial statemnents, these accounting policies are set out below in ona
place as prescrided by the [AS-1 "Presentation of Financial Statements™. The recommendations of IAS-1
relating to the format of financial statements were also taken Into full conslderation for falr presentation.
3.01  Property, plant and equipment
2.02  Financial instruments
3.03 Inventorias
3.04 Impairment
3.05 Employee benefils
3.06 Eamings per Share (EPS)
3.07 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
3.08 Taxation
3.09 Hevenue
3.10  Other income
3.11  Ewvents after the reporting period
3.12 Leases
3.13 Segment Reporting
3.0 Property, plant and equipment
3.01.01 Recognition and measurement

All Property, Plant & Equipments except Freehold Land are initially accounted for at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful lives in accordance with [AS 18 "Property, Flant and Eguipment®,

Cost includes expenditures that are direclly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. The cost of self
constructed /installed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour and any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets to the working condition for its intended use and the cost of dismantling
and removing the ilems and resloring the site on which they are located.
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3.01.02

3.01.03

3!”1 iH

3.01.05

3.02

On retirement or otherwise disposal of property, plant and eguipment, the cost and accumulated depreciation
are eliminated, and any gain or loss on such disposal Is reflected in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income which Is determined with reference to the net book value of the assets and
the net sale proceads.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment Is recognized In the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefit embodied within the part will flow to
the company and its cost can be measured reliably. The cosis of the day to day servicing of property,
plant and equipment are recognized In Staterments of profit or loss and other comprehensive Income as
incurred.

Depreciation

Mo depreciation Is charged on lreehold land and on capital work In progress. Depreciation is recognized in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on straight line method over the estimated
useful lives of property, plant and equipment. Depreciation is charged from the month of addition when the
aesset is ready for use and no depreciation is charged from the following month of deletion. The principal
annual rates are as follows:

Assets Rates of depreciation (%)
Leasehold Land 3.5

Building 2.5-10

Plant and Machinery 7.5-10

Vehicle 20

Furniture and Fixture 5

Others facilities 7.5-25

Capital Work-In-Progress
Froperty, Plant and Equipment under consfruction/acquisition is accounted for and measured at cost as
capital work-in-progress until construction/acquisition is complelad and it Is ready Tor use.

Depreciation fund

i} Padma Qil Company Limited Depreciation Fund was formed on 28th Day of November 2019 as per
decision of The Ministry of Power, Energy and Mineral Resources vide memao no. 28.00.0000.029.01.
D08.18.356 dated 24 Decamber 2018 and subsequently approved by the Board of Directars in thair the
meeting no. 453 hald on 03 September 2019,

il) The objective of the fund is to accumulate the depreciation charged to the assets of the company in
each financial year and use the fund for replacement of decrepitated Asset(s) / Procurement / acquisition
of new Asset(s) / new plant / new business and keep the Tund in the Bank or In Governiment Securities.

iii) Five {5) percent of income of the fund will be distributed among the Employees & Workers who are in
active service of the company.

Iv) Income are not distributable to the shareholders of Padma Oil Company Limited.

Consolidation of the Financial Statements of Padma Qil Company Limited Depreciation Fund has been
made with the Padma OIll Company Limited, Chattagram as per resolution the Board of Directors In their
the meeting no. 457 held on 28 Novembar 2018,

Financial instruments
A Financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity Instrument of another antity.

{i) Non-derivative financial assets

The company initially recognizes accounls and other recelvables on the date that they are originated.
Financial assets include accounts and other receivables, advances, deposits and prepayments, investment
in FDOR and cash and cash equivalents.
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3.03

3.04

3.05

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
guoted in an active market. Such assets are recognized Initially at fair value plus any direetly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, accounts and other receivables are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Deposits
At initial recognition, the Company measures security deposits at its fair value plus or minus transaction costs
that are dirsctly attributable to the acquisition.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash on hand and demmand deposits, together with short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash, and that are subject fo
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

{ii) Non-derivative financial liabilities

Liabilities (including liabiliies designated at fair value through profit or loss) are recognized initially on the
trade dale at which the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The
company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or
expire, Financial liabilitiez includes liabilities and accounts and other payables.

Accounts and other payables

The company recognizes a financial liakility when its contractual ebligations arising from past events are
certain and the settlement of which Is expected to result In an outflow from the entity of resources
embodying economic benefits.

Other liabilities
Other liabilities represents the amounts due to various parties for receiving services. These are initially
recognized at cost which is the fair value. After initial recognition these are camried at amortized cost.

Inventories

Maior and minor petroleum products of BPC excluding Lubes and Greases are valued at net realizable value.
Lubes, Greases and Agro-chemical products are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Stocks of
storas and spares are valued at ywaighted average cost. Statutory charges (like Custom-duty or VAT) and
freight attributable to Stock-in-frade are carried forward and added to the value of the stocks. However, cost
comprises procurement cost and attributable overheads to bring the goods to thelr rezpective state at which
they weare on the reporting date.

Impairment

Financial Assets

Financial assets are impaired I objective evidence Indicates that a loss event has occurred after initial
recognition of the assets and that the loss event had a negative effect en the estimated luture cash flows
of that assets that can be estimated reliably.

Financial assets net classified as fair value through profit or loss, leans, receivables and investment in an
equity accounted investes are assessed at each reporting date to determing whether there is objective
evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event
has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the

estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be esitimated reliably.

MNon Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the group's non-financial assels, other than inventories and deferred tax assels,
are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists then the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized if
the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-generaling unit (CGU} excesads s estimated recoverable
amount.

Employee benefits
Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by the entity in exchange for service rendered by
an employee.
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3.05.01 Short-term employee benefits

3.05.02

3.06

3.06.01

3.06.02

3.06.03

3.07

3.08

Short-term emplovee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service is provided.

Post employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are employee benefits which are payable after the completion of employment. The
company maintains both defined contribution plan and defined beneafit plan for its eligible permanent employees,

Defined contribution plan

The company has tiwo contributory provident funds for its junior and senior executives which were recognized
on 30 June 1967 under the applicable Income Tax laws and regulations. Confribution to the fund is made
equally by employee and employer @ 10% of basic pay for eligible permanent employees. The sald funds
are managed by duly constituted four member Board of Trustees, Assets of provident fund are held in a
separate Trustee Funds as per the relevant rules and is funded by payments from employees and by the
company. The company’s contributions to the provident funds are charged as revenue expenditure in the
period to which the contributions relate.

Defined benefit plan

The company maintains a funded gratuity/pension scheme. Contribution to gratuity/pension fund for
pension andfor gratuity benefits is made at the rate as determined on the basis of valuation certifled by
an actuary after every three years,

Workers' Profit Participation Fund

The company also account for provision of Workers' Profit Participation and Welfare funds (WPF & WF)
@ 5% of its profit before charging such expenses as per Labour Act 2006.

Earnings per Share (EPS)

The company calculates its earnings per share in accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standard
[AS-33 "Eamings per Sharg” which has been reported on the face of Staterment of Profit or Loss and
Othar Comprahansive Income.

Basis of Earnings

This represents profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareheolders. As there is no preference

dividend, minority Interest or extra ordinary items, the net profit after tax for the year has been considerad
fully attributable to the ordinary shareholders.

Basie Earnings Per Share

This has been calculated by dividing the basic earnings by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted Earning Per Share

Mo diluted Earnings per share was required to be calculated tor the year under review as there is no
scope for dilution of Earnings Per Share for the year.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision Is recognized in the Statermant of Financlal Position when the group has a legal or contractual
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an cutflow of economic benefits will be required to
seftle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Contingencies
arising from claims, litigations, assessments, fine, penalties ete. are recorded when it is probable that a llability
has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated. Contingent assets are not recognized in the
financial statements.

Taxation
Current tax:

Income tax expense is recognized in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Current
[ax is the expecled tax payable on the tolal income Tor the year using tax rales enacled or substantially
anacted as of reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous vears. The company
gualifies as a publicly traded company; hence the applicable tax rafe is 20.00% for the year.
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Deferred tax;:

2.09

310

311

312

Deferred tax llabliittes are the amount of Income taxes payable in the future periods in respect of taxable
temparary differences. Deferred tax assets are the amount of income taxes recoverable in future periods
in respect of deductible temporary differences. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
future tax conseguences of timing differences arising between the carrying values of assets, lHabllities,
income and expenditure and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using lax rates and tax laws thal have been enacted or substantially enacted at the Staterment of Financial
Fosition date. The Impact of changes on the account in the deferred tax assets and liablliles has also been
recagnized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as per IAS-12 “lncome
Taxes".

Revenue

In compliance with the requirements of IFRS 15 | Commission earnings from sales of petroleum products
are measured at fair valug of the consideration received or receivable, Commission on petroleum products
are determined by Govermment through official Gazetle Motiflication issued from fime to ime. Revenue
from the sale of agro-chemical products Is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of retums, trade discounts and volume rebates.

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can
be estimated reliably, there is no eontinuing management invalvement with the goods, and the amount of
revenue can be measured raliably.

Other income

Other income - operating

Other income-operating includes land rent, service charges, filling and power station rent, POL products
handling, and interest income on delayed payment. Other operaling income are recognized as revenue
income as and when accrued / realized.

Other income - non-operating
Other income-non-operating includes interest income frorm SND and FOR, profit on disposal of assets

and sale of scrap. Interest from FDR and SMD are recognized when accrued while profit on disposal of
assats and sale of scrap are recognized as income when realized.

Events after the reporting period

Evenis after the reporting period that provide additional information about the company's position at the date
of statement of financial position or those that indicate the geing concern assumption is net appropriate are
reflected in the financial statements. Events after the reporting period that are nol adjusting events are
dizclosed in the notes when material.

Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the conlracl. The Company
recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in
which it Is the lessee, except for shor-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less),
For thess leases, the Company recognises the lease paymeants as an operating expense on a straight-line
basiz over the term of the lease unless another systematic basiz iz more representative of the time pattern
in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The leasa liability is initially measured at the present value of tha leaze payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily
delermined, the Company uses ils incremental borrowing rate.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line In the statement of financial position.

I M
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3.13

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability {using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the
lease payments made.

The right-of-use assets comprizse the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease
payments made at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial
direct costs. They are subsequently measured al cosl less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Whenever the Company Incurs an obligation for costs to dismantie and remove a leased asset, restore
the site on which it is located or restore the underlying asset to tha condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and measured under 1AS 37. To the extent that the
costs relate to a right-of-use asset, the costs are Included In the related Aght-of-usze assel, unless those
costs arae incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lsase term and useful life of the underlying
assel. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects
that the Company expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use assel is depreciated
over the useful life of the underlying asset, The depreciation starls al the commencement date of the
lease.

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position.

The Company applies IAS 36 to determine whether a righl-of-use assel is impaired and accounts for any
identified Impairment loss as described in the '‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ palicy.

At the derecognition of a laase, the right-of-use asset and associated lease liability are removed from tha
hooks of the lessee. The difference between the two amounts is accounted for as a profit or loss at that
timia.

Segment Reporting

An operating Segment is a component of the company from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses,
including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the company's other components,
whose aperaling resulls are reviewead regularly by the company's managemenl commilies (being the chiel
operating decisions maker) to make decision about resources allocated to each segment and assess its
performance.

The company discussed its' Segment wise performance under note- 31.03 to Financial statements.
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Khan Wahab Shafique Rahman & Co. Hussain Farhad & Co.
Charterad Accountants Charterad Accountants
Taka in "000
MNote[s) 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
500 Capital workin Progress
Opening BEalance 659,834 536,933
Addition during the year 5.01 551,913 292,783
1,221,747 B29.716
E‘:;f:: red to property, plant and equipment during 4.00 (98,902) (169,882)
Closing Balance 1,122,845 659,834
501 Details of Capital Work In Progress { Taka in '000)
o Transferred to
Partculars : :lemg Exp;uﬂ_.itux incurred property, plant ];:;?sing
ance uring the vear and equipment ance
Building 495 485 471,628 [4.042) 053,071
Flant & Machinery 157,975 59,566 (74.472) 153,069
Vehicles 1.B74 31 - 2,205
Furndture & Fixtures - 1,583 [1.583) .
Other Facilities 4,500 18.805 (18,805) 4,500
Asat 30 June 2022 659,834 561,913 (98,902) 1,122,845
Asat 30 June Z021 536,933 292,783 (169,882) B59.6834
Talia in "000

30 June 2022 30 Junec 2021

6.00 Investment - Depreciation Fund (FDR)

AR Bank Limited 20,000 -
Agrani Bank Limited : 395,241
Bangladesh Comymerce Bank Limited 52.012 -
BasSIC Bank Limited 232.016 294 519
Dhaka Bank Limiced 181,350 -
Janata Bank Limilted 535,942 262,909
MNRE Global Bank Limited 114,228 184,045
Premier Bank limited 216,748 206,220
Rupali Bank Limited 162,120 -
Trust Banl Limited 121,580 -
Union Bank Limited 109,225 271,070
1,775,221 1,614,304

*Investment- Depreciation Fund (FDR) has been categorized the non-current assel= as per management
decizslon because the fund won't be encashed in near future Tenure of the above FDREs are 3-12 months and
interest rate is 6.00%.

F.00 Investment - Long Term (FDR)

Name of banks

Agrani Bank Limited 562,238 -

Bangladesh Krishi Bank Lirnited B52,878 -

Janata Bamk Limsited 2,900,102 -

Rupali Bank Limited 1.666,983 -

Sonall Bank Lid - 1,601,330
5,982,201 1,601,330

Tenure is 12 months, Interest Rate is 5.00%

8.00 Investment - Short Term (FDR)

Name of banks

Investment Corporation of Bangladesh 743,695 -

Janata Bank Limited 2,139,721 -

Raishahi Krishi Unnovon Bank Lrd. 217,270 -

Rupali Bank Limited 2,567,260 -
5,667,946 E

Tenure iz 6 months, Interest Rate [s 6.00%
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Hussain Farhad & Co.
Chartered Sccountants

Khan Wahab Shafique Rahman & Co.
Chartersd Accountants

Taka in 000
Note(s) 320 June 2022 30 June 2021
9.00 Inventories
Stock-ln-Trade [ Petroleum products) 9.01 14,228,359 15,253 850
Agro-chemnical products 9.02 309,965 338,201
Stores Q.03 81,803 7936
Packing materials 114,076 135,611
14,734,203 15,798,619
9.01 Stock-ln-Trade - Petroleum produocts
Major products 2100 13,622,892 14,557,584
Minor products 404,301 556,816
Freight 111,566 139,450
14,228,359 15,253,850
9.02 Agro-chemical products
Flnished products 21.02 307,700 336,048
Row material 2,023 2,023
In transit 242 130
309,965 338,201
9.03 Stores
Instock 81,672 63,921
In transit 131 1,035
81,803 70956
10,00 Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable - Petroleum products® 17,542,569 16,386,484
Accounts receivable - Agro-chemical products® 60,8397 69,873
17,603,466 16,456,357
Other receivables 1,263,545 661 423
18,867,011 17,117,780
Provision for bad debts against trade recelvable 10.02 (134,897 [134.897)
18,732,114 16,982 8083

* Accoumts Receivable (Petroleum Products) includes outstanding Tk 14.740,806,565 [rom Biman
Bangladesh Airlines. Which credit facilities were allowed with permission from BFC.

* Receivable againzst Agro-chemical trade i= secured by Bank Guarantees,/ Sanchaya Patira.

10.01  Ageing of accounts roceivables

Less than 6 months 1,956,341 584111
& months or above but less than 12 months 1,821,502 1,415,314
1 year or above but less than 2 years 1,355,674 1,084,861
2 years or above 13,598,557 13,598,597

16,732,114 16,282,683

10,02 Provision for Bad debts

Tl 98,924,000 receivable from Khulna Newspaper Mills against dues ard Th. 35,973,000 receivable from
Bangladesh Alr Force, Bangladesh Army and Bangladesh MNavy relating to the years 1998-199% and 1999-
2000 were accounted for as doubtfal debts in 2008 and 2009 respectively.

11.00 Due from Affiliated Entities / Companies

Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BPC) 19,882,950 15,135,637
Eastern Refinery Limited 12,380 11,241
Eastern Lubricant and Blenders Limited 37,896 16438
Standard Asjatic 0il Company Ltd 293,577 224,624
Liquified Petroleum Gas Limited 6,286 &237
Meghna Petroleum Limired 380,486 £16,659
Jamuna il Company Limited 374 574 613,016

20,988,149 16,423,864

Detall related party disclosure has been provided under note 37 and ageing of due from afiffliated
entities/companies are presented under note 46,04,
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Khan Wahab Shafique Rahman & Co.
Chartered Accountants

12.00

12.01

Advances, Deposits and Pre-payments
Advances

Deposits

Prepayments

Advances:
Advance to employees
Advance against expenses

12.01.01 Advances to employees

Emplovess' car advances
Employess' pergonal accounts
Festival advances

House building advances

Hussain Farhad & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Taka in '000

Note(s) 30 June 2022 30 Junc 2021
12.01 108,189 114,451
12.02 2,374,203 70431
12.03 22,998 24,369
2,505,390 209,251
12,0101 72,266 HZ,938
12.01.02 35923 31,513
108,189 114,451
2,490 1,407
877 952
39,404 40,644
29,445 39,935
72,266 #2,038

Advance to employees represents amount of advances recoverable in cash from employess by the

company.

12.01.02 Advances against expenses

12.02

Employees' travelling expenses
Contractors for supplies
Advance to carriers

629 1,063
18,976 13,882
16,318 16,568

35,923 31,513

Advances against expenses represents amount of advances to employees, various parties which will be

adjusted in the subsequent years.

Deposits:
Long term deposits
Short term deposits

12.02.01 Long term deposits

Securtty deposite against telephone
Security deposits against electricity supply
Sundry security deposits

Security deposits against chemicals

12.02.02 Shortterm deposits

12.03

13.00

Deposits against ranking maching
Depaosits against duty

Prepayments:
Insurance premium
Rent, rates and taxes

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash in hand

Remittance in transit { Through Pay Order)
Cash at banks

Fixed deposit receipis

12.02.01
12.02.02

13.01

13.02
13.03

11,672 11,672
2,362,531 58,759
2,374,203 70,431
106 106

1,113 1,113
10,430 10,430

23 23

11,672 11,672

5 3
2,362,526 58,756
2,362,531 58,759
3,842 4,055
19,156 20,314
22,998 24,369
1,204 1,078
1,212,974 985,123
29,981,036 22,935,765
7,772,301 15,143,129

38,967,515

39,065,100
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Hussain Farhad & Co.
Charterad Accountants
Taka in "M

Note[s) 30 June Z0ZZ 30 June 2021

Khan Wahab Shafique Rahman & Co.
Chartered Accountants

1201 Cash in hamd
Hend office S48 539
Depat -
= "l L
1302 Coshathanks
Short notice deposit [SMD) 1Z2.0Z.01 29,725,748 2E. 564,838
Current acoount 13.02.02 Z215.328 339.466
Collection account 13.02.03 2,136 7096
Dividend account 12.0Z.04 37,B24 24,368
20081 0 G 22935765
12.02.0]1 Shortnoilice deposil (SN
AL Banle Limited 4001587 1,B30,510
Agrani Bank Limited 26,347 149,300
Eanlk Asia Limited 19,173 24,147
BErac Banl Linjited 490,536 ZRB. 364
Cliyrbanic NA 20,877 25,0949
Eastern Bank Limited 4,518,518 Z,151.069
HSBC 1,428,552 352,145
Jamata Bank Linited R3Z62E3 203,048
Margantle Bank Livnitsd A 166,277 4. 249 884
WCC Banle Limited 111680171 FH4,005
MRE Bank Limiiced QTF2,047 1.859.8480
ONE Banl Limited 4,363,408 4,458,165
Prime Bank Lirmit=d Zh,039 IGH.G39
Pubell Bank Limited 16841202 1,793,732
Sanali Bank Lirmited BE9.667 A5, 964
Standard Chartered Bank 118,77 148,840
Trust Bank Limited 1,004 702 29,501
United Commercial Banle Limited 4559525 #,692456
2T 25, 748 22,564,538
1F.0Z.0Z2 Current Account
Erac Bank Limited 1,308 -
Jamata Hank Limiced an, 13z 124,894
Mercantile Bank Livnited 11,149 168,216
OHE Banlc Limitced 159,1&4 =
Sonall Bank Lirmited 5 5
Standard Chartered Bani 13.570 45,351
215,228 330466
13.02.03 Collection Account
Puball Bank Limited 2,136 5,455
Linived Commercial Pank Limited = L1 .
Z 136 7 0096
13.02.04 Dividend nccount
Standard Chartered Banle 37,824 24,265
37 HEE 24,365
1303 Fixed deposit receipts { FDR )
Mormne of hoanls
AR Hank Linaited 266,504 455,431
Agrani Bank Limited - 1206529
Al Arafa Islaml Banls Ltd 101,952 -
Bangladcsh Development Bank Limited 53427 H0.675
Bangladesl Krisli Bankk - 1,256,090
Fasic Bank Limited 107,221 F0=, 128
Community Banlk Bangladesh Linited 108,739 -
Community Banl Limited - 103,060
Dhaks Bank Limited - 50,675
Exim Bank Limited 4E0,A33 -
First Security I1slany Banlk Limdted 412,774 -
IF1C Pank Limitod 205436 451,350
Imvestment Corporation of Bangladesh - G9Z, 716
Janata Bank Lioaiced Q38 7/9 i, F TR RAR
Global Islami Bamk Limited 1,120,177 1477815
Mutual Trust Bande Led 50,000 -
MNadonal Beik Ltd - 206,283
NWERE Bank Limited S0,000 .
ONE Bank Limiced S0,000 -
Pramier Bank Lid 1,624 480 1,152.419
Hajshali Krighi Bank - 206,035
Rupali Bankk Limitod - FL0,000
Sncial [slami Banls Lionited 25872 5El8,5RG
Trust Bank Lindted 50,000 -
Union Bank Limited 1495309 1372722
united Commercial Banlc Lod S0, 000 -
F.F7FEZ301 15,143,129

Tenura is 3 months, Interast Rate is 6.00%
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Chartered Accountants Charterad Accountants

Taka in' 000
30 June 2022 20 June 2021

14.00 Share Capital
No. of Shares
Authorized capital:
100,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk, 10 each 1,000,000 1,000,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up capital:
LEZ75,000 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each fully paid up

1,275,000 12,750 12,750
in.cash.
1,225,000 Ordinary shares of Tk, 10 each fully issued as

LZ25,000 fully paid-up bonus shares for consideration other than 12,250 12,250
cash.
Ordinary shares of Tk, 10 ecach issued as fully paid-up

1,000,000 bonus [(stock dividend) shares inthe ratdo of 2 share for 10,000 10,000

cvery 5 shares held.
Ordinary shares of Tk, 10 cach izsued as fully paid-up

1,400,000 bonus (stocl dividend) shares in the ratio of 2 share for 14,000 14,000
every & shares held. '
Ordinary shares of Tk, 10 cach issuod as fully paid-up
4.900,000 bonus (stocl dividend) shares in the radio of 1 share for 45,000 49,000
every 1 share held on 321 January 2009,
Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each issued az fully paid-up
19,600,000 bonus (stock dividend) shares in the rado of 2 share for 196,000 195,000
every 1 share held on 06 February 2010,
Ordinary shares of Tk, 10 each issued as fully paid-up
14,700,000 bonus (stock dividend) shares in the ratio of 1 share for 147,000 147,000
every 2 share held on 12 May 2012,
Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each issued as fully paid-up
22,050,000 bonus (stock dividend) shares in the rato of 1 share for 220,500 220,500
every 2 share held on 28 June 2012,
Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each issued as fully paid-up

23152500 s (3504 stock dividend) held on 16 February 2013, 231,525 231.525
Ordinary shares of Tk.10 each issued as fully paid-up =
8,930,250 L 89,302 H3,302
bonus (10% stock dividend) held on 15 Februarmy 20714
98,232,750 982327 98x22T
14.01 Classification of shares by holding
No.of
Class by number of shares l Hold ] No. of Shares || Holding ?E
Less than 500 6,537 943,723 0.96
From 500 to 5,000 2,248 3492621 3.5a
From 5,001 to 10,000 157 1,142,520 1.16
From 10,001 to 20,000 108 1,511,763 1.54
From 20,001 to 30,000 =1 919,602 .94
From 30,001 to 40,000 21 742,593 0.76
From 40,001 to 50,000 & 277,647 0.28
From 50,001 to 100,000 21 1,593,213 1.62
From 100,001 to 1000000 L3 12,046,369 1226
From 1,000,001 and abowe o 75,662,799 76.92
9,184 93,232,750 100,00

14.02 Composition of Shareholders

Asat 30 June Z02ZZE Asat 30 June 20271
Blame Gfshareliolders Mo. of Shares | | Holding % || No. of Shares|| Holding %

Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation (BEPC) 48 455 866 50.35 40 455 866 E0.35
Public and Private Institutions 24 363,654 25.31 23,405,862 23.83
[nvestment Corporation of Bangladesh 9,403,157 9.57 9,311,651 5.48
Foreign Investors 843,087 0.88 B75.240 0.90
Individuals {Eangladezhi) 13,667,206 13.91 15,180,231 15.45

Total 98,232,750 100.00 28,232,750 100.00
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Hussain Farhad & Co.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Taka in "000
Note(s]) 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
15.00 Depreciation Fund Reserve
Opening Balance 187,659 101,600
Met surplus from investment 15.01 82,227 86,069
269,896 187,669
15.01 Surplus From Investment
Excezs of Income Over Expenditure 108,194 116902
Beneficlaries Profit Participation Fund (54107 (5.845)
102,784 111,057
Provision for Taxation @ 20% (20,657} [24 98]
82,227 86,069
16.00 peferred tax liabilities
Peferred tax liability has been calculated below at the applicable tax rate on the difference between the
carrying value of Property, plant and equipment, their respoctive tax bases and provision for bad debts:
Opening balance 187,245 Z12,928
Provided / [adjusted) for the vear [28,51&8) [25,683)
Closing balance 128,729 187,245
16.01 Reconciliatdon of Deferred tax liabilides /(assets)
Taka in "000
Carrying amount Taxable/
on the date of eductible
statement of Taxbase Utimpnrary]
financial position difference
Taka Taka Taka
Asat30 June 2022
Property, plant and equipment 1,617,244 B38,703 778,541
Provision for bad debts against trade receivable (134,897) - (134,8397)
643,644+
Applicable tax rate 20.00%
Deferred tax liability 128,729
Asal30 June 2021
Froperty, plant and equipnacnt 1,739,546 907,344 832,202
832,202
Applicable tax rate 22 50%
Deterred tax liability 187.245
Taka in "000
20 June 2022 30 June Z021
17.00 Long Term Loan
Loan Account - Storage Tank at GDL 110,078 110,078
Equity Account - Storage ['ank at GIDL 73,385 73,385
183 463 183,463

Long term liabilities represents Mund (rom Govl of Bangladesh { GOEB) [or the construction of 7000 MT Jet -
A-1 & 7000 + 8000 MT [I5D Storage tanks at Godnail Depobt GOB is providing the 60% of the fund as Loan
@ of 5% Interest and Balance 40% as Equity. The Loan has been repayable in 20 wears with a grace period

aof 5vyears.
18.00 Accounts payvable
Other supplies -BEFC 10,619,021 14,557,878
Other supplies - Others 36,210 An168
Other charges 362,725 483,344
11,017,956 15,079,389
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Khan Wahab Shafiqgue Rahman & Co. Hussain Farhad & Co.
Chartered Accourtants Chartered Accountants
Taka in "000
Note(s) 30 June Z02Z 30 June 2021
19.00 Supplies and expenses payable
Revenue charges-EPC 559,399 397,768
Revenue charges-Others 2,724,689 3,267,927
Duty, rates and taxes 85414 92831
Employees’ remuneration 5434 2,999
3,377,936 3,761,525
20.00 Due to affiliated entities / companies
Bangladesh Petraleum Corporation (BPC) 74,933,970 53,228,704
Meghna Petroleunt Limited 5,887 6,887
Janmmina 0il Company Limited 93,796 99,005
Standard Asiatic 0il Company Limited - 247,352
Liguified Petroleum Gas Limited 30,717 27,127

75,115,370 53,609,075

21.00 Other Liabilides

Advance agalnst sales from Customers and Agent 1,900,420 1,878,057
Emplovees” pension Mund 2101 136814 114,859
Emplayvess” fund-others [6,648) 32,895
Security deposits 192,197 170,565
Tax deducted at source 115 .
Employees” personal accounts * 59,179 53.030
Liabilities for Capital Expenditure 70,253 23.734
Workers' Profit Participation and Welfare Funds 2102 157,122 154,016
Others* 1,775 407 1,798,762

4,284 863 4225918

* Aracunts due to Managers and Officers of the company.
* Dthers included, amount recelved from Eastern Reflnery Limited for lease of land Tk, 1.499,157.474.

21.01 Employees' Pension Fund

Opening balance 114,859 488,034
Provision made during the year according to actuarial valuation 313,781 288,818

428,640 776,852
Payment to pension fund made during the year 291,827 661,953
Closing balance 136,814 114859

Actuarial valuation of the Pension Fund was conducted as on 30 June 2016 and the report was issued on
24 |anuary 2018, Past Service Deficits in the funds were estimated at Tk 937,423,000 for Senior Staff and
Tk 1,112,953,000 for Junior 5taff as on 30 June 2016. To meet the past service deficit, the valucr
recommended to pay Tk, 450 million each vear over the next five yvears and contribution of 14% of total
basic salary for Junior staflf and 23.7% of total basic salary for senfor staff cach year in respect of current
service cost. The valuation was conducted by % Halim & Associates, a reputed Actuarial & Pension
Consultants in Bangladesh. Barlier, valuation was done as on 31 December 2013 by the same actuary.

Actuarial assumption: ___Rate
Salary growth 5%
Return on investoent 6%

Takain "'000
30 June Z02Z 30 June 2021

21.0Z Workers' Profit Participation and Welfare Funds

Opening balance 154,016 191,480
Add: Provided during the year 157,122 154,016
Less: Paid during the year (154,01&) (191,480]

Closing Balance 157,122 154,016
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Khan Wahab Shafique Rahman & Co. Hussain Farhad & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Taka in 000
Note(s) 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
22,00 Unclaimed dividend
Unclaimed cash dividend 22.02 62,975 177,210
Unclaimed fractdonal dividend 22.03 - 1,498
Interest on unclaimed dividend 32 -
63,014 178,708

The Company has transferred an amount of Tk 124,956,044.90 on 27 September 2021 to Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission (Capital Market Stabilization Fund) as per notificadon no-
BSEC/CMRRCD/2021-391,/20/Admin/121 dated 14 January 2021 to fulfil itz requirement to transfer the
unclaimed dividend remained unpaid [or three (3] years or more. The company has not yet transferred
unclaimed dividend Tk 16,071,172 for the year ended 30 June 2018 which has remained unpaid more
than three (3) years to comply aforesald BSEC notification. The Company vet to formulate dividend
distribution policy which is required to be disclosed in its annual report and official website, The
Company formed a committee on 02 October 2022 to finalize the dividend distribution policy.

22.01 Movement of Unclaimed Dividend

Opening balance 178,708 166,338
Cash dividend declared during the year 1,227,909 1,227,509
Dividend paid during the year [1,343,603) (1,217.037])
Closing balance 63,014 177.210

22.02 Unclaimed cash dividend

Dividend outstanding for the years:
2021 15,520 -
2020 15,343 17,5594
2019 16,041 17,205
2018 16,071 16,660
2017 - 14,099
2016 - 17,016
2015 - 14,252
2014 - 31704
2013 - 14,633
2012 = 8,632
2011 - 11,357
2010 - 6,051
2009 - 1,745
2008 - 853
2007 or before - 5,409
62,975 177,210
Remaining unclaimed dividend on account of Individuals (Bangladeshi).
22.03 Unclaimed fractional dividend
2013 - 202
2012 - 136
2011 - 105
2010 - 14
1996 - 1,041

= 1498
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Chartered Accountants

23.00 Income tax payable

Hussain Farhad & Co.
Charlered Accountants

Taka in '000
Note{s) 30June 2022 30 June 2021

Opening balance 325,921 293,613
Add: Provision made during the year 640,038 a65, 964
Less: Paid/adjusted with advance incomes tax 23.01 [763.837]) [633,656)
Closing balance 202,122 325,921
23.01 Advance income ax
Tax deducted at source on supplying petroleum (U /5 52) 345,700 170,122
Tax deducted at source on import (U /5 53) 12,593 12,688
Tax deducted at source on interest on FDRs and SND (U /S 53F) 237,934 270,591
Advance tax paid (U/S 64) 36,000 35,000
632,227 488,608
Tax paid (U/5 74) 131,610 145048
763,837 633,656
23.02 Reconciliation of effective tax rate A0 June 2022 30 June 2021
Rate  Taka'000 Rate Taka '000
Profit for the year 3,142,441 2,926,306
Total Income tax expenses 18.51% 581,522 21.88% 640,281
Factors effecting the tax charge:
Income tax using the company's domestic tax rate 20.00% 628,488 22.530% 658,419
Excess of tax depreciation over accounting depreciation  0.37% 11,514 0.20% 5,835
Adjustmnent for inadmissible expenses 0.00% 36 0.06% 1,710
Impact of ternporary differences in deferred tax -1.BE6% [58,516) -0.88% {25,683)
18.51% 581,522 21.88% 640,281
24.00 Position of Pending Tax Assessments
(Recoverable) /
Accounting | Assessment | Payable as per order
Year Year of Tax Department Remarks
Takain ‘000
2001-02 2002-03 117,594 Rectification U /S 173 - pending In the Migh Court.
Rectification U /S 173 pending - AJCT reopened U /S
2002-03 2003-04 111,045 120 after tribunal order
Rectification U/S 173 pending - AJCT reopened U /5
2003-04 2004-05 97,610 R e ding
U/S 83(2)/ 82/ 156/ 159/ B3(2)/ 156 - Rectification
2004-05 2005-06 37,901 of mistake U/S 173
2005-06 2006-07 8,640 High Court against 82c - result in favour of POCL
2006-07 2007-08 [13,572)] Return submitted U /5 82BEB
2007-08 2008-09 41,768 High Court - result in favour of POCL
2008-09 2009-10 (295) Return submitted U /S 82BR
2009-10 2010-11 - Return submitted U/s 82BE
2010-11 2011-12 (125,114) Return submitted U /5 82BE
2011-12 2012-13
To To - Retuim submitted U/S 828R
2020-21 2021-22
2021-22 2022-23 - Return yet to be submitted

275,573
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25.02 Turnover and Cost of Goods Sold

01 July 2021 to 30 June 2022

Charered Accauntants Charered Accountants
in'00
———— i
Note{s) to to
30 June 2022 30 June 2021

25.00 Gross carnings on Petrolenm Product
Turnover 25.02 227,217,288 159,348,285
Costof goods sold 25.02 (224,873,380) (157,157,055)
Gross Earnings 2,343,909 2,161,231

25.01 Gross Earnings Operational
L. Major Products E_ﬂ““, Packaging ~ Handling  Gain/(Loss) Netearnings  Netearnings
HOBC 166,845 - {425) (28,511} 127,909 86,957
Jet A-T 538,886 - [1.279] [(154,580) 403,047 515,285
JES - - - - - 986
M5 156,574 [(469] (54,369 101,736 163 566
KO 19,904 - {85] (H.345) 11,474 9,810
HED 811,845 - [4.041) 37.018 B44,223 826,001
LDO 4572 - (2) - 450 Z47
FQ 84,318 - {587 66,545 150,376 148,012
L5FO 30,956 - {43) {240} 30,073 9,238
JED 354 - (11] 687 1632 855
MTT 5,832 = (2) {10} 5,820 1,352
SEP 796 = 1% (5281} 196 334
Sub Toml 1,817,365 - (7.563) [132,868] 1676936 1762684
ii N
Lubs & Greases 512,235 [(21.819) {13] & 450,403 350,517
LPG{Cylinders) 5,202 - {1m - 5,192 5,326
Bitumen 2,493 - {37) 2,456 3472
Other Praduets 5,614 2 = £,614 144582
Sub Tolal 526,544 (21,819) (60) - 504,665 374,797
Grand Total 2,343,909 (21,819) [7.623) [(132,866) 2,181,601 2,137.481

01 July 2020 to 30 June 2021

Q i T ﬂnst:uf_lfj“ ods Q i1 T Eust:j:’gluuds
I Major Products  MT, '000 Tk, 'O00 Th, "000 T, 000 Tk, '000 Tl "G00
HoBC 142 16375712 16,208,867 106 12,276,355 12171317
Jet A-1 428 382640099 37726214 238 12,733,253 12223597
PS5 - - - < 2,218 1,232
S 157 18,180,967 18,024,393 138 16,014,716 15,814,448
SHO 8 2,623,592 2,503,688 33 2,674,383 2,856,145
HED 1,549 133,747,642 132,935,794 1420 105,288,565 104,485, /50
LDO 1 47.733 47,281 1 33,975 33,727
Fo 196 13,623,797 13.539.479 159 6,569,691 68,759,672
LSFO 14 H19.717 78,761 5 169,210 158,844
JBRO 4 380459 372503 1 80,598 20,1159
MTT 5 G085 985 603,153 4 411,667 409,895
SBEP 1 101,460 100,664 3 323,708 320,840
Sub Total 2,526 224,774,163 222,956,799 2,115 156,878,539 155,115 486
il
Lubs & Greasss 4 1.655472 1,143,237 £ 1,534,781 1,160,926
LPG 3 149543 144,341 3 158,977 152,644
Bitumen 12 G624 6683 622,190 i8 752,572 T409,064
Other Producis - 13,427 B,H13 23,417 H,035
Sub Total 149 2.443,125 1,916,581 25 2469,747 2,071,569
Grand Total 2,545 227,217,288 224,873,320 2,140 159,348,286 157,187,055
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Talka in "000
01 July 2021 te ©1 July Z0Z0 to
Naeia) 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
26.00 Administrative, Selling and Diswribution Expenses
Salaries, wages and benefits 26.01 1427084 1,252,697
Deprecladon 4.00 216,338 209,953
Advertiserment 7481 4,931
Audit fees 283 253
Aviation Service fees paid to Shell 36.00 23,000 20,000
BFC service charges 875 700
Communication eXpenses 4,200 3,826
Directors' fees and expenses 33.00 2,950 2,632
Entertainment 4,215 4,078
Fuel and power 67,012 63,199
Insurance 6511 7026
Legal and professional lees 2,927 2,080
Printing and stationery 12,888 10,928
Repairs and maintenance 26.02 THES6 48,868
Remt 42,622 35,796
Rates and taxes 8,952 6,301
Stores and spares 69,976 48,881
Travelling and conveyance 21,459 16,577
Other charges 26.03 169,069 165,722
2167 458 1,904 446
Recoveries of Service charges from ELEL (S00) (500
2,166,968 1,203,946
26.01 Salaries, wages and benefits
Salaries, wages and bonus 478 A56 432 716
Welfare and benefits 615,243 507,589
Contribution Lo pension fund 304,618 280378
Comribution to provident fund 31,867 32,010
1,427,084 1,252,697
26.0Z Repairs and maintenance
Plant and Machinery 47,794 29321
Building 23,897 14,660
Others 7,965 4 8807
79,656 48,8638
26.03 Other Charges
Casual Labour wages 124925 120,888
Common depot expenses | 1/3 share ) 3,948 4,671
C5R{ Corporate Social Responsibility) 1.065 4,500
AGM expenses 2424 1,565
Miscellaneous expenses 20,633 17,639
Securlty expenses (Police / Ansar) 16,074 16,359
169,069 165,722
27.00 Financial Expenses
Bank Charges 8,220 13,195
Interest expenses against product (BPC)* 165,195 137,195
Interest on WPFF & WF 78,270 95,215
249,685 245,605
* Intarest expenses against product are charged by the BPC.
2800 Other Operating Income
Sundry income 28.01 71,987 41,875
Profit from Produoct handling 479,421 375,914
Other charge recovery 227,189 B
Miscellaneous receipts 10,933 34,642
789,530 452,433
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Talka in "000
01 July 2021 to 01 July Z0Z0 to

Khan Wahab Shafique Rahman & Co.
Charlsred Accountants

MNote(s)

S jene SOSE. D0 Tens Nl
ZA.01 Sundry income - net S o '
Land rent/plant hire/service charges from Eastern Lubricants and 354 354
Blenders Limited
FRenk receipes MfPom Filling Staton and Power Statdion 41,827 29,335
Service Charges receipts from Private Power Stotion 29,806 12,186
Tiea7T A41LBTE
Z29.00 Operating Profit / (Loss) on Agro-Chemicals Trading
Bales 570,206 537.435
Costol Sales:
Product Cost Z29.01 (260,481) (B34, 128)
Other Cost - direct 29.02 _[(B58Za]) _ _[73,422)
Gross Profit 144,599 130,285
Administratdve, selling and disoibution expenses
Salarfes, wages and benefits 29.03 12%. 885 116,357
Depreciation 4.00 1905 2813
Stores and aparcs 2,174 Z.163
Avlvertisement 1=3 415
Fugl and powor F 400 3,746
Travelling and conveyance 2205 2,551
Rent 5,641 5,625
Insurancea Lt GB9a
Repairs and maintenance 24,04 sS4 B25
HRates and toaxes 1212 1,.1%%8
Printing and stationecy 734 551
Comminicxion expenses Fa-3 EFT
Entertainment 355 534
Other Charges 29.0% 23,427 22,022
172,997 159,673
Opecrating profit / (loss) (Z28.338) {Z9.388)
29.01 Productcost
DLty == o O e O Ry D e O e
Quantity (MT) (¥} i oh0 Quantiy (MT) Amfﬂ"‘_'&f}';rh)
Opening Stock 1957 336,048 1,152 210,5a1
FPurchased/ Monulfactured 1,583 332,136 2 58 359,815
3840 a6H, 184 3832 670,176
Claging stock 1,708 307,700 1957 335048
2132 351;_!1484- 1‘575 334,128
Z9.02 other Cost - direct
Sale=s Promolion 45,758 43,530
Faclkages Cost 1&, 770 274,050
Fraight L e 5. 040
Handling of Products 859 Taz
658223 73422
Z9.03 Salaries, wages and benellis
Salaries, wages aned bonus FOATZ 56,0746
Oiher benefits A3 ZE7 40,661
Contribution to pension and PF 1%&:%@._ 10,620
1z9.8585 116,357
Z9.04¢ Hepairs nnd Maintenoance
Plant and machinery ERS 267
Building 328 224G
Others 15 iz
& 525
2905 Other Charges
Tranport Expenses L3172 80957
Cazul Labour 11,475 11,308
Service Charge LoOo 1,000
Sundries =1 7549
A0.00 Mon-Operatdng Inconse —_— e ZA0I2
Frofit/{loss) on disposal of flxed assets [ Petroleum trading) [S81) 25
Profit on dispogal of fixed assets (Agro- Chemical trading) 20 1,024
Lease [Tanl 40,518 40,518
Interest on SND (Gros==] for Agro Chemical Trading 1,000 10,000
Trterest on SND [ Gross) 1,275,270 1,091,640
lt_'u_ere-:d: on FIDIR | Grogg) 1,205 522 124,800
Dispogsal of Miscellaneaus stare 5721 1,239
2,616,070 2,669,347
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31.02 Statement of Cost of Sales (Product wise): (Quantity: MT)

Opening Stock Closing Stock Costof Sales
Name of the Products Qty | Tk.'000 | Qty | Tk.'000 | Qty | Tk.'000
l'uradan 5G. 56 4,114 56 4114 - -
Mipcin 7SWP 8 6,482 g 6,966 19 | 14,337
Ripcord 10EC 37 24,845 40 26,688 113 71,728
Acrobat MZ 29 26,689 35 33,091 53 47,064
Roteluck 9% Q 1,423 B 1,304 1 118
Mukta Plus 30 2,468 313 36,754 282 30,984
Talstar 2.5EC 4 1,666 5 1,953 Fi 2,998
Havmancozeh 15 4,734 1le 5412 31 10,818
Haconazole 15 6,220 14 6,312 29 12,164
Me Plus 196 3,202 179 4,737 426 11,155
Salubar Baron(Folieral) - 3 - 3 - -
|Regent 505C 8 9,187 4 4,915 24 27,755
Haysulf DF 80% 103 8,441 5a 5180 232 19,164
Sulcox 50WP 7 3,705 15 G452 16 9.725
Glyfocl 4151 11 3,383 B 2,543 g 2,508
Opal 7S5EC 3 2,005 2 1,385 1 624
Haymidor 70WG 1 2,055 E: 792 = 1,264
Defence 355C 12 6,533 5 2,855 7 3,679
Stroke S0EC 1 921 1 921 - -
Ariva 10EC - - - - - -
Intripid 105C 1 847 - 18 1 629
Havclaim 55G 1 1,557 2 3,087 1 2,070
Accurator 689EW 1 859 1 408 1 451
Surpass20S8C 2 4079 1 2,081 1 1,998
Novostar S6EC 10 B.418 1 970 g 7,448
Trigger S6EW 2] 3,374 5 3,019 - 355
Ugent 63GERE 280 26,351 206 19,450 73 6,901
Padma Chelate 1 207 - 181 - 27
Piguat 19 2,979 - 5 i9 2,974
Suil Zip 178 1,591 246 3,057 313 3,860
Super Fast 4 2,862 7 5,287 7 5,317
Head Line Team 20 31,116 17 26,160 3 4,956
Saeta 1.BEC 16 9,979 14 8716 2 1,262
Couger i} 17,144 [i] 11,955 3 5,189
Novofix 42WDG 3 1,769 g 4,487 4 2,282
Samar T5WP 11 18,029 7 12,006 4 6,024
Pithien 46.5EC 3 1,011 2 698 1 313
Padma Lambda 4 1,531 i 3,781 5] 2,623
Primider 3 7.524 3 6,916 1 608
Optimus 4 7,245 3 4,842 1 2,404
Stargate 833 61,186 394 28,942 439 32,244
Pidion 2 4,895 1 3,979 - 916
Bisben 30WP 2 2438 - 228 2 2,210
Paceben 18WP - A (] 2,070 4 1,338
30 June 2022 1,957| 336,048 1,708 307,700 2,144 360,484

30 June 2021 1,152 310,361 1,257 336,048 1,875 334,128
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31.03 Operating Segment

31.03.01

31.03.02

31.03.03

The Company has several reportable segments, as described below, which are the company's strategic
business. The follewing summary describes the operations in each of the company's reportable
segments:

Petroleum products : Includes the company’s earnings from marketing of Petroleum products
Lubricating 0il & Grease: Includes the company's income from treading lubricating oil & grease.
Bitumen : Includes the company’s earnings from marketing of bitumen.

LPG: Includes the company's earnings from marketing of LPG.

Agro-Chemicals products: Includes the company's income from trading imported Agro-Chemicals
products.

Performances are measured based on segment profit before tay, that are reviewed by the company's
management committes. Information regarding the result of each reportable segment is included
below:

Information about reportable Segments:

Takain "000
Lubricating Agro-
F“?::;fl“m“' Oil & | Bimmen| LPG | Chemicals Total
P Grease products

Turnover 224,787 590 1,655,472 624,683 149,543 570,906 227,788,194
Costof goodssold  [222,963,612) (1,143,237) (622,190) (144,341) {3a0,484) (225,233,864])
Other cost (7.563] (21,832) (37) (10] (65,823) (95,265]
Operational
Gain/(Loss) [132,864) - - - - (132,864)
Operating
Profit/{Lass) 1,683,550 490,403 2456 5.192 144 599 2,326,200
Administrative,
B expenses  [2/166,068) 2 . (172,997)  (2,339,965)
Financial expenses (249,685 - - - - (249,6585)

(733,103 490,403 24586 5,192 (28.398) (263,450)
Other operating
income -
petroleum trade 789,530 - - - = 789,530
Repaortahle
Segment Total
Operating Frofic [2021-22) 56,427 490,403 2456 5,192 (28,398) 526,080
Reportable
Segment Total
Operating Profit
(2020-21) 80,048 350,517 3,472 6,326 (20,288) 410,975

Taka In "000

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

Reconciliation of Reportable Segment Total Operating Profit

Repartable Segment Total Operating Profit 526,080 410,975
Amount not related to reportable segments 2,458,548 2,515,331
Profit before tax 2,985,319 2,926,306

AmountNot Related to Reportable Segments

Non-Operating Income 2,616,070 2,669,347

Contribution to Worker Profit Participant & Welfare Fund (157,122} (154,016)
2,458,948 2,515,331
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31.04 Analysis of Material Consumed (Agro-chemicals trading):

01 July 2021 to 30 June 2022 01 July 2020 to 30 June 2021

Oty. Tk. 000 Oty. Tk. 000
Packing Materials Various 16,770 Various 24,090
16,770 24,090

31.05 Value of raw materials, packing materials and stores & spares consumed [(Agro-chemicals

trading):
01 July 2021 to 30 June 2022 01 July 2020 to 30 june 2021
Thk."000 % Tk. '000 Yo
Import 14,966 79 20,740 79
Indigenous 3,978 21 5513 21
18,944 100 26,253 100
Raw and Packing Materials{31.04) 16,770 24,090
Store and Spares 2,174 2,163
18,944 26,253

31.06 Value of purchase,/ Manufactured of Agro-Chemicals Products

01 July 2021 to 30 June 2022 01 July 2020 to 30 June 2021

Tk."000 %o Tk.'000 W

Import 311,522 90 77,522 S0

Indigenous 34,614 10 8614 10
346,136 100 86,136 100

Reasons for variance:
(Juantity of production decreased during the year due to fall in marleet demand.

Taka in '"000
01 July 2021 01 July 2020
o Lo
30 June 2022 30 June 2021

32.00 Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share (EPS)
Earnings attributable to the ordinary shareholders (Thk.) 2,403,797 2,286,025
Number of ordinary shares at the end of the year 98,232,750 98,232,750
Basic earnings per share [EPE) Tk. Z4.47 Tk.23.27
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33.00 Directors’ Fees and Expense
Details of Directors” fees & expenses paid during the year are as follows:

Name of the Directors and Managing Director Net Amount VAT ﬂrus:TAl:;uunt
Mr, Md Mahbub Hossain (Chairman) 48,000 7,200 5,200
Mr. Md Anisur Rahman (Ex-Chalrrnan] G4, 000 4,600 73,600
Mr Bashudev Gangguly {Independent Director) 48,000 7,200 55.200
Mr. Md. Ekhlasur Rahman ( Ex-Director) 40,000 6,000 46,000
Mr Kabirul Ezdani Khan [Director] TFZ000 10,800 82,800
Pr. Mohd. Sher Ali ( Director) 104,000 15,600 11%.600
Mr. Quazi Md. Anwarul Hakim (Independent Director] 112,000 16,800 128,800
Mr. Kazi Mohammad Mozammel Hogue [ Director) 112,000 16,800 128,800
Mr. oM. Eneyetul Karim (Ex-Independent Director) 56,000 8,400 64,400
Mr. Masir Uddin Akhter Rashid (Shareholder Directar) 112,000 16,800 128800
Mr. Suzadur Kahman [ Director) 112,000 16,800 128,800
iMr, Md, Masudur Rahman (Ex-Managing Director] 112,000 16,600 128,800

992,000 148,800 1,140,800
Takain "GO0

01 July 2021 to 01 July 2020 to
30 June 2022 30 June 2021

Directors’ fees paid-gross 1,141 1408
Meeting expenses 1,800 1,224
2,950 2,632
34.00 Remuneration of MD, Managers and Officers:
Taka in "000 Taka in "000
01 July 2021 to 30 June 2022 01 July 2020 to 30 June 2021
MDD Managers Officers MD Managers Officers
34.01 Remuneration:
Salary, allowances and bonus 2217 946,919 RZ.689 2132 97,304 30,868
House rent allowance:
House rent 1,192 25,219 45,266 1,146 24,018 49,743
Other wtlitles 379 7.396 8,071 254 7044 8,870
1.571 32,515 53.337 1,510 31,062 58,613
Leave encashment 251 3,537 4,704 241 3,369 5,170
Provident fund 271 5430 6,559 281 5,171 7,208
1,310 138,501 147,289 4,144 131,906 161,859
pumber of Emplayess 1 53 175 1 53 174
34.02 House Rent The Managing Director, Managers and Officers are paid cash allowanee.
Accommodation & Managers are provided with free furnished accommodation.
34.03 Transport The Managing Directors and Departmentzal Heads are provided with free use of

Company's car subject to limit
Other Managers are paid cash assistance, suhject ta limit
Officers are pzid cash allowances.

324.04 Telephone Residential telephone for mainly Company's business- for Managing Director and
Managers, subject Lo limit

34.05 Medical The Managing Director, Managers and Officers are provided with free medical facilities
according to company policy.

34.006 Insurance The Managing Director, Managers and Officers are provided with coverage for group
insurance according to the company palicy.

34.07 Remuneration
The Directors other than the Managing Director, who is an ex-officio director, are not paid any remuneration
except for fees and expenses in connection with attending to Company’'s Board Meeting.
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Takain 000

01July2021to 01 July 2020 to
30 June 2022 30 june 2021

35.00 Employees
Number of Employees whose salary was Thk. 3,000 below - -

Nuraber of Employees whose szlary was Tk, 3,000 or above 930 959
930 959

36.00 Expenditure in foreign currency atequivalent BD'T

Aviation service fee to Shell International Petroleum Company Lvd. (SIPCL) 23,000 20,000
23,000 20,000

37.00 Related Party Transactions

During the year, the company carried out a number of transaction with related parties in the normal course of
business and on an ars length basis. The name of these related parties, nature of transactions and balance as at
30.06.2022 in accordance with the provisions of I45-24 are presented below:

2 Balance as on
Name of the Parties Relatdonship Nature of Transactions 30 June 2022
Bangladesh Petroleum v T4.983,970(Cr.)
Corporation (BPC) Parent Concern Multiple Business 19,862,950(Dr.)
Eastern Refinery Limited Subsidiary of BPC Product Refine 12,380(Dr.)
Eastern Lubricants Blenders Ltd. | Subsidiary Company  ||Blending of Products 37.8%:(Dr.)
Standard Asiatic Oil Company  l¢ 1 5500y oF BPC Product Exchange 293,57 7{0rs)
Limited -
Meghna Petroleum Limited Subsidiary of BPC Product Exchange 38%:2,{;{{[;‘:
: y = : 374.574(Dr.)
Jamuna Oil Company Limited Subsidiary of BPC Product Exchange 93,796(Cr.)
- 6,286(Dr.)
Liguified Petroleum Gas Umited | Subsldiary of BPC Product Supply 20.717(Cr)
Details of transactions
Provided Adjusted Closi
Name of the Parties Opening Balances during the during the Q7R
Balance
year yvear
Bangladesh Petroleum 53,228, 704(Cr.) || 209,109,543 187,364,277 || 74,983,970(Cr.)
Corporadon (BPG) 15,135,637{Dr.) 31,120,395 26,697 457 || 19.882,950(Dr.)
Eastern Refinery Limited 11,241{Dr.} 1,171 32 12,380(Dr.]
Eastern Lubricants Blenders Ltd. 16438(Dr.) 93,609 72,351 37,896(0r.]
s e 224.626(Dr.) 68,960 g 293,577(Dr)
Standard Asiatic Qil Company Ltd. 247,352(Cr) . 247352 -
416,669(Dr.) 28,820 149,252 380,486(Dr.)
Meghna Petroleum Limited 6.887(Cr ) - - 6,887(Cr)
! £ 613,HM6({Dr.) 10,816 249258 374.574(Dr.)
A 5 99,005(Cr.) - 5,211 93,796(Cr.)
6,237(Dr.) 57 a 6,286(0r.)
Liguisied Retrottzn s dmited 27,128(Cr.) 132,887 129,298 30,717(Cr)
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Takain "000
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
38.00 Contingent Assets
Interest realizable for delayed payment from BIMAN & BCIC F,537 470 B,537478
Claims realizable from Bangladesh Railway 32774 32774
Amnunt realizable from BFC an account of sale of Jet-A1 o the foreign dirlines 43,589 43 589
8,613,841 B,61%2,841
39.00 Contingentliabilities
1] Guarantees issued by the company's bankers to third parties on coumter
indemnities given by the company against the bankers limit at Tk One 901 901
Crove secured by hvpothecaton over the company's inventories and book debts
i) Comfirmed rrevocable letters of credit (net of margin] opened by the
banks-having bankers limit at Tk. 10 crores, secured by hypothecation 48,071 31,038
over the inventories and honok debts of the company.
48,972 31,937
40.00 Capital Commitments
Authorized but not contracted 1,602,214 417,471
Autharized and Contracted for but not provided-pending execation 2,137,405 2,201,666
Order for local supplies services pending execution 79,348 S6,688
3,818,967 2,675 B25
41.00 Netasset value per Share
The commpositinn of Net Assets value per share is given below :
Met Assets Value on the reporting date (Taka) 17,719,374 16,543,486
Number of Ordinary shares at the end of year 98,232,750 98,232,750
Welghted Average Mumber of Ordinary shares during the year 98,232,750 98,232,750

Net Asset Value [ NAV ) per share

42,00 Operating cash flow per share

The composidon of Operating Cash Inflow /(Outllow]
value per share 1= given below :

Th, 180328

Th. 16841

i] Operating Cash Inflow /[ Outflow] during the yvear [Tk} 9621670 268,258
il Mumber of Ordinary shares at the end of year 98,232,750 98,232,750
Operating Cash Inflow / (Dutflow) per share Thk. 98.15 Th.2.73
43.00 Reconciliation of net income with cash flows from operating activities
Met profit before tax 2,585319 2,526,306
Adjustments:
Depreclations 218,243 212,765
Interest income (2,570,792} [2,626,440)
[Gain} /loss on sale of PPE 061 (1,051}
633,731 511,580
(Increase}/Decrease in Current Assets:
Inventories 1,064,415 3.199.613
Accounts receivable excluding FOR and SNID interest (1,749,231} 1,328,199
Due from affillated companics (4,564 285]) [4,032,943)
Accrued lnterest 196,797 (B4, 14a])
Adwvances, deposits and pre-payments [2,295,139) [62,294])
Increase/(Decrease) in Cirrent Liahilites:
Accounts payahle (4.D61,433) 4.159,573
Supplies and expenses payable (383.589) (204,322}
Dué to affiliated companies 21,506,295 (3,859,399)
Dther liabi{lities 58,945 [53.948)
9,771,775 390,334
Income Tax paid [763,837) [633,656)
Met cash flow from operating activities 9,641,670 268258
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4400

45.00

46.00

4601

46.02

46.03

46.04

The guantum of potental liability at the reporting date for the value of employees unutilized earned
leave has neither been ascertained nor any provision therefor been made in the financial statements,

Events after reporting period
The Board of Directors in their mecting held on 08 November 2022 recommended 125%) cash dividend
(Th. 1.227,90%,000]) @ Tk 12.50 per share for the year ended 30 |June 2022,

Financial risk management

The Company management has overall responsibility for the establishroent and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framewaork. The Company's risk management policies are established to
identify and analy se the risks faced by the Company, to setappropriate risk limits and controls, and to
monitor risks and adhersnce to limits. Risk management policies, procedures and systems are
reviewed regularly ta reflect changes in market conditfons and the Company's activities. This note
presents information about the Company's exposure to each of the abowve risks, the Company's
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company's management of
capital. The company has exposure at the following arcas of risk.

a) Credit risk

b] Liguidity risk

o) Market risk

Credicrisk

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fafls to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored onan
ongning basis. In monitoring credit risk, debtars are grouped according to their risk profile, ie their
legal status, [inanclal conditdon, ageing profile ete. Accounts recefvable are related to sale of petroleum
and agro-chemical produced. The maxirum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrving
amnount of each financial asset in the statement of financial position. Credit sales as compared to the
total sales are Insignificant Government institutions are allowed to purchase on credic

Exposure to creditrisk

The carrving amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maxinum
exposure Lo credit risk at the reporting date was;

Takain ‘000
30 June Z0ZZ 30 June 2021
Accounts receivables 168,732,114 16,982,683
Due from affiliated companies 20,988,149 16,423,864
Advance, deposit & prepayments 2505390 209,257
Cash and bank halance 38.967.515 39,065,100
81,193,168 72,681,098

Ageing of acconnts receivables

Less than & months 1,956,341 BE4,111
& months or above hut less than 12 months 1,821,502 1415314
1 year or above but less than 2 yvears 13558674 1084861
2 years orabove 13.598,597 13,598,597

18,732,114 16,982,883

Ageing of due from affiliated endtes/ companies

Less than 1 year 17,624,295 13,599,131
1 vear or ahove but less than 2 vears - -

2 yvears or above but less than & vears 19 19
5 years or above bul less than 10 vears 648,270 135,665
10 years or above 2,715,565 2,689,051

= 20,988,149 16,423,866




HED

ANNURL REPORT 2021-2022

SERLA0'EL SR LA0'EL
BI&'STEY BIB'SITY 111 ¥4 SERTNIGET R0
SL0'609°ES 5A0%B03'ES OO°0T samrEdinod PEYEL e o 00
£9F'EBT E5¥ERT 0LT ey s ] B
6BE BL0'ST AEERL0'ST Ng°Al a[gedrd SUNeIIy
SANRA JTE] JE PAINSEAW 100 SAFHIET] [ERwEulg
L¥ELEN'RS L¥E'LT0'AE
S8.'SEEET G9L°5ER'EE IOET HUEL JE [5E7)
BS54RS BSLBS ZOEZET misodap Wl Woys
TLH'TT EAETT TOEDET sipsedap mua e
FOEFIR'T FOERIIT 009 5 (]2 Ul SUBLISAAL]
FORETEAT FopEEEal (1113 81 swurd e pye|THRE W
EBE'TRE'ST EBA'TRS'T oot BORATIRLE SR
IANEA ITE] JE PAUNSEIW J0U Sa5sy [EEUEul]
SANEA I8 1 PAINSEI SEASSY [EjaUT]
LZ0E aunf pg
5910906 259 L0906
E9RFRE'Y ESRFETY nytE SRTNGET] =R0
QLE'STT'EL OLESTT'SE 00'ng sanedilod PayEluIE 0 ang
EOF'ERL £9FEAT 00LT e ks ] B
956/ LTOTT 986 LT0TT 0o°AT a[aeded mUoasy
SEMfEA JTE] JE PAUTNSEAW 00 SSI[IET] [WIduEulg
EZLOSH'EL ELLOSE'EL .
95018662 BEDTBE L = EFETL B 3t 353
TESESE'T TESTOE'T - ZOTOEIT fFndap Wi 1ons
TLH'TT ZL91T T0Z0°21 spsodap ws uo
TEESLLT TEELLT ngo 3 (MER U e T LR
&FT'BEENE EFT'EES'NT et sRIUEdwng PAie[IEe wWef ang
FITZELBT FITTELHT hiog A[qEA1EIE] HURIRY
ONEA JTE] TE PRINSEIM J0U FI955Y [FIIUETg
ZI0T aunf pE
GO0, BBL L
ST SO Pt SJu sy Aymbe ST LS AP S50] 0
[E1], (OB D, e sses e DTN} 2asuatpaldume -awodu] sasuataidun  gosd qEnoap a0y
JOIRO [ANOI IN[EA SJB] SO0 UENDSQ IN[EL B an[Es MR

SjUBUNENY paisLEYS
‘00 % pEYIEY UIRSSNH

IR0 WE FUIALED

‘BN[Ea 1ey jo nonewxodde apgeneseas s sonowe Suplued sy T anges e
VE DRUNFERIT 00 SAN[IOCE| [2j3iE]] DU S5551 [ERUEUE J0] NOHEMIOTU] STieA T/ S30[3U] 100 530D 1] "SNTIGE]] [2{3UTU] DUk Si3558 [EIUCUY 6 Sumum BurdLe sy smoys &)q) Supmjo] 241

Sl T PIE SUOEIISSER SURUN0NIY -SIUSMLOSU] [ERURT] S0°9h

sjURIUNGaoY paEUels)
‘00 % UBLILEY anbiyBys GEYRA UBLY




=
!

=
ANNUAL REPORT 2021-2022
Khan Wahab Shafigque Rahman & Co. Hussain Farhad & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

46.06 Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will net be able to meet s financial obligadans as they fall due.
The Campany's approach to manage liguidity (cash and cash egquivalents) is (o ensure, as far as possible,
that it will alwavs have safficlent Hguidity Lo meet {ts Habilities when due, under bath normal and stressed
conditlons, without lncurring unaccepiable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation.
Typically, the Company cnsures that it has sufficient cash and cash equlvalentz o meel expected
operational expenses, including financial obligations through preparation of the cash flow forecast
prepared based on time line of payment of the financial ebligation and accordingly arrange for sufficient
liguidity /fund to make the expected payment withio due date.

The fnllowing are the contractual ar legal maturities of financial Habilides -

Talia in '000

30 June 20022 20 Jume 2021

Liakility for rading supplies and services 11,017,956 15,073,389
Liabilities for supplies and expenses 3,377.936 3,761,525
Customers' and agents’ credit balances 1,200,420 1,878,057
Employee's pension fund 136,814 114,859
Employvee's fund others (6,648) 32,895
Security deposits 192,197 170,565
Tax deducted at source 115 -
Employees' personal accounts 59,179 53,030
Liabilides for Capital Expenditure T0.258 23,734
Worleers' Profit Participation and Welfare Funds 157,122 154,014
Others 1,775,407 1,798,762

18,680,755 23,066,832

46.07 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that any change in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates
will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of fAinancial instraments, The objective of
market risk managament is to manage and contral market risk exposures within acceptable parameters.

46.08 Exposure to currency rislk
There was o eXposure Lo foreign currency risk on the reporting date.

46.0% Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that arises due to changes Iln Interest ratas on borrowings. However the
company de not have any outstanding bank borrowings on the reporting date thus they are nol exposad
to any interest rate risk. But the company has taken a Ioan from the Gowvt of Bangladesh of BOT
110,078,000 with a lixed interest rate of 5 %.

47.00 Significant Deviation in Earning per Share (EPS):

Gross earnings on petroleum products and other operating income have been increased during the yvear
2021-2022 as a consequence Earming Per Share (EP5] increased comparing with the previous year.

48.00 Significant Deviation in Net Operating Cash Flow per Share (NOCFPS):

Met Operating Cash Flows por Share (MOCEPS] has beon increased mainly due to increase of revenue
compared o the previous financial year.

49.00 GENERAL
Figures appearing in these accounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousand taka
Previouws yvear's phrases & amournts have been restated and re-arranged, wherever considered necessary,
to conform to the presentation for the period under revicw.

m b A3
Mohammad Shahidul Alam  Md. Abu Salel’igbal  QuaziMd. Anwarul Hakim  Bashudeb Ganguly

Company Secretary CEQ & Managing Director Indepandent Direcior Independent Director
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PADMA OIL COMPANY LIMITED

(A Subsidiary of Bangladesh Petroleum Corporation)

Registered Office:

PADMA BHABAN, Strand Road, Sadarghat, Chattegram-4000, Bangladesh
Phone :02333354235, 02333364236, 02333357237, 02333357748,
02333357749 (PABX), Fax : 02333362368

e-mail: md@pocl.gov.bd, share@pocl.gov.bd, web: www.pocl.gov.bd



